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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwaaibking” statements within the meaning of Section 27,
the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of theufities Exchange Act of 1934, including, withbatitation,
statements regarding future financial results arfopmance, potential sales revenue, legal conticige and tax
benefits, and the existence of adverse litigatioth @her risks, uncertainties and factors set fonitier Item 1A.,
entitled “Risk Factors”, of this Annual Report oarfh 10-K and in our reports and documents filechwlite
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Youidantify these forward-looking statements by tke of
words such as “outlook”, “believes”, “expects”, tpatial”, “continues”, “may”, “will", “should”, “seeks”,
“approximately”, “predicts”, “intends”, “plans”, ‘gimates”, “anticipates” or the negative versiortafse words or
other comparable words. These statements are stbjearious risks, and uncertainties, many of Whace outside
our control, including the level of market demanddur services, competitive pressure, the altiditgchieve
reductions in operating costs and to continue tiegirate club acquisitions, environmental initiasivthe application
of Federal and state tax laws and regulations oimel specific factors discussed herein and inrdBiieC filings by
us. We believe that all forward-looking statemeartsbased on reasonable assumptions when madeyédmowe
caution that it is impossible to predict actualifessor outcomes or the effects of risks, uncetitasnor other factors
on anticipated results or outcomes and that, acuglsd one should not place undue reliance on tisésements.
Forward-looking statements speak only as of the thaty were made, and we undertake no obligatiopdate
these statements in light of subsequent eventsx@ldpments. Actual results may differ materiathynfi anticipated
results or outcomes discussed in any forward-lapktatement.

PART I

Item 1. Business

In this Annual Report, unless otherwise statederdontext otherwise indicates, references to ‘H&tings”,
“Town Sports”, “TSI”, “the Company”, “we”, “our” ath similar references refer to Town Sports Inteoral
Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries and referencé3 S, LLC” refer to Town Sports Internationall.C, our

wholly-owned operating subsidiary.

General

We are the largest owner and operator of fitnagisscin the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions af thnited
States and the fourth largest fithess club owndragerator in the United States, in each case bas#ite number
clubs. As of December 31, 2010, the Company, thiatsgsubsidiaries, operated 160 fitness clubs uadefour
key regional brand names; “New York Sports ClutdYEC), “Boston Sports Clubs” (BSC), “Philadelphipdsts
Clubs” (PSC) and “Washington Sports Clubs” (WSQ)e3e clubs collectively served approximately 493,00
members, including 17,000 members under our nedestumembership as of December 31, 2010. We owmed a
operated a total of 108 clubs under the “New Yagokrg Clubs” brand name within a 120-mile radiufNefv York
City as of December 31, 2010, including 38 locationManhattan where we are the largest fitheds alner and
operator (more than twice as many as our nearegpetitor). We owned and operated 25 clubs in thet@oregion
under our “Boston Sports Clubs” brand name, 18<lto of which are partly-owned) in the WashingtbiC.
region under our “Washington Sports Clubs” brancheand six clubs in the Philadelphia region under o
“Philadelphia Sports Clubdfrand name as of December 31, 2010. In additiorpwreed and operated three club
Switzerland as of December 31, 2010. We employliloed brand names for our clubs to create an inzage
atmosphere consistent with the local communitytarfdster recognition as a local network of quafityess clubs
rather than a national chain.

We have developed and refined our fitness club itbdeugh our clustering strategy, offering fitnehsbs
close to our members’ workplaces and homes. Wetatbindividuals within each of our regions whepae to a
healthy lifestyle. We believe that the majoritycafr members have household income levels betwe@®@®3 and
$150,000. We believe this is not only the broadestor of the market, but also provides the grégtesvth
opportunities. Our goal is to be the most recoghizealth club network in each of the four major rojslitan
regions we serve. We believe that our strategyusitering clubs provides significant benefits ta members and
allows us to achieve strategic operating advantdgesach of our markets, we have developed clagiginitially
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opening or acquiring clubs located in the more r@ntrban markets of the region and then expandingnarket
coverage from these urban centers to suburbs dgibmging communities.

We currently offer two principal types of membegshin our clubs: “Passport” and “Cordhere are two type
of Passport memberships. The first type allows sste all clubs in all four regions at any timeeTecond type, tl
Regional Passport membership, is available iregflans other than the NYSC region and allows a negrabcess 1
all of our clubs within a single region. We had 20 Passport members as of December 31, 2010Cadiee
membership, consisting of 15,000 members as of dbee 31, 2010, allows unlimited access to a deséghlaome
club. Core members may pay a per visit fee of $t58e non-home clubs at any hour. Members can tele
commit to a predetermined minimum contract peribdre year in order to benefit from reduced duasjaming
fees. Alternatively, our memberships are availalle month-to-month basis. Prior to November 1020 also
offered a Gold membership which allows unlimitedess to a designated or “home” club at all timesagcess to
all of our other clubs during off-peak hours. Memsheho held a Gold membership as of November 1020&
permitted to continue in this membership categ@gld members may pay a per visit fee of $7.50 sonam-home
clubs during peak hours. We had 246,000 Gold mesrdenf December 31, 2010.

As part of our efforts to drive member sales, iniAp010, we began offering a new, favorably-priced
restricted-use membership available to students émlprior years, we offered a three-month summembership
targeted at students generally priced at $199.0théoentire summer. The new membership is a
month-to-month membership with dues of $20.00 pentimand $119.00 for joining fees at the time abément.
As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately X¥€90dent members.

Over our 37-year history, we have developed andeadfour club formats, which allows us to cost-effifesly
construct and efficiently operate our fitness clubthe different real estate environments in whighoperate. Our
fitness-only clubs average approximately 20,00@Gsgfeet, while our multi-recreational clubs averag
40,000 square feet. The aggregate average siag afubs is approximately 26,000 square feet. Quivsctypically
have an open fithess area to accommodate cardidaasad strengthraining equipment, as well as special purf
rooms for group fitness classes and other exeprizggrams. We seek to provide a broad array of lyigguity
exercise programs and equipment that are poputhefiective, promoting the quality exercise expeci for our
members. When developing clubs, we carefully exarttie potential membership base and the likely denfer
supplemental offerings such as swimming, basketbhildren’s programs, tennis or squash and, pexvglitable
real estate is available, we will add one or mdrihese offerings to our fitness-only format. Feample, a multi-
recreational club in a family market may includeo@p Clubs for Kids programs, which can includersgéssons
and sports camps for children.

The U.S. and global economic recession in 200ledontinuing challenging economic environmer20A0
resulted in significant pressures and decline®irsumer confidence and economic growth and higéldesf
unemployment. These economic conditions have leddaced consumer spending and have contributad to
increase in member cancellations, a decrease immawberships and reductions in revenue from angiflarvices
and marketing. While further signs of economic kexy are appearing, negative economic conditiongdco
continue to adversely affect our business and testibperations.

Industry Overview

Total United States fithess club industry reverineseased at a compound annual growth rate of 5t8fb
$11.6 billion in 2000 to $19.5 billion in 2009, acding to the most recent information releasedhaylbternational
Health, Racquet and Sportsclub Association (“IHRBAbtal U.S. fithess club memberships increasea at
compound annual growth rate of 3.7% from 32.8 mnillin 2000 to 45.3 million in 2009, and total numbgfitness
clubs increased at a compound annual growth raée4éb from 16,983 in 2000 to 29,750 in 2009, acitay do
IHRSA.

In 2009, health club members visited clubs at &tirak high of 102 days on average, with approxehatt2%
visiting their clubs at least 100 times during year, according to IHRSA. From 2008 to 2009, theber of peopl
attending a club at least six times per year dsek2.5%; however, in the last ten years the nuimbgincreased
nearly 60% from 24.1 million to 38.3 million.

Obesity continues to be a growing problem in théééhStates, including the continued prevalence of
childhood obesity. Consumers under age 18 increias2@09 to 10% of total fithess club membershipe Tenter
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for Disease Control and Prevention found that 68%4.8. adults were considered overweight or obase i
2007-2008, an increase from 64.5% in 1999-200the&sdthcare costs rise in the United States, sontgedbcus in
combating obesity and other diseases is beingtduleat prevention. Both government and medicalare$ehas
shown that exercise and other physical activitygka critical role in preventing obesity and othealth conditions,
thereby reducing healthcare costs.

Demographic trends have helped drive the growtleegpced by the fitness industry over the pastdiecahe
industry has benefited from the aging “baby boonzeri “Eisenhower” generations as they place grestgihasis
on their health, including a focus on fitness. Menstover the age of 55 increased from 8.0 millio2005 to
10.3 million in 2009.

As the focus on exercise and overall healthy Kfestcontinue to impact the health club industrg, believe
that we are well positioned to benefit from thegeainics as a large operator with recognized bramdes, leading
regional market shares and an established opetaistayy.

Competitive Strengths
We believe the following competitive strengths imstrumental to our success:

Strong market position with leading brand®ased on number of clubs, we are the fourth &rfigmess club
owner and operator in the United States and tlye#ifitness club owner and operator in the Noghaad Mid-
Atlantic regions of the United States. We are thrgést fitness club owner and operator in the Newnk)YBoston
and Washington, D.C. regions, and the fifth largasher and operator in the Philadelphia region.attfebute our
positions in these markets in part to the strenfitbur localized owner and operator brand namesg;wloster
recognition as a local network of quality fithe$sbs.

Regional clustering strategy provides significaahbfits to members and corporationBy operating a
network of clubs in a concentrated geographic aheayalue of our memberships is enhanced by aiityaio offer
members access to any of our clubs, which provigesonvenience of having fitness clubs near a neesb
workplace and home. This is also a benefit to auparate members, as many corporations have engsgdpat will
take advantage of multiple gym locations. Approxieha215,000 of our members have a Passport Methipeasd
because these memberships offer enhanced privitegkgreater convenience, they generate higherhiyaites
than Core or Gold Memberships in each respectig®mne Regional clustering also allows us to prodgecial
facilities to all of our members within a local arsuch as swimming pools and squash, tennis aietiall courts,
without offering them at every location. In the yeaded December 31, 2010, 37% of all club usagehya
members visiting clubs other than their home clubs.

Regional clustering strategy designed to enhangenees and achieve economies of scalée believe our
regional clustering strategy allows us to enhaewemue and earnings growth by providing high-qualit
conveniently located fitness facilities on a ca$éaive basis. Regional clustering is attractivebdrporations
seeking to promote a healthy lifestyle by providiigcounted group memberships to their employeesalsb
partner with many groups that serve our communitresuding the New York City Police and Fire Depagnts in
our New York Sports Clubs region, the Southeasiemnsylvania Transportation Authority (SEPTA) imou
Philadelphia Sports Clubs region, and the Distfa€olumbia Government, including all city agengiesour
Washington Sports Clubs region. We believe thatmtidl new entrants would need to establish oriaeqularge
number of clubs in a market to compete effectiweith us. Our clustering strategy also enables & loeve
economies of scale with regard to sales, marketingzhasing, general operations and corporate aslngitive
expenses and reduces our capital spending neegi®ndkclustering also provides the opportunityrfeembers wh
relocate within a region to remain members of dubg, thus aiding in member retention.

Expertise in site selection and development procéde believe that our expertise in site selectiod a
development provides an advantage over our corpetiiven the complex real estate markets in thieapelitan
areas in which we operate and the relative scaofisgitable sites. Before opening or acquiringgew itlub, we
undertake a rigorous process involving demograpghétcompetitive analysis, financial modeling, siédection and
negotiation of lease and acquisition terms to enghuat a potential location meets our criteriagonodel club. We
believe our flexible club formats are well suitedhe challenging real estate environments in cankets.
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Business Strateg)

In the long-term, we seek to maximize our net mangb@wth, revenues, earnings and cash flows usiag t
following strategies:

Retain members by focusing on the member experie®te company’s mission is “Improving Lives Through
Exercise.” We enact our mission through our “Engaigé Inspire” operational excellence platform whigh
designed to inspire members to embrace regulaciseeaind achieve their fithess goals by securiag toyalty
through customer service and providing state-ofatidacilities, programs and services. We taitar hours of each
club to the needs of the specific member demogcapiiizing each club; offer a variety of ancillasgrvices,
including personal training, group classes, smalug training, Sports Clubs for Kids programs, #melXpressLine
program (a high-intensity, efficient workout progra We offer a variety of different sports faciisi in each
regional cluster of clubs; offer modern, varied aredl-maintained exercise and fitness equipmerd;ffer an
assortment of additional amenities including actedmbysitting, sports massage and pro-shops.ughrbiring,
developing and training a qualified and diversert¢laat is passionate about fithess and health;taiaing and
enhancing our programs and services; and continurdieasing our attention to individual memberdszave
expect to demonstrate our commitment to increasegiality of the member experience, and therebrease net
membership.

To further ensure the member experience remaiasah quality, we provide member surveys to helplyre
the areas we can improve upon as well as the aredsich the members are satisfied overall. We atfize a
mystery shopping program that studies each cl@reas such as cleanliness and customer servicescbhes from
this program are used to measure management reaagdsonus payments for certain club employees.

Drive comparable club revenue and profitability gth by implementing our business strategyur near-term
financial performance will depend largely on thewth of revenue at clubs that we have operatechfime than
12 months. We define comparable club revenue antevat those clubs that were operated by us far ov
12 months and comparable club revenue growth a&nwevfor the 13th month and thereafter as compartt
same period in the prior year. Historically, congide club revenue growth has been a contributiotpfan our
revenue growth, with comparable club revenue grdatteach of the three years from 2006 to 2008giran
between 2.2% to 7.9%. For the years ended Dece®ih@010 and December 31, 2009, however, our cabjer
club revenue declined 4.3% and 5.6%, respectivdtirough comparable club revenue continued to decli
throughout the year ended December 31, 2010 compétk the prior year, we began to see signs afvery. In
2009, in part as a result of the state of the eagnand the impact on consumer spending, we exptehigher
member attrition and, therefore, a lower membee basmost reporting periods in the year ended D 31,
2010. The lower beginning member counts in 2010lted in decreased revenue recognized througheutdhr. In
the fourth quarter of 2010, we experienced a coaiparclub revenue decrease of 1.7% compared toraake of
7.1% in the fourth quarter of 2009. In 2011, weentpnodest improvement and to have slight comparebb
revenue increases in the second half of the yeanwbmpared to the same periods in 2010.

Provide state-of-the-art fitness equipment andisess To help members develop and maintain a healthy
lifestyle, train for athletic events or lose weiglach of our clubs has a large array of cardiavasenachines and
resistance training equipment and free weightsrdtse equipment is positioned to allow for easy eroent from
machine to machine, facilitating a convenient affidient workout. Equipment in these areas is agezhin long
parallel rows that are clearly labeled by muscltaugr which allows members to conveniently custorttiesr
exercise programs and reduce downtime during whaikouts. We have technicians who service and ra@irgur
equipment on a timely basis. In addition, we hasespnal viewing television screens on most pietes o
cardiovascular equipment. Most clubs have betweenamd three studios used for exercise classdsding at leas
one large studio used for most group exercise e&sscycling studio and a mind and body studiad dieeyoga and
Pilates classes. We offer a large variety of griitmess classes at each club and these classesatjgiage at no
additional cost to our members. The volume andetyanf activities at each club allow each membesrtoy the
club, whether customizing their own workout or gEpiating in group activities and classes.

Grow ancillary and other non-membership revenu&¥e intend to grow our ancillary and other non-
membership revenues through a continued focusarasing the additional value-added services teginovide to
our members as well as capitalizing on the oppdiaafor other non-membership revenues such atuin-
advertising and retail sales. Non-membership resemave increased from $77.3 million, or 17.9%evEnues for
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the year ended December 31, 2006, to $92.0 milbod9.9% of revenues for the year ended Decenhe2(BLO.
We intend to continue to enhance and expand themurange of programs and quality of value-addedises that
we offer to our members, such as personal and graip training. These sources of ancillary aneiotion-
membership revenues generate incremental profitsminimal capital investment and assist in attracand
retaining members.

Realize benefits from maturation of recently operiatds. From January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2010, we
opened four clubs. Based on our experience, a hdwends to achieve significant increases in reesrduring its
first three years of operation as the number of bemgrows. Because there is relatively little @msental cost
associated with such increasing revenues, thergisater proportionate increase in profitabiNie believe that th
revenues and profitability of this group of fouualss will improve as the clubs reach maturity.

Marketing

Our marketing campaign, which we believe has ire@dawareness of our brand names, is directediby ou
marketing department, which directly reports to @reef Executive Officer. This team develops adgery
strategies to convey each of our regionally branmusd/orks as the premier network of fithess clubits region.
Our marketing team’s goal is to focus on growing membership base and achieving broad awareness of
regional brand names and be “top of mind”. We aigaoized to enable close collaboration betweemumarketing,
sales, fitness and operations staff, which hel@digm efforts around operational objectives and peoduct
development while ensuring a primary focus on tleenier experience.

Brand awareness and preference is aided by a nuhEsetors, including visibility of multiple retdliocations
and associated signage across each region, our engmifpbase of 493,000 as of December 31, 201@hwhi
generates word-of-mouth and referrals, a 37-gparating history and continual advertising investim All of these
factors provide a strong foundation for our ongaimgrketing and advertising efforts.

Our regional concentration and clustering strategywtes economies of scale in our marketing andréiding
investments which increase their overall efficieacy effectiveness. Clustering enables broadehraad higher
frequency for regional advertising campaigns tipically include a mix of traditional media inclunj radio,
newspapers, magazines, out-of-home (especiallgitrhased) and some television and geo-targeted and
behaviorally targeted digital media, such as paatch, email blasts, online banners and video edisas other
emerging new media vehicles. These broader mafketsare bolstered by local marketing plans awdits, whict
include direct mail, local sponsorships and co-pytioms, community relations and outreach and steeet lead
generation activities. Optimization of marketingxrtfirough measurement and modeling of the effeatigs of
various media investments and formats continueeta priority.

Our advertising and marketing message is designeditd our brand while creating an approachable
personality that is attractive to prospective mersbla contrast to most health club advertising,gegerally forego
depicting images of hard bodies, facilities and ggumipment. Advertisements generally feature creaiogans th
use current events to communicate the serious appnoe take toward fitness in a provocative andémnorous
tone. We believe this approach is easily commueétand understood and makes our product more agyabke fo
all consumers regardless of their health club egpee.

Promotional marketing campaigns will typically fegt opportunities to participate in a variety ofueaadded
services such as personal training, small groupitigrand youth centered sports activities. We atsy offer
reduced joining fees to encourage enrollment. Aalaitlly, we frequently sponsor member referral imoe
programs and other types of member appreciatiaquisition activities and internal promotions to anbe loyalty
and to encourage more members to take advantame ahcillary services.

We also engage in public relations, sponsorshigsspecial events to promote our brand image acnass
network, regionally and in our local communitiese Wave created custom programming garnering metieest,
such as the Jersey Core workout, Trivia Training #ve Burlesque workout, among others. We have fesgared
in national broadcast television shows, such as&Bxends, Access Hollywood, CNN, MSNBC and theB
Early Show; major newspapers, such as The New Yorkes, USA Today, Washington Post, Washington Times
Boston Globe, and The Wall Street Journal, and Beeragazines, such as: Fitness, Self, Shape, Na ahd
People Magazines.
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In addition, we participate in and sponsor evemisach of our regions. We are a six-time sponstiief
JPMorgan Chase Corporate Challenge Series runmang @ both the New York and Boston metropolitagions.
In 2010, this popular annual event attracted net®Ip00 participants in New York and 14,000 in BosBoston
Sports Clubs is also a four-time sponsor of thasTdealth Plan 10K for Women, an event that até@at 400
competitors in 2010. New York Sports Clubs’ sposhgr of the annual TD Bank Five Boro Bike Tour leglfjo
turn out a TSI team of 475 members and employdlesdiag in logo jerseys, for the 42-mile ride alpwith 37,000
other cyclists.

Our association with professional sports teams efdmnces our brands and their status in the coitisgiim
which we operate. Boston Sports Clubs is the @fficealth club of the Boston Red Sox and BostoricseNew
York Sports Clubs shares the same designationthétNew York Jets Flight Crew, including programmin our
clubs with appearances by the Flight Crew, as asBignage in New Meadowlands Stadium.

Our philosophy of giving back to our communitieslirdes sponsoring company-wide and local charitable
efforts. Developed in 2009 and launched in eanhuday 2010, we partnered with the City of New Yarid the Fire
Department of New York (FDNY) to develop and defieasier access to cardiopulmonary resuscitatioRPR”)
training. Called “CPR to Go”, the graduates of #ilsminute class headed by FDNY EMS trainers, bétome
certified and therefore will be able to assistioyding CPR. Our club management teams and stafakso
encouraged to organize and engage in charitalbietes. Some recent events benefited organizatsuch as the
Michael J. Fox Foundation for Parkinson’s Reseafchyer of Hope, MS Society, Family Research Foundat
American Cancer Society, the Muscular Dystrophyo&gstion, Susan G. Komen Race for the Cure, Avotk\fta
Breast Cancer, NYCares, Toys for Tots, as well asynismaller local and specific charities.

Our principal web site is www.mysportsclubs.com2009, we improved the site to facilitate its natign,
functionality and usability and to enhance the memgxperience. In 2010, we focused on developingteeplate
pages that would allow for more flexibility andieféncy in disseminating content. We also continteesnprove
upon site navigation, functionality and usabililyanhance the member experience. The site proiittasnation
about club locations, program offerings, exerciassschedules and sales promotions. The weblsitakows our
members to give us direct feedback about our seteiels and enables prospective members to sidarugur
popular 30 days for 30 dollars web trial membershimched in April 2010. This has increased traffithe clubs
and led to many of these trial members joiningudistime members. Prospective members can alsiataitheir full
membership enroliment process through our web Isitaddition, job seekers can begin the employrapptication
process through the site and investors can actesgfal information and resources.

Sales

We sell our memberships primarily through threentteds; at the club level; through our corporate gurodip
sales division; and through our outbound call certeSeptember 2010, we introduced our outbouticceater in
order to reach out to former members. We are ctlyrezviewing other opportunities to sell membepshihrough
the call center. We also sell memberships onlineuph our web site. We employ approximately 390ciub”
membership consultants who are responsible formembership sales in and around their designatédictations
Each club generally has either two or three coaatst These consultants report directly to the glkerieral manage
who, in turn, reports to a district manager. Wevte additional incentive-based compensation infone of
commissions and bonuses, contingent upon indivjdiia and company-wide enrollment goals. Membershi
consultants must successfully complete an in-htragging program through which they learn our saleategy.
The training program consists of three days oflassroom training followed by three weeks of inkctraining. In
making a sales presentation, membership consubisteimipt to match the needs to each prospectiveberehy
emphasizing all the aspects of our clubs’ seleatifoequipment, classes and mukereational offerings, if availab
and the quality of our staff.

In mid-December 2008, we launched the selling dividual memberships online for our standard mersitier
types. This sales channel links directly to oungipal web site and an existing web site, whictai®red to selling
memberships for pre-established corporate and goograms. The online sales channel offers a hagjvak of
convenience for customers who know and trust camdiand do not require up-front interaction witm@mbership
consultant to make their decision. In additionlisglonline significantly reduces our cost of saembers who
joined online accounted for approximately 3.3% @mterships sold in 2010. In April 2010, we launchedD day:
for 30 dollars web trial membership for prospectivembers.
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Our corporate and group sales division consistgppfoximately 20 full-time employees located thioogt our
markets, who concentrate on building long-termti@tships with local and regional companies anddagroups.
Corporate and group members accounted for approgiynd6% of our total membership base as of Decerdbge
2010. We offer numerous programs to meet our catpand group clients’ needs including an onlinekment
program as well as a fully operational call cefiderenrollment. We believe this focus on relatidpgbuilding,
providing the corporate customer with options feradiment and our clustering strategy will contirtodead to new
group participation in the future. Corporate anolugrsales are typically sold at a discount to ¢tamdard rates.
Corporations frequently subsidize the costs of menstiips provided to their employees.

We believe that clustering clubs allows us to selimberships based upon the opportunity for mentbers
utilize multiple club locations near their workpéaand their home. As of December 31, 2010, outiagisnembers
were enrolled under three types of memberships:

e The Passport Membership is our higher pricethirership and entitles members to use any of abiséh

any region at any time, or any of our clubs witbire region, other than the NYSC region. These meshig
plans provide the convenience of having fithesbsluear a member’s workplace and home. The cuisént
price of an individual commit Passport Memberslaipges from $69 per month to $89 per month, exctudin
students and corporate and group members. Ourgtouemberships are offered as restricted-use Pdsspo
Memberships and averaged approximately $20 perimfonthose sold in the year ended December 310.
Our corporate and group memberships are sold ap&adMemberships and averaged approximately $6
month for those sold in the year ended Decembe2@®10Q. The Passport Membership, including our stude
members and our corporate and group members, idbyapproximately 47% of our total members as of
December 31, 2010. In addition, we have a Pas§erhium Membership at two select clubs, which idet
a greater array of member services and faciliieprices ranging from $105 to $115 per mo

¢ The Core Membership was introduced on Noverib2010 and enables members to use a specifiatiub
any time. The current list price of a commit Coremibership ranges from $39 to $79 per month based on
club specific facilities and services, the markegzof enroliment and length of the membership reat
Core members can also elect to pay a per visivf&.50 to use non-home clubs. This membershiphe&s
by approximately 3% of our members as of Decemtef310.

« The Gold Membership enables members to upedcifi club at any time and any of our clubs dgririf-
peak times. Gold members can also elect to pay aigiefee of $7.50 to use non-home clubs durieghkp
hours. This membership was held by approximatety 50 our members as of December 31, 2010. This
membership is no longer offered to new memberd deember 1, 201(

In 2010, we simplified our membership offeringsrbgving away from many membership offerings to two
principal memberships. We still offer some promoébmemberships to key segments of our consumemamaber
base; however, these are not permanent offerindjsianonly offered periodically on a promotionasisaExamples
of such specialized memberships are those desfgnélde aging population, TSI alumni, gym switchersouples
memberships. We periodically emphasize these dipsdanembership packages to support with our niengrend
sales strategic plan.

We offer both “month-to-month” and “commit” membkiz payment plans. A member may cancel a
month-to-month membership at any time with 30-dagytice. Under the commit model, new members cortorat
one-year membership. These memberships are prigethaderate discount to the month-to-month menhigern
2010 and 2009, 74% and 85% of our newly enrollethtrers opted for a commit membership, respectivily.
decreased the price gap between the commit menipensti the month-to-month membership in 2009, asave
the month-to-montimembership gain popularity due to its flexibilitya time of decreased consumer confidenc
of December 31, 2010, approximately 17% of our mensbhad originated under a month-to-month non-cdmmi
membership and 83% had originated under a comnmitlmeship. When the members’ commit period is otrezy
retain membership as a month-to-month member @il choose to cancel. As of December 31, 2010,
approximately 70% of our total members were on atimdo-month basis. We believe that members pteféave
the flexibility to choose between committing foreoyear or to join under the month-to-month non-camm
membership.
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In joining a club, a new member signs a memberapieement that typically obligates the member toqree-
time joining fees, if applicable, and monthly dagsan ongoing basis. The one-time joining feesisbo$ initiation
fees and processing fees. In the third quarte0682we had combined these fees. We promoted nemberships
by discounting these fees in 2008 and further disting these fees in 2009, resulting in a low agernaining fee
per member of $20 in that year. In June 2010, watreduced the one-time processing fee of betviehand $29
per sale. Joining fees collected for new monthéctebnic funds transfer, or EFT, members averagedoximately
$30 per member for the year ended December 31, 20d68thly EFT of individual membership dues on & pe
member basis including the effect of promotions am@berships with reduced dues averaged approxXin&aa
and $64 per month for the years ended Decemb&(D and 2009, respectively. Throughout 2010, wevesious
sales promotions for new members to receive fregthsoof membership and in April 2010 we began twalent
membership with dues of $20 per month. Due to tufarity of the student membership, our averagenmmber
dues decreased. Throughout 2009, we had also dfi@rous sales promotions for new members to vedege
months of membership and also sold discounted meshipetypes, including our alumni and friends aachily
memberships. We collect approximately 96.0% ofradhthly membership dues through EFT and EFT merhlgers
revenue constituted approximately 75.5% of constdid revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010.
Substantially all other membership dues are pafdlinn advance. Our membership agreements califonthly
dues to be collected by EFT based on credit caldhok account debit authorization contained inafpeement.
During the first week of each month, we receiveER§ dues for that month after the payments at@iad by a
third-party EFT processor. Discrepancies and ingefit funds incidents are researched and resdiyexlr in-
house account services department. We typicallease our existing member dues annually by betd&eand 39
on average, in line with increases in the cosivirfig. In 2010, the total membership dues incremas applied to
approximately 50.0% of our membership base reguitiran overall dues increase of approximately 1.5%

Usage

Our suburban clubs are generally open 5:00 AM t6A®M on weekdays and 7:00 AM to 8:00 PM on
weekends, while our urban clubs are generally &ped AM to 11:00 PM on weekdays and 8:00 AM to 900 on
weekends. Where member demand is high, some chalaim open for 24 hours. We generally considepeak
usage times to be between 6:00 AM and 8:30 AM a@@d BM and 8:30 PM on weekdays. Our hours of bgsimae
based on usage patterns at each individual clubtd®al club usage was 30.0 million and 30.3 milllmember visit
for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2008 cteely, representing a 1.2% decrease in totdd abage on a
yeal-over-year basis. Usage per member has increagedxampately 1.9% in the year ended December 310201
compared to 2009. In the year-ended December 3D, 2pproximately 37% of total usage or club vigits to
members’ non-home clubs, indicating that our mekate advantage of our network of clubs.

Non-Membership Revenue

Over the past five years, we have expanded thesrahgncillary club services provided to our mensbéton-
membership club revenue has increased by 19.0% 2016 to 2010 and has increased as a percentagelof
revenue from 17.9% in 2006 to 19.9% in 2010. Peaktaining revenue, in particular, increased 23@#r this
five-year period and increased as a percentage ofréa@hue from 11.4% in 2006 to 13.2% in 2010. Initald we
offer Sports Clubs for Kids and Small Group Tra@iboth for an additional fee, at select clubs. STConer
confidence and consumer spending deterioratectisebhond half of 2008 and throughout 2009, regultira non-
membership revenue decrease in these periods1 26nsumer confidence and consumer spending lilegan
recover. Also in 2010, we recognized $2.7 millidrpersonal training revenue related to unused apded
sessions in three of our jurisdictions, of whiclf@®00 related to expired sessions that would baea recognized
in the year ended December 31, 2010. See “Manag&nigiscussion and Analysis” for further informatio
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The table below presents non-membership revenupaoemts as a percentage of total revenue for thesye
ended December 31, 2006 through 2010.

For The Years Ended December 31, (In thousand:

2010 % 2009 % 2008 % 2007 % 2006 %
Total revenue $462,38° 100.(% $485,39: 100.(% $506,70¢ 100.(% $472,91! 100.% $433,08( 100.(%
Non-Membership Revenue:
Personal training revent 60,87t 13.2% 56,97 11.7% 61,75 12.2%  56,10¢ 11.9% 49,511 11.4%
Other ancillary club revent 26,35t 57%  24,58¢ 51%  24,32¢ 4.8% 24,247 51%  22,86: 5.3%
Fees and Other reven 4,761 1.0% 4,661 1.C% 6,031 1.2% 5,61¢ 1.2% 4,947 1.2%

Total nor-membership revent $ 91,997 19.¢% $ 86,227 17.8% $ 92,117 18.2% $ 85,96¢ 18.2% $ 77,31t 17.9%

Club Format and Locations

Our clubs are generally located in middle- or uppeome residential, commercial, urban and suburban
neighborhoods within major metropolitan areas #ratcapable of supporting the development of aelws clubs.
Our clubs typically have high visibility and areség accessible. In the New York metropolitan, Bost
Washington, D.C. and Philadelphia markets, we ltagated clusters of clubs in urban areas and ¢toeimuter
suburban areas aligned with our operating strabégyfering our target members the convenience oitipie
locations close to where they live and work, remgai use privileges, and standardized facilitied sarvices.

Approximately 68% of our clubs are fitness-onlyldiand the remaining clubs are multi-recreatioDat.
fitness-only clubs generally range in size from0D®, to 25,000 square feet and average approximately
20,000 square feet. Our multi-recreational clubsegally range in size from 25,000 square feet t0@% square
feet, with one club being 200,000 square feet. alerage multi-recreational club size is approxiryate
40,000 square feet. Membership for each club gépesmges from 2,000 to 4,500 members at maturity.

We have experienced overall growth over the pastyears primarily through developing and openiag n
club locations that we have constructed, despéadiduction in club openings in 2009 and 2010 diditéon, we
have acquired existing, privately owned single arudti-club businesses. From January 1, 2006 to Déee 31,
2010, we acquired two existing clubs, constructéa@w clubs and closed or relocated 20 clubs tease our total
clubs under operation from 141 to 160. In the yrated December 31, 2010, we did not open any ngvs end
closed one club, decreasing our total clubs ungeration from 161 to 160. In 2010, we upgradedagerxisting
clubs and plan to continue to do so in 2011. Weetlily plan to open two clubs in the second haRP@f1.

To identify potential target areas for additionlalbs, we engage in detailed site analyses andtemlec
processes. Target areas are identified based uganrgtion demographics, psychographics, traffic emtimuting
patterns, availability of sites and competitive karinformation. We currently have two lease conmmeitts and
have identified over 170 target areas in which vay mdd clubs under our New York Sports Clubs, BoSports
Clubs, Washington Sports Clubs or Philadelphia 8§p0lubs brand names. In addition, we have ideatifurther
growth opportunities in secondary markets locateak our existing markets. In the future, we mayl@ep
expansion opportunities in other markets in thetéthBtates that share similar demographic charsiitsrto those
in which we currently operate.

Our facilities include a mix of state-of-the-arrdmvascular equipment, including AMT ellipticats,
Spinners & Arc Trainers along with bikes, stepp&eadmills and elliptical motion machines; freeigie and
strength equipment, including Cybex, Nautilus, Tezkym, Strive, Precor, Star Trac and Hammer Stheng
equipment; group exercise and cycling studiosgtitertainment system network; locker rooms, inclgdihower
facilities, towel service and other amenities, sastsaunas, babysitting, and a pro-shop. Eachraflalos is
equipped with automated external defibrillators D& for use in cardiac arrest emergencies. Perd@iaing
services are offered at all locations for an adddi charge. At certain locations, additional fiéieis are also
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offered, including swimming pools and racquet aadketball courts. Also, we have feased programming at me
of our clubs, including Small Group Training, cliéd’s programs, and other programs targeting adefhbers.

We also offer our Xpressline strength workout &babur clubs. Xpressline is an eight-station kdiady circui
workout designed to be used in 22 minutes andd¢oramodate all fithess levels. This service is pedifor free to
our members.

We have approximately 8,100 personal entertainmeits installed in our clubs. The units are tydical
mounted on or near individual pieces of cardiovisoequipment and are equipped with a flatiel color screen f
television viewing. We believe our members prefier flexibility to view and listen to the programistieeir choice
during their cardiovascular workout. The entertagninsystem network also broadcasts our own peligedanusic
video channel that provides us with a direct medraslvertising products and services to our menfitigisase.

In 2010, we began to roll-out an expansion of fesgof the personal viewing screens on our cargigpenent
at select clubs using a new entertainment systéwonle These additional features include on-dentatelision
and music, iPod/iPhone compatibility and a clulminfation channel. We installed this new systemZimflour
Manhattan clubs in 2010 and have plans to furtkpaed the features of the screens in our remaiMiaghattan
clubs in the first half 2011.

Club Services and Operations

Our clubs are structured to provide an enhancedbeeaxperience through effective execution of our
operating plan. Our club and support team memberthe key to delivering a valued member experiemzbour
operations are organized to maximize their ovef@ictiveness. Our club operations include:

Management. We believe that our success is largely depenaletiie selection and development of our team
members. Our management structure is designedke #ie right balance between consistent executfon
operational excellence and nurturing a leader’siciyp for entrepreneurial decision making. Our iéag and
development system allows for all club positionsdceive training on the key elements of their edevell as
development training for growth. We believe a cdaticomponent to our growth is our ability to leage internally-
developed management talent.

Our business is divided into regional operatingdinvith each reporting to a regional vice presideeporting
to the regional vice presidents are regionally-tbdsactional support teams as well as district nganawho are
responsible for executing the Company’s operatiag within a group of clubs. Reporting to the ddtmanagers
are the individual club general managers who aspaesible for the day-to-day management of eadh étieach
level of responsibility, compensation is structutedcent driving the member experience and pabfiity.

Functional Support. Functional teams provide technical expertise amport designed to drive the member
experience and revenue growth in specific areasintlubs’ services, including sales and marketiitigess and
ancillary programming, learning and developmenweal as facility management and member service.

Driving excellence in fitness and ancillary prograimg is critical to our success. All of our fithedabs offer
one-on-one personal training, which is sold in tmitlgle session and multi-session packages. Qwasfitteams are
trained to provide superior fitness solutions tdrads member needs. We believe the qualificatibtisegpersonal
training staff help to ensure that members recaigensistent level of quality service throughout dubs and that
our personal training programs provide valuablelgnce to our members as well as a significant sooifrc
incremental revenue for us. Our personal trainergeouped by professional certification and adeamspecialty
education. Trainer compensation is based on priofegsdesignation and the number of training sesstbey
perform. We believe that members who participatedarsonal training programs typically have a longembershi
life.

Our commitment to providing a quality exercise aigrece to our members extends beyond just personal
training and includes group exercise programmingy. i@structors teach a variety of classes includaggobics,
cycling, strength conditioning, boxing, yoga, Ritaiand step aerobics classes. Instructors regorigh local club
management and are further supported by regionadtdirs responsible for ensuring consistency iasctantent,
scheduling, training and instruction. We also pdevsmall group training offerings to our membericlv are fee-
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based programs that have smaller groups and pravidle focused and typically more advanced clasase
examples of these offerings include Pilates, TR¥itlébell training, boxing camps and cycling camps.

In addition to group exercise, we offer a varietyncillary programming for children under our Sga€lubs
for Kids brand. As of December 31, 2010, Sporth€lior Kids was being offered in 31 locations thgloout our
New York Sports Clubs, Boston Sports Clubs anddeleiphia Sports Clubs regions. Our Sports ClubKids
programming positions our multécreational clubs as family clubs, which we bedigvovides us with a competiti
advantage. Depending upon the facilities availabke location, Sports Clubs for Kids programming teclude
traditional youth offerings such as day camps, tspgamps, swim lessons, hockey and soccer leagyesastics,
dance and birthday parties. It also can includecmmpetitive “learn-to-play” sports programs.

Functional and leadership skill development plagsitical role in enabling our success. Team member
development occurs at both the club level and énctassroom. Managers play a vital role in the bigraent of
their teams and partner closely with our learning development team to advance team member skiilifore
growth. Our learning programs are consistentlygtesi and focused on building strong functional leadership
skills across the organization. This also inclusigscialized fitness and group exercise trainingicuum.

Our facilities and equipment management teams edlidted to ensuring our clubs and fitness equipmuen
operating at the highest standard of performancedomembers. Local teams are deployed to provide
on-site support to clubs as needed.

Our club support and member services groups atcasrdinating point for all departments, suppartin
excellence in program execution and ensuring ctergiy of policies and procedures across the eatganization
that support the member experience.

Employee Compensation and Benefits

We provide performance-based incentives to our gamant. Senior management compensation, for example
is tied to our overall performance. Departmentedaiprs, district managers and general manageradadave
bonuses tied to financial and member retentioretargNe offer our employees various benefits inolgdhealth,
dental and disability insurance; pre-tax healthcemenmuting and dependent care accounts; and &48la0. We
believe the availability of employee benefits pa®s us with a strategic advantage in attractingrataining quality
managers, program instructors and professionabpatdrainers and that this strategic advantagermtranslates
into a more consistent and higher-quality workogtezience for those members who utilize such sesvic

Centralized Information Systems

We use an integrated information system to sell beships, bill our members, track and analyze saléds
membership statistics, the frequency and timinmember workouts, cross-club utilization, membag, lifalue-
added services and demographic profiles by memidech enables us to develop targeted direct margeti
programs and to modify our broadcast and print dtbieg to improve consumer response. This systismassists
us in evaluating staffing needs and program oféevinin addition, we rely on certain data gathehedugh our
information systems to assist in the identificatidmew markets for clubs and site selection withiose markets.

Information Systems

We recognize the value of enhancing and extendiegises of information technology in virtually everea o
our business. Our information technology strateggligned to best support our business strategyparhting
plans. We maintain an ongoing comprehensive meliryprogram to replace or upgrade key systemscand t
optimize their performance.

We currently utilize a club management systemiti@drporates functionality for member services,tcact
management, electronic billing, point of sale, sitHimg personal training resources and reservatibhis club
management system extends support for new budimestionalities and new club models and integratiés other
applications. We have an application utilizing Imesis intelligence tools and data warehousing chijiebienabling
enhanced managerial and analytical reporting @ssaihd operations. We originally implemented thgtesn in
2003, and we plan to replace it within the next tav¢hree years to take advantage of updated témimo
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Recently we upgraded the hardware capacity oflthfermanagement system to improve performance &t clu
locations.

In 2007, we replaced our legacy general ledgera@edunts payable and fixed asset accounting systétims
Oracle systems that include a fully integratedesaftaccounting applications as well as lease memagt and cash
management capabilities. Migration of our curremistruction accounting system to the Oracle systamls
expanded on-line procurement was completed in 2008.

In 2007, we implemented a human resources managaysiem and merged it with an existing timekeeping
system which was integrated with payroll and ref¢mancial applications for comprehensive autaoraof
compensation processing and management for alloymgs. This system has the capability of expandingalent
management, recruiting and performance managemecggses and will be leveraged as we align it authnew
learning and development strategy to train our ¢bam members. The human resources managemenhslsievs
us to effectively and efficiently serve our teammhbers by providing meaningful information to sugpbeir
individual growth and development.

Our web site utilizes new architectures that alfonflexibility in product offerings, online corpate and group
sales, promotion and contest presentations, mesatfeservice, surveying and enhanced member optidnes
internet capabilities were recently expanded ttunhe more member-focused features. In 2008, weclzaoh
additional web capabilities for selling our suifenreemberships for all clubs. We have built an inétto provide a
portal for the various browser-based applicatitiad we utilize internally. Our intranet featurepgart corporate
communications, human resources programs andrtgaiti 2009, we launched a re-design of our wedy sitaking
it easier for our members to navigate through dagures. In 2010, we added new templates allovanghbre
flexibility and efficiency of the site.

In 2011, we plan to move our data center from emresit Manhattan location to a co-location facilithis will
provide for better network speed and reliabiligalize cost savings on real estate facilities case server security
and improve internet bandwidth availability. Otlbenefits include increased growth scalability, poreglundancy,
enhanced physical security controls, cooling redmegt and fire suppression. Our employees will marthg daily
operations remotely.

We continuously implement infrastructure changeasdmommodate growth, provide network redundancyet
manage telecommunications and data costs, incegfisiencies in operations and improve manageméatli o
components of our technical architecture, includiiggster recovery. The disaster recovery faailithzes
replication tools to provide fail-over capabilities supporting our critical club operations andngany
communications. Since 2007, we have used advanotsifor enhanced management and monitoring of our
infrastructure for compliance and improved security

Intellectual Property

We have registered various trademarks and servackawvith the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office,
including, NEW YORK SPORTS CLUBS and NYSC, WASHINGTON SPORTS CLUBS and WSC,
BOSTON SPORTS CLUBS and BSC PHILADELPHIA SPORTS CLUBS and PSC,
COMPANIESGETFIT.COM, SPORTS CLUBS FORKIDS, “ _ BETTER.”, andTOWN SPORTS
INTERNATIONAL. We continue to register other trademarks and semwiarks. We believe that our rights to tt
properties are adequately protected.

Competition

The fitness club industry is highly competitive asahtinues to become more competitive. The numbbeailtt
clubs in the U.S. has increased from 29,069 in 209,750 in 2009, based on the most recent irdtion
available. In each of the markets in which we ofgenae compete with other fithess clubs, physitaégs and
recreational facilities.

We consider the following groups to be our primemynpetitors in the health and fitness industry:

« commercial, multi-recreational and fitnessyocthains, including, among others, Equinox Holdjrigs.,
Lifetime Fitness, Inc., Crunch, New York Health dRacquet, LA Fitness International LLC, 24 HoumEss
Worldwide, Inc., Bally Total Fitness Holding Corjation, Gold’s Gym International, Inc., Retro Fitags
Snap Fitness, Anytime Fitness and Planet Fitr

12




Table of Contents

« the YMCA and similar no-profit organizations

 physical fitness and recreational facilities estdi@d by local governments, hospitals and busiise
« exercise and small fitness clubs; racquet, termilscgher athletic club:

« private studios offering cycling, yoga or Pilat

* amenity gyms in apartments and condominiu

« weighi-reducing salons

 country clubs; an

 the hom-use fitness equipment indust

The principal methods of competition include pricend ease of payment, required level of members’
contractual commitment, level and quality of seegictraining and quality of supervisory staff, siral layout of
facility and convenience of location with respexttcess to transportation and pedestrian traffic.

We consider our service offerings to be in the tied-of the value/service proposition and desigieappeal t
a large portion of the population who utilize figsefacilities. The number of competitor clubs thiéér lower
pricing and a lower level of service recently havatinued to grow in our markets. These clubs twiracted, and
may continue to attract, members away from bothfitness-only clubs and our multecreational clubs, particulal
in this challenging consumer environment.

We also face competition from club operators offgrcomparable or higher pricing with higher levefls
service. The trend to larger outer-suburban fafitifess centers, in areas where suitable realesistamore likely to
be available, could also compete effectively agains suburban formats.

Competitive Position Measured by Number of Clubs

Number of
Market Clubs Position
Boston metropolital 25 Leading owner and operat
New York metropolitar 10¢  Leading owner and operat
Philadelphia metropolita 6 #5 owner and operator, tied for #1 in urban ce
Washington, D.C. metropolite 18 # 2 owner and operator, leader in urban ce
Switzerland 3  Local owner and operator on

We also compete with other entertainment and rbtainesses for the discretionary income in owgetar
demographics. There can be no assurance that Weendble to compete effectively in the futurehe markets in
which we operate. Competitors, who may include camigs that are larger and have greater resouraputh) may
enter these markets to our detriment. These cotiygetionditions may limit our ability to increasaes without a
material loss in membership, attract new membedsastnact and retain qualified personnel. Additibna
consolidation in the fitness club industry couldukin increased competition among participangstipularly large
multi-facility operators that are able to compededttractive acquisition candidates and/or newalystructed club
locations. This increased competition could inceemsr costs associated with expansion through déaghisitions
and for real estate availability for newly constagetclub locations.

We believe that our market leadership, experienckeaperating efficiencies enable us to providecthresumer
with a superior product in terms of conveniencalify service and affordability. We believe thag¢té are barriers
to entry in our metropolitan areas, including riesitre zoning laws, lengthy permit processes asti@tage of
appropriate real estate, which could discourageangg competitor from attempting to open a chdialabs in
these markets. However, such a competitor couler ¢énese markets more easily through one, or assefj
acquisitions. These barriers of entry are signifida our four metropolitan regions, however theg aot as
challenging in our surrounding suburban locations.

Government Regulation

Our operations and business practices are subjéaderal, state and local government regulatighérvariou
jurisdictions in which our clubs are located, irdihg (1) general rules and regulations of the FaldBrade
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Commission, state and local consumer protectionggs and state statutes that prescribe certaimsfand
provisions of membership contracts and that gottegradvertising, sale, financing and collectiorsuch
memberships and (2) state and local health reguksti

Statutes and regulations affecting the fithesssirgithave been enacted in jurisdictions in whichcarduct
business and other states into which we may exjatie future have adopted or may adopt similaislagon.
Typically, these statutes and regulations presa#stain forms and provisions of membership comsraafford
members the right to cancel the contract withipec#ied time period after signing or in certaincaimstances, such
as for medical reasons or relocation to a certatadce from the nearest club, require an escrofwrafs received
from pre-opening sales or the posting of a bongroof of financial responsibility and may establiehximum
prices for membership contracts and limitationgtanterm of contracts. The specific proceduresraadons for
cancellation vary due to differing laws in the resjive jurisdictions, but in each instance, theceding member is
entitled to a refund of unused prepaid amounts.tivexently, several states have proposed legislatiat would
prohibit the automatic rollover of membership oacmember’'s commitment period expires. In additioa,are
subject to numerous other types of federal an@ segfulations governing the sale of membershipssé&taws and
regulations are subject to varying interpretatiopg number of state and federal enforcement agsmeid courts.
We maintain internal review procedures to complthwhese requirements and believe that our acts/dre in
substantial compliance with all applicable statutekes and decisions.

The tax treatment of membership dues varies bg.dtarecent years, some states in which we opbeate
passed legislation to require sales tax to be aeltton membership dues and personal trainingasessthese taxe
have the effect of increasing the payments by cembrers, which could impede our ability to attramvrmembers
or induce members to cancel their membership.

Changes in any statutes, rules or regulations doave a material adverse effect on our financiabldmn and
results of operations.

Employees

At December 31, 2010, we had approximately 8,10pleyees, of whom approximately 2,200 were employed
full-time. Approximately 360 of those employees weprporate and other club support personnel. Weatra
party to any collective bargaining agreement with @mployees. We have never experienced any signifiabor
shortages or had any difficulty in obtaining adggquaplacements for departing employees. We coneiate
relations with our employees to be good.

Available Information

We make available through our web sitevatw.mysportsclubs.coim the “Investor Relations — SEC Filings”
section, free of charge, all reports and amendntertteose reports filed or furnished pursuant toti®a 13(a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atedr{the “Exchange Act”gs soon as reasonably practicable
we electronically file such material with, or fushiit to, the SEC. Occasionally, we may use our sibas a
channel of distribution of material company infotioa. Financial and other material information netjag the
Company is routinely posted on and accessibletpt/fitvestor.mysportsclubs.comin addition, you may
automatically receive email alerts and other infation about us by enrolling your email by visititig
“E-mail Alerts” section at http://investor.mysparsbs.com/.

The foregoing information regarding our website @adontent is for convenience only. The contdriuw
website is not deemed to be incorporated by refer@mto this report nor should it be deemed to Haeen filed witt
the SEC.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Investors should carefully consider the risks digsa below and all other information in this AnniRgport on
Form 1(-K. The risks and uncertainties described belowrasethe only ones that we face. Additional riskd a
uncertainties not presently known to us or thattwerently deem immaterial may also impair our besis and
operations. If any of the following risks actuatlgcur, our business, financial condition, cash 8aw results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Business
We may be unable to attract and retain members, aihiould have a negative effect on our business.

The performance of our clubs is highly dependempamability to attract and retain members, andwes not
be successful in these efforts. Most of our membanscancel their club membership at any time undgdain
circumstances. In addition, there are numerousfacthat have in the past and could in the futeael to a decline
membership levels at established clubs or thatdcprdvent us from increasing our membership at nelubs,
including a decline in our ability to deliver quglservice at a competitive cost, the presencearettdand indirect
competition in the areas in which the clubs arated, the public’s interest in sports and fitndabsand general
economic conditions.

Recent negative economic conditions, includingeased unemployment levels and decreased consumer
confidence, have resulted in significant pressaresdeclines in economic growth. These conditiang&tand in the
future could lead to reduced consumer spending.dapressed economic and consumer environmenyoens
and businesses may postpone spending in respotighter credit, negative financial news and/orlighes in
income or asset values, which could have a mateeigdtive effect on the demand for our servicesproducts and
such decline in demand may continue as the ecormmmiynues to struggle and disposable income decli@¢éher
factors that could influence demand include inogsas fuel and other energy costs, conditions énrésidential real
estate and mortgage markets, labor and healthoatg, @ccess to credit, consumer confidence ared oth
macroeconomic factors affecting consumer spendaigbior. The recent challenges in the global ecgnmay
materially adversely affect our business and ouemaes and profits. As a result of these factoesnbership levels
might not be adequate to maintain our operatiomsiaent levels or permit the expansion of our afiens.

In addition, to the extent our corporate clients adversely affected by negative economic condititmey may
decide, as part of expense reduction strategiesirtail or cancel club membership benefits proditietheir
respective employees. Any reductions in corporaenbrerships may lead to membership cancellatiomgeasannot
assure that employees of corporate customers abbge to continue their memberships without empleybsidies
A decline in membership levels may have a matedakrse effect on our business, financial conditiesults of
operations and cash flows. We ended 2009 with 24&& net members compared to 2008, a declinevihat
attribute, in large part, to negative economic étmas during 2009. In 2010, we began to see sagres of
recovery and ended 2010 with 7,000 more memberpaced to the end of 2009 but at an overall lowerage
monthly dues rate.

Low consumer confidence levels, increased compatitind decreased spending could negatively impact o
financial position and result in club closures arfiked asset and goodwill impairments.

In the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009losedcone club and nine clubs, respectively, and
recognized $3.3 million and $6.7 million of fixedset impairments, respectively. While there wergaadwill
impairments in 2010 and 2009, we have in the pgstrgenced goodwill impairments due to decreasechbeeship
Some of these closures and impairments were dligrgae part, to the current economic, consumerrenwaient, an
increased competition in areas in which our clybsrate. If the economic and consumer environmeng ¥e
deteriorate further or if we are unable to imprtive overall competitive position of our clubs, aperating
performance may continue to decline and we may teegcognize additional impairments of our longed assets
and goodwill and may be compelled to close addii@tubs. In addition, we cannot assure you thatwillebe able
to replace any of the revenue lost from these dicdgbs from our other clubs.
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Our geographic concentration heightens our exposuceadverse regional developmen

As of December 31, 2010, we operated 108 fitnagssdh the New York metropolitan market, 25 fitnekshs
in the Boston market, 18 fitness clubs in the Wagtun, D.C. market, six fitness clubs in the Prelatiia market
and three fitness clubs in Switzerland. Our gedgiaponcentration in the Northeast and Mid-Atlamégions and,
in particular, the New York area, heightens ourasxpe to adverse developments related to competamwell as
economic and demographic changes in these reglnsgeographic concentration might result in a matadvers
effect on our business, financial condition, cdetwv$ and results of operations in the future.

The level of competition in the fithess club indugtcould negatively impact our revenue growth and
profitability.

The fitness club industry is highly competitive arahtinues to become more competitive. In eachef t
markets in which we operate, we compete with ofitieess clubs, physical fithess and recreationeilifees
established by local governments, hospitals anahbsises for their employees, amenity and condomiriubs, the
YMCA and similar organizations and, to a certaiteex, with racquet and tennis and other athletibg| country
clubs, weight reducing salons and the home-used#trequipment industry. We also compete with other
entertainment and retail businesses for the discr@ty income in our target demographics. We migtitbe able to
compete effectively in the future in the marketsvinich we operate. Competitors include companiasahe larger
and have greater resources than us and they mayytkease markets to our detriment. These competitdnditions
may limit our ability to increase dues without ater&l loss in membership, attract new membersadindct and
retain qualified personnel. Additionally, consolida in the fitness club industry could result mtieased
competition among participants, particularly langelti-facility operators that are able to compeiedttractive
acquisition candidates or newly constructed cluations, thereby increasing costs associated wjihresion
through both acquisitions and lease negotiationraatlestate availability for newly constructediclacations.

The number of competitor clubs that offer lowecjmy and a lower level of service continue to giowur
markets. These clubs have attracted, and may canttattract, members away from both our fitnasy-clubs an
our multi-recreational clubs, particularly in theérent consumer environment. Furthermore, smafidrlass
expensive weight loss facilities present a comipetilternative for consumers.

We also face competition from competitors offeraagnparable or higher pricing with higher levelssefvice.
The trend to larger outer-suburban, multi-recrestidamily fitness centers, in areas where suitadée estate is
more likely to be available, also compete againstsoburban, fitness-only models.

In addition, large competitors could enter the arbaarkets in which we operate to open a chainufsin
these markets through one, or a series of, aciquisit

Our trademarks and trade names may be infringed sappropriated or challenged by others.

We believe our brand names and related intellegggerty are important to our continued success SBEK tc
protect our trademarks, trade names and othetdote&l property by exercising our rights underlaale
trademark and copyright laws. If we were to faistacessfully protect our intellectual propertyhtgyfor any
reason, it could have an adverse effect on ounkasij results of operations and financial condithary damage to
our reputation could cause membership levels ttrdeand make it more difficult to attract new mesnd

If we are unable to identify and acquire suitablées for new clubs, our revenue growth rate and fite may be
negatively impacted.

To successfully expand our business over the lemg,twe must identify and acquire sites that meetite
selection criteria we have established. In additifinding sites with the right geographical, dgraphic and other
measures we employ in our selection process, wenalsd to evaluate the penetration of our compstitothe
market. We face competition from other health atrebés center operators for sites that meet oteriiand as a
result, we may lose those sites, our competitousdccopy our format or we could be forced to paghleir prices for
those sites. If we are unable to identify and aegsites for new clubs on attractive terms, ouenexe growth rate
and profits may be negatively impacted. Additiopaifl our analysis of the suitability of a siteifeorrect, we may
not be able to recover our capital investment wettgping and building the new club.
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We may experience prolonged periods of losses inreaently opened clubs

Upon opening a club, we typically experience atidhperiod of club operating losses. Enrolimewnirpre-
sold memberships typically generates insufficiewenue for the club to initially generate positdeesh flow. As a
result, a new club typically generates an operdtsg in its first full year of operations and stapgially lower
margins in its second full year of operations thariub opened for more than 24 months. These dpgratsses and
lower margins will negatively impact our future uéis of operations. This negative impact will bergased by the
initial expensing of pre-opening costs, which imddegal and other costs associated with leasetindgos and
permitting and zoning requirements, as well as@gption and amortization expenses, which willHartnegatively
impact net income. We may, at our discretion, azeté or expand our plans to open new clubs, winiaj
temporarily adversely affect results from operagidiVe have opened a total of four new club locatiarthe
24-month period ended December 31, 2010.

We could be subject to claims related to healthsafety risks at our clubs.

Use of our clubs poses some potential health etysaks to members or guests through physicattiexeand
use of our services and facilities, including eisr@quipment. Claims might be asserted againfstrusjury
suffered by, or death of members or guests whitga@sing at a club. We might not be able to sudodigsiefend
such claims. As a result, we might not be able &ntain our general liability insurance on accefgdérms in the
future or maintain a level of insurance that woplldvide adequate coverage against potential claims.

Depending upon the outcome, these matters maydenaerial effect on our consolidated financialipas,
results of operations and cash flows.

Security and privacy breaches may expose us tallitgtand cause us to lose customers.

Federal and state law requires us to safeguardusiomers’ financial information, including credérd
information. Although we have established secysitycedures and protocol, including credit card sidu
compliance procedures, to protect against idettigft and the theft of our customers’ financiabimhation, our
security and testing measures may not preventisgtmeaches and breaches of our customers’ privay occur,
which could harm our business. For example, a Bagmit number of our users provide us with creditdcand other
confidential information and authorize us to Hileir credit card accounts directly for our produantsl services.
Typically, we rely on encryption and authenticattenhnology licensed from third parties to enhamnaesmission
security of confidential information. Advances iongputer capabilities, new discoveries in the figlaryptography,
inadequate facility security or other developmengy result in a compromise or breach of the tedmolsed by u
to protect customer data. Any compromise of ouusgccould harm our reputation or financial coiatit and,
therefore, our business. In addition, a party vehalile to circumvent our security measures or édjpladequacies
in our security measures, could, among other effestsappropriate proprietary information, caugerimiptions in
our operations or expose customers to computesesror other disruptions. Actual or perceived wahiities may
lead to claims against us. To the extent the measue have taken prove to be insufficient or inadég; we may
become subject to litigation or administrative sams, which could result in significant fines, jpdties or damages
and harm to our reputation.

Loss of key personnel and/or failure to attract anetain highly qualified personnel could make it me difficult
for us to develop our business and enhance our fig@l performance.

We are dependent on the continued services ofemiosmanagement team, particularly Robert Giarditaef
Executive Officer; Daniel Gallagher, Chief Finand@dficer; and Martin Annese, Chief Operating Offic We
believe the loss of such key personnel could havaterial adverse effect on us and our financidiopmance.
Currently, we do not have any long-term employnagreements with our executive officers, and we naybe
able to attract and retain sufficient qualifiedgmmel to meet our business needs.

Terrorism and the uncertainty of armed conflicts mdave a material adverse effect on clubs and operating
results.

Terrorist attacks, such as the attacks that ocgunrélew York City and Washington, D.C. on Septembl
2001, and other acts of violence or war may affteetmarkets in which we operate, our operatingltesu the
market on which our common stock trades. Our ggafgcaconcentration in the major cities in the Nedht and
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Mid-Atlantic regions and, in particular, the New rkaCity and Washington, D.C. areas, heightens g&posure to
any such future terrorist attacks, which may adslgraffect our clubs and result in a decrease mrexenues. The
potential near-term and long-term effect theseckftanay have for our members, the markets for erices and
the market for our common stock are uncertain; hvarneheir occurrence can be expected to furthgatieely
affect the United States economy generally andifpaity the regional markets in which we operafbe
consequences of any terrorist attacks or any anuoeflicts are unpredictable; and we may not be thferesee
events that could have an adverse effect on olndss

Disruptions and failures involving our informatiorsystems could cause customer dissatisfaction anceaskely
affect our billing and other administrative functies.

The continuing and uninterrupted performance ofioformation systems is critical to our success. We a
fully-integrated information system to sell memlbéps, bill our members, track and analyze salesma@hbership
statistics, the frequency and timing of member watk, cross-club utilization, member life, valuedad services
and demographic profiles by member. This system adsists us in evaluating staffing needs and progfferings.
We believe that, without investing in enhancemehis,system is approaching the end of its lifedley@/e expect t
use our existing enterprise management enterpyitera for a period of one to two years while weleseother
options. Correcting any disruptions or failurest thifiected our proprietary system could be diffictime-consumin
and expensive because we would need to use cadrashsultants familiar with our system.

Any failure of our current system could also causéo lose members and adversely affect our busies
results of operations. Our members may becometiied by any systems disruption or failure theerrupts our
ability to provide our services to them. Disrupsar failures that affect our billing and other adistrative
functions could have an adverse affect on our diperaesults.

We are in the process of moving our data centarttord party co-location site. This move, togetiwéh other
infrastructure changes are being undertaken tonaceamate our growth, provide network redundancytebet
manage telecommunications and data costs, inceffisiencies in operations and improve managemeéati o
components of our technical architecture. Firepdlg earthquakes, power loss, telecommunicatidhsda, break-
ins, acts of terrorism and similar events could dgenour systems. In addition, computer virusestmeic break-
ins or other similar disruptive problems could adstversely affect our sites. Any system disruptiofailure,
security breach or other damage that interruptietays our operations could cause us to lose manti@mage our
reputation, and adversely affect our business asualts of operations.

The opening of new clubs by us in existing locat®may negatively impact our comparable club revenue
increases and our operating margins.

We currently operate clubs throughout the NorthaadtMid-Atlantic regions of the United States. We
currently have two clubs for which we have sigrese commitments in existing markets, with plan@ehings of
these clubs in the second half of 2011. In the oasgisting markets, our experience has beenapabing new
clubs may attract some memberships away from @ibbs already operated by us in those markets emnishigh
their revenues. In addition, as a result of new dpenings in existing markets and because oldésaill
represent an increasing proportion of our club loase time, our mature club revenue increases radgwer in
future periods than in the past.

Another result of opening new clubs is that oubadperating margins may be lower than they have bee
historically while the clubs build a membershipda#/e expect both the addition of pre-opening egpsrand the
lower revenue volumes characteristic of newly operiabs to affect our club operating margins aséheew clubs.

Our growth could place strains on our managemenmgoyees, information systems and internal controls
which may adversely impact our business.

Over the past five years, we have experienced growbur business activities and operations, inolg@n
increase in the number of our clubs. Future expansill place increased demands on our adminisati
operational, financial and other resources. Anlpfaito manage growth effectively could seriousyrh our
business. To be successful, we will need to coattouimprove management information systems anaperating,
administrative, financial and accounting systents @mtrols. We will also need to train new emplsyaad
maintain close coordination among our executivepanting, finance, marketing, sales and operations
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functions. These processes are time-consuming>grehsive, increase management responsibilitie st
management attention.

Our cash and cash equivalents are concentrated isnaall number of banks.

Our cash and cash equivalents are held, primamilg,small number of commercial banks. These dépase
not collateralized. In the event these banks bedaswvent, we would be unable to recover mostwfaash and
cash equivalents deposited at the banks. Cashaaidegjuivalents held in a small number of commEbeiaks as of
December 31, 2010 totaled $22.1 million. During@0h any one month, this amount has been as kigh a
$30.0 million.

Because of the capital-intensive nature of our bnsss, we may have to incur additional indebtednesssue
new equity securities and, if we are not able tdaib additional capital, our ability to operate axpand our
business may be impaired and our results of opeyas could be adversely affected.

Our business requires significant levels of capadinance the development of additional sitesrfew clubs
and the construction of our clubs. If cash fromilatde sources is insufficient or unavailable doedstrictive credit
markets, or if cash is used for unanticipated ne@dsmay require additional capital sooner thaicgated. In the
event that we are required or choose to raiseiadditfunds, we may be unable to do so on favoradstas or at all.
Furthermore, the cost of debt financing could digantly increase, making it cost-prohibitive tortmw, which
could force us to issue new equity securities.dfigsue new equity securities, existing sharehsldety experience
additional dilution or the new equity securitiesyniave rights, preferences or privileges senidhtse of existing
holders of common stock. If we cannot raise fundaaceptable terms, we may not be able to executeusrent
growth plans, take advantage of future opportusitierespond to competitive pressures. Any inaghiditraise
additional capital when required could have an esheffect on our business plans and operatindtsesu

We may incur rising costs related to constructiohreew clubs and maintaining our existing clubs. ¥fe are not
able to pass these cost increases through to oumipers, our returns may be adversely affected.

Our clubs require significant upfront investmefibur investment is higher than we had plannedmag need
to outperform our operational plan to achieve angéted return. Over the longer term, we beliea¢we can offset
cost increases by increasing our membership duksther fees and improving profitability througtsto
efficiencies; however, higher costs in certain oegiwhere we are opening new clubs during any geridime may
be difficult to offset in the short-term.

We may be required to remit unclaimed property tates for unused, expired personal training sesson

We recognize revenue from personal training sessasrthe services are performed (i.e., when trecses
trained). Unused personal training sessions exfies a set, disclosed period of time after puretsasd are not
refundable or redeemable by the member for cash.State of New York has informed us that it is édesng
whether we are required to remit the amount reckbyeus for unused, expired personal training sessio the Sta
of New York as unclaimed property. As of Decembkr2010, we had approximately $11.7 million of wedisnd
expired personal training sessions that had nat be@gnized as revenue and recorded as deferredue. We do
not believe that these amounts are subject todtieeatment or abandoned property laws of any jatied,
including the State of New York. However, it is pilide that one of these jurisdictions may not agvitke our
position and may claim that we must remit all qrostion of these amounts to such jurisdiction. fhoee of our
jurisdictions, we concluded, based on opinions fautside counsel, that monies held by a companuriased an
expired personal training sessions are not esdhleatas a result, the Company has removed apprdeigna
$2.7 million from deferred revenue, of which approately $570,000 related to expired sessions tlwadvhave
been recognized the year ended December 31, 268d0eaorded such amount as personal training revemihe
fourth quarter of 2010.

Our growth and profitability could be negatively ipacted if we are unable to renew or replace our @nt club
leases on favorable terms, or at all, and we canfiot suitable alternate locations.

We currently lease substantially all of our fithek#b locations pursuant to long-term leases (gHlyet5 to
25 years, including option periods). During thetrfese years, or the period from January 1, 20¥dbulh
December 31, 2015, we have leases for six clubiimtathat are due to expire without any renewdibog and 39
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club locations that are due to expire with renesglons. For leases with renewal options, sevdrdiem provide
for our unilateral option to renew for additionahtal periods at specific rental rates (for examipdsed on the
consumer price index or stated renewal terms ajreatin the leases) or based on the fair marketaisthe locatiol
Our ability to negotiate favorable terms on an grpilease or to negotiate favorable terms on kast renewal
options, or conversely for a suitable alternatatimn, could depend on conditions in the real estadrket,
competition for desirable properties and our retaghips with current and prospective landlords ay mepend on
other factors that are not within our control. Amyall of these factors and conditions could negdyiimpact our
growth and profitability.

Risks Related to Our Leverage and Our Indebtedness

On February 27, 2007, the Company entered intc68.$2million senior secured credit facility (theD@7
Senior Credit Facility”). The 2007 Senior CredicHidy consists of a $185.0 million term loan famil(the “Term
Loan Facility”) and originally consisted of a $75tllion revolving credit facility (the “Revolving.oan Facility”).
On July 15, 2009, the total amount of borrowingdanthe Revolving Loan Facility was reduced by 1f56m
$75.0 million to $63.8 million.

We may be negatively affected by economic condgionthe United States and key international market

We must maintain liquidity to fund our working ctadj service our outstanding indebtedness and é@man
investment opportunities. Without sufficient liqitid we could be forced to curtail our operatiomsve may not be
able to pursue new business opportunities. If ourent resources do not satisfy our liquidity regoients, we may
have to seek additional financing. The principalrses of our liquidity are funds generated fromrafirg activities
available cash and cash equivalents and borrowinder our $63.8 million Revolving Loan Facility, anended.

The capital and credit markets have been experignalatility and disruption in the recent past. dAgesult,
one or more of our current lenders could experidimaacial difficulty, and as a result fail to piide the required
lending amounts under our 2007 Credit Agreemerthi¢fshould occur, we may need to seek additifinahcing
from other sources. The availability of financindl\wepend on a variety of factors, such as ecoeamnid market
conditions, the availability of credit and our dtedtings, as well as the possibility that lendessld develop a
negative perception of the prospects of our commarifie fitness industry in general. We may noablke to
successfully obtain any necessary additional fimanon favorable terms, or financing altogether.

Economic conditions, both domestic and foreign, mfgct our financial performance. Prevailing ecoino
conditions, including unemployment levels, inflatj@vailability of credit, energy costs and othercno-economic
factors, as well as uncertainty about future ecdn@wonditions, adversely affect consumer spendimd) a
consequently, our business and results of operation

Our leverage may impair our financial condition, @ahwe may incur significant additional debt.

We currently have a substantial amount of debtofABecember 31, 2010, our total consolidated dedst w
$316.5 million. Our substantial debt could have amt@gnt consequences, including:

« making it more difficult for us to satisfy our oféitions with respect to our outstanding indebtesl
« increasing our vulnerability to general adverseneooic and industry condition

« limiting our ability to obtain additional fimeing to fund future working capital, capital expéares,
acquisitions of clubs and other general corporatgiirements

e requiring a substantial portion of our casgiwfifrom operations for the payment of interest anaebt, which
is variable on our 2007 Senior Credit Facility anol Revolving Loan Facility, and/or principal puasti to
excess cash flow requirements and reducing outyatmluse our cash flow to fund working capitapdal
expenditures and acquisitions of new clubs and rgéoerporate requirement

« limiting our ability to refinance our existing inbiedness on favorable terms, or at all;

« limiting our flexibility in planning for, oreacting to, changes in our business and the indumstrhich we
operate
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These limitations and consequences may placeais@npetitive disadvantage to other less-leveraged
competitors.

The indenture governing our 11% Senior DiscouneNatue in 2014 (“Senior Discount Notes”) will petrons
and our subsidiaries to incur substantial additioeht, subject to compliance with provisions af thdenture. In
addition, as of December 31, 2010, we had $53.0omibf unutilized borrowings under our senior sexl
revolving credit facility. If new debt is addeddar and our subsidiariesurrent debt levels, the related risks thai
and they currently face could intensify.

We may not be able to re-finance our debt at currégvels and interest rates.

Our Term Loan Facility matures on the earlier dbfeary 27, 2014, or August 1, 2013 if the Senicsddunt
Notes are still outstanding as of that date. Intamd our Revolving Loan Facility will mature ineruary 2012. Ot
Senior Discount Notes will mature in 2014. We expgecefinance our outstanding indebtedness uridsret
arrangements with new indebtedness prior to thatunty dates. The availability of refinancing wiépend on a
variety of factors, such as economic and marketlitioms, business operations and financial perforceaour
leverage, the availability of credit and our crediings, as well as the lenders’ perception ofptfeespects of our
company or our industry generally. We may not be &tosuccessfully obtain any necessary refinanoimg
favorable terms, including interest rates and faiarand other covenants, or at all. In that event,business and
financial condition may be materially adverselyeated.

We may not have access to the cash flow and ottssets of our subsidiaries that may be needed toenak
payments on our outstanding Indebtedness.

Our operations are conducted through our subsédiamd our ability to make payments on our outstand
Senior Discount Notes is dependent on the earrdndghe distribution of funds from our subsidiaridswever,
none of our subsidiaries are obligated to makediailable to us for payment on our outstanding@eDiscount
Notes. In addition, the terms of the 2007 Creditefggnent governing the 2007 Senior Credit Facilgyiicantly
restrict TSI, LLC and its subsidiaries from payitigidends and otherwise transferring assets té-ughermore, o
subsidiaries are permitted under the terms of @0¥ Zredit Agreement and the indenture governingSauior
Discount Notes to incur additional indebtedness ittey severely restrict or prohibit the making @ftdbutions, the
payment of dividends or the making of loans by sadbsidiaries to us.

We cannot assure that the agreements governirguthent and future indebtedness of our subsidiaviks
permit our subsidiaries to provide TSI, LLC withfgzient dividends, distributions or loans to fuadheduled
interest and principal payments on the 2007 Crkglieement when due.

Covenant restrictions under our indebtedness manitiour ability to operate our business and, in suan
event, we may not have sufficient assets to settlieindebtedness.

The indenture governing our Senior Discount Nafes 2007 Credit Agreement and certain of our other
agreements regarding our indebtedness contain,@otber things, covenants that may restrict ouitaho finance
future operations or capital needs or to engagghar business activities and that may impact oilitaand the
ability of our restricted subsidiaries to:

* borrow money

» pay dividends or make distributior
* purchase or redeem stot

* make investments and extend cre
< engage in transactions with affiliate
< engage in sa-leaseback transactior
e consummate certain asset sa

« effect a consolidation or merger or sell, sf@n, lease or otherwise dispose of all or subistinall of our
assets; an

« create liens on our asse
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In addition, the 2007 Credit Agreement requiresGoenpany, on a consolidated basis, to maintaireaipd
financial ratio and satisfy certain financial caimh tests that may require us to take action tluce our debt or to
act in a manner contrary to our business objectiVks 2007 Credit Agreement requires the Compamyg o
consolidated basis, to maintain a maximum totaddage ratio not greater than 4.25:1.00 of consiaitia
indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA, as definetthén?007 Credit Agreement. As of December 31, 20E0were
in compliance with such ratio test, with a ratic?a$3:1.00.

Events beyond our control, including changes iregglneconomic and business conditions, may affect o
ability to meet certain financial ratios and fineddcondition tests. We may be unable to meet thests and the
lenders may decide not to waive any failure to nieese tests. A breach of any of these covenantddwesult in a
default under the indenture governing our Senigcbiint Notes and the 2007 Credit Agreement. Ifvamieof
default under the 2007 Credit Agreement occurslehders could elect to declare all amounts ouditan
thereunder, together with accrued interest, tarbmediately due and payable. In the event of defader the
indenture governing our Senior Discount Notes,nibie holders could elect to declare due all amooutstanding
thereunder, together with accrued interest. If sugh event should occur, we might not have sufiicéssets to pay
our indebtedness and meet our other obligations.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None

Item 2. Properties

We own our 151 East 86th Street location, whichskesia fitness club and a retail tenant that gesdrat
approximately $2.0 million of rental income for fias the year ended December 31, 2010. We leasethainder o
our fitness clubs pursuant to long-term leasesdiggly 15 to 25 years, including options). In trextifive years, or
the period from January 1, 2011 through DecembgePB15, we have leases for six club locations dnatdue to
expire without any renewal options and 39 club fioces that are due to expire with renewal optidRsnewal
options include terms for rental increases basetth®wconsumer price index, fair market rates dedteenewal
terms already set in the lease agreements. Weplelase one of the clubs without renewal optionsdndeavor to
extend the leases or relocate the clubs or its meship base if appropriate for the remaining clubs.

We lease approximately 36,400 square feet of offfiace in New York City and have smaller regiorifites
in Fairfax, VA and Boston, MA, for administrativacgeneral corporate purposes. We plan to clos@boer
corporate locations in Manhattan of approximat€ly000 square feet in March 2011 at the end ofehed term and
relocate those employees to an existing Manhatizatibn. We also lease warehouse and commercie¢éspa
Brooklyn, NY for storage purposes.

We lease approximately 82,000 square feet in ElrdstéY for the operation of a centralized laundagifity
for New York Sports Clubs offering towel servicadafor construction and equipment storage. Thisspaplaced
laundry facility of 14,000 square feet in Queeny,iN 2009. This space also serves as corporateeo$ipace and
replaced approximately 10,800 square feet of catpasffice space in Manhattan. Total square footatgded to th:
laundry facility is 42,000 and total square footaglated to the corporate office and warehouseesjza40,000.

The following table provides information regardiogr club locations:

Date Opened or Management

Location Address Assumed

New York Sports Clubs:
Manhattar 151 East 86th Stre January 197
Manhattar 61 West 62nd Stre: July 1983
Manhattar 614 Second Avenu July 1986
Manhattar 151 Reade Stre: January 199
Manhattar 1601 Broadwa September 199
Manhattar 349 East 76th Stre April 1994
Manhattar 248 West 80th Stre: May 1994
Manhattar 502 Park Avenu February 199!
Manhattar 117 Seventh Avenue Sou March 199t
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Date Opened or Management

Location Address Assumed
Manhattar 303 Park Avenue Sou December 199
Manhattar 30 Wall Stree May 1996
Manhattar 1635 Third Avenue October 199¢
Manhattar 575 Lexington Avenu November 199t
Manhattar 278 Eighth Avenur December 199
Manhattar 200 Madison Avenu February 199
Manhattar 2162 Broadwa November 199°
Manhattar 633 Third Avenue April 1998
Manhattar 1657 Broadwa July 1998
Manhattar 217 Broadway March 199¢
Manhattar 23 West 73rd Stre¢ April 1999
Manhattar 34 West 14th Stre: July 1999
Manhattar 503-511 Broadway July 1999
Manhattar 1372 Broadwa October 199¢
Manhattar 300 West 125th Stre: May 2000
Manhattar 19 West 44th Stre« August 200(C
Manhattar 128 Eighth Avenut December 200
Manhattar 2527 Broadwa August 2001
Manhattar 3 Park Avenut August 2001
Manhattar 10 Irving Place November 200:
Manhattar 160 Water Stree November 200:
Manhattar 230 West 41st Stre November 200:
Manhattar 1221 Avenue of the Americi January 200
Manhattar 200 Park Avenu December 200
Manhattar 232 Mercer Stree September 200
Manhattar 225 Varick Stree August 200¢
Manhattar 885 Second Avenu February 200°
Manhattar 301 West 145th Stre October 200°
Manhattar 1400 5th Avenut December 200
Bronx, NY 1601 Bronxdale Avenu November 200°
Brooklyn, NY 110 Boerum Plac October 198!
Brooklyn, NY 1736 Shore Parkwe June 199¢
Brooklyn, NY 179 Remsen Stre May 2001
Brooklyn, NY 324 Ninth Stree August 200:
Brooklyn, NY 1630 E 15th Stree August 2007
Brooklyn, NY 7118 Third Avenu May 2004
Brooklyn, NY 439 86th Stree April 2008
Queens, NY 69-33 Austin Stree April 1997
Queens, NY 155-67 A Cross Island Parkwz June 199¢
Queens, NY 285¢€-2861 Steinway Stre: February 200:
Queens, NY 8000 Cooper Avenu March 2007
Queens, NY 99-01 Queens Bouleval June 200°
Queens, NY 39-01 Queens Blvi December 200
Staten Island, N 300 West Service Roz June 199¢

Scarsdale, N
Mamaroneck, NY
Crotor-on-HudsonNY
Larchmont, NY

696 White Plains Roa
124 Palmer Avenu

420 South Riverside Driv
15 Madison Avenu
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Date Opened or Management

Location Address Assumed
Nanuet, NY 58 Demarest Mill Roa May 1998
Great Neck, NY 15 Barstow Roa July 1989

East Meadow, N\
Commack, NY
Oceanside, N\
Long Beach, NY
Garden City, NY
Huntington, NY
Syosset, NY
West Nyack, NY
Woodmere, NY
Hartsdale, NY
Somers, NY

Port Jefferson Station, N

White Plains, NY
Hawthorne, NY
Dobbs Ferry, NY
Smithtown, NY
Carmel, NY
Hicksville, NY
New Rochelle, NY
Deer Park, NY
Garnerville, NY
Stamford, CT
Danbury, CT
Stamford, CT
Greenwich, C1
Westport, CT
Greenwich, C1
West Hartford, C1
Princeton, N.
Matawan, N.
Marlboro, NJ
Ramsey, N.
Mahwah, N
Springfield, NJ
Colonia, NJ
Somerset, N
Hoboken, N.
West Caldwell, N.
Jersey City, N.
Newark, NJ
Ridgewood, N.
Westwood, N.
Livingston, NJ
Princeton, N.
Hoboken, N.
Englewood, N.

625 Merrick Avenue
6136 Jericho Turnpik
2909 Lincoln Avenu
265 East Park Avent
833 Franklin Avenu
350 New York Avenut
49 Ira Roac

3656 Palisades Center Dri
158 Irving Stree

208 E. Hartsdale Avent
Somers Commons, 80 Routt
200 Wilson Stree

4 City Centel

24 Saw Mill River Roar
50 Livingstone Avenu

5 Browns Roat(

1880 Route ¢

100 Duffy Avenue
Trump Plaza, Huguenot Stre
455 Commack Avenu
20 W. Ramapo Rosa

106 Commerce Roe

38 Mill Plain Roac

1063 Hope Stre

6 Liberty Way

427 Post Road, Ea

1 Fawcett Plac

65 Memorial Roat

301 North Harrison Stre:
450 Route 3¢

34 Route 9 Nortl

1100 Route 17 Nort

7 Leighton Placi

215 Morris Avenue

1250 Route 2

120 Cedar Grove Lar
59 Newark Stree

913 Bloomfield Avenut

147 Two Harborside Financial Cen

1 Gateway Cente

129 S. Broad Stre

35 Jefferson Avenu

39 W. North Field Rd
4250 Route 1 Nort
210 14th Stree

34-36 South Dean Stre
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January 199
January 199
May 1999

July 1999

May 2000
February 200:
March 2001
February 200:
March 2002
September 200
February 200!
July 2005
September 200
January 200
June 200¢
December 200
July 2007
November 200t
March 200€
March 200¢
Future Opening
Reopened February 20
January 199
November 199t
May 1999
January 200;
February 200:
November 200°
May 1997

April 1998
April 1998
June 199¢
June 199¢
August 199¢
August 199¢
August 199¢
October 199¢
April 1999
June 200:
October 200:
June 200
June 200¢
February 200!
April 2005
December 200
December 200
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Date Opened or Management

25

Location Address Assumed
Clifton, NJ 202 Main Avenug March 2007
Montclair, NJ 56 Church Stree January 200
Butler, NJ 1481 Route 2. January 200!
East Brunswick, N 300 State Route 1 March 200¢
Bayonne, N. 550 Route 440 Nort Future Openin(

Boston Sports Clubs:
Boston, MA 1 Bulfinch Place August 199¢
Boston, MA 201 Brookline Avenur June 200(
Boston, MA 361 Newbury Stree November 200:
Boston, MA 350 Washington Stre February 200:
Boston, MA 505 Boylston Stree January 200
Boston, MA 560 Harrison Avenu February 200t
Boston, MA 695 Atlantic Avenue October 200t
Allston, MA 15 Gorham Stree July 1997
Weymouth, MA 553 Washington Stre May 1999
Wellesley, MA 140 Great Plain Avent July 2000
Andover, MA 307 Lowell Stree July 2000
Lynnfield, MA 425 Walnut Stree July 2000
Lexington, MA 475 Bedford Avenu July 2000
Franklin, MA 750 Union Stree July 2000
Cambridge, MA 625 Massachusetts Aven January 200.
West Newton, MA 1359 Washington Stre November 200:
Waltham, MA 840 Winter Stree November 200:
Watertown, MA 311 Arsenal Stree January 200
Newton, MA 135 Wells Avenue August 200¢
Somerville, MA 1 Davis Squar December 200
Medford, MA 70 Station Landiny December 200
Westborough, M#£ 1500 Union Stree September 200
Woburn, MA 300 Presidential Wa December 200
Providence, R 131 Pittman Stree December 200
Providence, R 10 Dorrance Stre¢ January 200!
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Location

Address

Date Opened or Management

Assumed

Washington Sports Clubs:
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.
North Bethesda, MI
Germantown, MLC
Silver Spring, MD
Bethesda, ML
Alexandria, VA
Fairfax, VA
West Springfield, VA
Clarendon, VA

Philadelphia Sports Clubs:

Philadelphia, P/
Philadelphia, P/
Chalfont, PA
Philadelphia, P/
Ardmore, PA
Radnor, PA

Swiss Sports Clubs
Basel, Switzerlan
Zurich, Switzerlanc
Basel, Switzerlan

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

214 D Street, S.E

1835 Connecticut Avenue, N.\
2251 Wisconsin Avenue, N.V
1211 Connecticut Avenue, N.\
1345 F Street, N.\

5345 Wisconsin Ave., N.\
1990 K Street, N.W

783 Seventh Street, N.\

3222 M Street, N.W

14th Street, N.W

10400 Old Georgetown Ro:i
12623 Wisteria Drivt

8506 Fenton Stres

6800 Wisconsin Avenu

3654 King Stree

11001 Lee Highwa

8430 Old Keene Mil

2700 Clarendon Bouleva

220 South 5th Stre:

2000 Hamilton Stree

One Highpoint Drive
1735 Market Stree

34 W. Lancaster Avent
555 East Lancaster Aven

St. Johanr-Vorstadt 41
Glarnischstrasse
Gellerstrasse 23

January 198
January 199
May 1994

July 2000
August 200z
February 200:
February 200:
October 200
February 200!
June 200¢
June 199¢

July 1998
November 200!
November 200°
June 199¢
October 199¢
September 200
November 200:

January 199
July 1999
January 200!
October 200(
March 2002
December 200

August 1987
August 1987
August 2001

On or about March 1, 2005, in an action sty&dah Cruz, et al v. Town Sports International /afdew York
Sports Club plaintiffs commenced a purported class actionregahe Company in the Supreme Court, New York
County, seeking unpaid wages and alleging that MIST, violated various overtime provisions of thevN¥ork
State Labor Law with respect to the payment of wagecertain trainers and assistant fithess marsa@er or about
June 18, 2007, the same plaintiffs commenced anslgmorported class action against the CompanyeirStipreme
Court of the State of New York, New York Countyekimg unpaid wages and alleging that TSI, LLC vieth
various wage payment and overtime provisions ofNbe York State Labor Law with respect to the pagtred
wages to all New York purported hourly employees.S&ptember 17, 2010, the Company made motionsitauss
the class action allegations of both lawsuits faintiffs’ failure to timely file motions to certfthe class actions.
Oral argument on the motions occurred on NovemBeRQ10. While we are unable at this time to edtntlae
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome or the potalntiss to the Company in the event of such anomné; we
intend to contest these cases vigorously. Depengiog the ultimate outcome, these matters may hawaterial
adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated filmhposition, results of operations, or cash flows.

On September 14, 2009, the Staff of the SEC adits=@€ompany that a formal order of private ingesion
had been issued with respect to the Company. $itage2008, the Company had been providing docuremds
testimony on a voluntary basis in response to fornimal inquiry by the Staff of the SEC, which priritarelated to
the deferral of certain payroll costs incurred @migection with the sale of memberships in the Comisahealth
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and fitness clubs and the time period utilizedhsy €ompany for the amortization of (i) such defeéests into
expense and (i) initiation fees into revenue. Qyvémber 29, 2010, the Company received a letten thee Staff of
the SEC stating that it has completed the inveitigaf the above-referenced accounting matterstlaatthe Staff
does not intend to recommend any enforcement abidhe SEC against the Company.

On September 22, 2009, in an action styledn Sports International, LLC v. Ajilon Solutigrs division of
Ajilon Professional Staffing LLC (Supreme Courtthé State of New York, New York County, 602911-0B3,
LLC brought an action in the Supreme Court of theteSof New York, New York County, against Ajiloarfbreach
of contract, conversion and replevin, seeking, agmuther things, money damages against Ajilon feabhing its
agreement to design and deliver to TSI, LLC a nparts club enterprise management system known BSGI
including failing to provide copies of the compuseurce code written for GIMS, related documentatroperly
identified requirements documents and other prgpasned and licensed by TSI, LLC. Subsequently, on
October 14, 2009, Ajilon brought a counterclaimiagaTSI, LLC alleging breach of contract, allegiagnong othe
things, failure to pay outstanding invoices in #meount of $2.9 million. The litigation is currenily the discovery
phase. We believe at this time the likelihood ofiafavorable outcome is not probable. The Compatgnids to
prosecute vigorously its claims against Ajilon aledend against Ajilon’s counterclaim.

On February 7, 2007, in an action stylathite Plains Plaza Realty, LLC v. TSI, LLC et, @he landlord of one
of TSI, LLC’s former health and fitness clubs filadawsuit in state court against it and two ohigslth club
subsidiaries alleging, among other things, breddbase in connection with the decision to closedlub located in
a building owned by the plaintiff and leased tabsidiary of TSI, LLC, and take additional spac¢hiea nearby
facility leased by another subsidiary of TSI, LLThe trial court granted the landlord damages ag#mtenant in
the amount of approximately $700,000, includingiest and costs (“Initial Award”). The landlord sehuently
appealed the trial cougt’award of damages, and on December 21, 2010pgedlae court reversed, in part, the t
court’s decision and ordered the case remanddukttrial court for an assessment of additional dpesaof
approximately $750,000 plus interest and costs“@delitional Award”). On February 7, 2011, the ldodi moved
for re-argument of the appellate court’s decisgreking additional damages plus attorneys’ fees.Additional
Award has not yet been entered as a judgment. Wetbelieve it is probable that TSI, LLC or anyitsf
subsidiaries will be held liable to pay for any ambof the Additional Award.

Separately, TSI, LLC is party to an agreement withird-party developer, which by its terms progide
indemnification for the full amount of any liabilibf any nature arising out of the lease descrademle, including
attorneys’ fees incurred to enforce the indemnityconnection with the Initial Award (and in furttaace of the
indemnification agreement), TSI, LLC and the depelohave entered into an agreement pursuant tdwite
developer has agreed to pay the amount of thalwitvard in installments over time. The indemnifioa
agreement will cover the Additional Award as andrifered by the court. If the third-party develofagls to honor
its indemnity obligation with respect to the Addital Award (or any amount awarded on further appa&&l LLC's
liability to the landlord may have a material acseeeffect on the Company’s consolidated finanaiaitpon, results
of operations, or cash flows.

In addition to the litigation discussed above, weiavolved in various other lawsuits, claims amdgeedings
incidental to the ordinary course of business udirlg personal injury and employee relations claifee
Note 13— Contingencies to the consolidated financial steets in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The resul
of litigation are inherently unpredictable. Anyioles against us, whether meritorious or not, co@ditme
consuming, result in costly litigation, requirersiigcant amounts of management time and resulitvardion of
significant resources. The results of these otd@slits, claims and proceedings cannot be predieitbdcertainty.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserve
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Mattersdaissuer Purchases of
Equity Securities
Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock currently trades on The NASDAQWaldViarket, under the symbol CLUB. The following
table sets forth, for each quarterly period inld®t two fiscal years, the high and low sales pri@e dollars per
share) of our common stock as quoted or reportethenlNASDAQ Global Market:

High Low

Year ended December 31, 20.
First Quartel $4.2C  $2.1¢
Second Quarte $4.24 $2.21
Third Quartel $2.94  $1.8¢
Fourth Quarte $4.35 $2.6

Year ended December 31, 20!
First Quarte! $3.4C  $1.4C
Second Quarte $4.9¢  $1.97
Third Quarte! $4.4¢  $2.3¢
Fourth Quarte $3.97  $1.9¢

Holders

As of February 22, 2011, there were approximat@iy@ders of record of our common stock. There are
additional holders who are not “holders of recdodt who beneficially own stock through nominee leotdsuch as
brokers and benefit plan trustees.

Dividend Policy

We intend to retain future earnings, if any, tafice the operation and expansion of our business@mot
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foraBksefuture. Consequently, stockholders will needell shares of
our common stock to realize a return on their itwesit, if any. No dividends were paid by the Compiarthe
fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

The terms of the indenture governing our Senioc@ist Notes and the 2007 Senior Credit Facility
significantly restrict the payment of dividendsum: Our subsidiaries are permitted under the tefrttze 2007
Senior Credit Facility (and under the indentureeyoing our Senior Discount Notes) to incur additilon
indebtedness that may severely restrict or proHikippayment of dividends by such subsidiariesstaQur
substantial leverage may impair our financial ctodiand we may incur significant additional defad “ltem 1A.
Risk Factors”).

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We did not purchase any equity securities durimgftturth quarter ended December 31, 2010.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not sell any securities during the year eridecember 31, 2010 that were not registered uhéer
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below compares the annual prg@eichange in our cumulative total stockholdarrret
with the cumulative total return of the Russell @@hd the NASDAQ composite indices.

COMPARISON OF 54 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Town Sports International Holdings, Inc, TW&SDAQ Composite Index
And The Russell 2000 Index
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* $100 invested on 6/2/06 in stock or 5/31/06 in lndecluding reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal yeading
December 31

December 31
June 2,
2006 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Town Sports International Holdings, | 100.0C 124.3¢ 72.1t 24.0¢ 17.5¢ 30.6¢
NASDAQ Composite 100.0¢ 112.5F 12557 74.31 107.9( 126.8¢
Russell 200( 100.0C 110.0¢ 108.3¢ 71.78 91.2¢ 115.7¢

Notes:

(1) The graph covers the period from June 2, 2006fitstetrading day of our common stock following duitial
Public Offering, to December 31, 20:

(2) The graph assumes that $100 was invested at tHeetdose on June 2, 2006 in our common stockyen t
Russell 2000 and in the NASDAQ composite indexesthat all dividends were reinveste

(3) No cash dividends have been declared on our consteak in the period covere

(4) Stockholder returns over the indicated period sthowok be considered indicative of future stockholé¢urns.

(5) We include a comparison against the Russell 208aus® there is no published industry or
line-of-businesdndex for our industry and we do not have a readéfinable peer group that is publicly trad

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fdrttany of our previous or future filings under tBecurities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchawegef 1934, as amended, that might incorporatestigrence
this Annual Report on Form 10-#¢ future filings made by the Company under thaéatites, the Stock Performar
Graph is not deemed filed with the Securities archange Commission, is not deemed soliciting nedtarid shall
not be deemed incorporated by reference into artlgaxfe prior filings or into any future filings
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made by the Company under those statutes, exctp txtent that the Company specifically incorpesasuch
information by reference into a previous or futtitimg, or specifically requests that such infornoat be treated as
soliciting material, in each case under those d&du

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA
(In thousands, except share, per share, club and mmbership data)

The selected consolidated balance sheet datalzeceinber 31, 2010 and 2009 and the selected cdatali
statement of operations and cash flow data foyé#aes ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 leavederive
from our audited consolidated financial statemémthided elsewhere herein. The selected consotidzdtance
sheet data as of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2@Dtha selected consolidated statement of opesaéind cash
flow data for the years ended December 31, 20072806 have been derived from our audited cons@itiat
financial statements not included herein. Othea daid club and membership data for all periodsetes have
been derived from our unaudited books and rec@ds historical results are not necessarily indieabf results for
any future period. You should read these seleaedalidated financial and other data, together tieh
accompanying notes, in conjunction with the “Maragat’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Comditand
Results of Operations” section of this Annual Reépmd our consolidated financial statements anddlaed notes
appearing at the end of this Annual Report.

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Statement of Operations Data
Revenue: $462,38° $485,39. $506,70¢ $472,91! $433,08(
Operating expense
Payroll and related(? 185,58: 193,89: 193,58( 177,35 162,70¢
Club operatin¢ 174,13! 178,85: 172,40¢ 156,66( 146,24:
General and administrati\ 28,77: 31,58 33,95: 35,09: 30,24¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 52,20: 56,53 52,47¢ 45,96¢ 40,85(
Impairment of fixed asse 3,25¢ 6,70¢ 3,861 — —
Impairment of interni-use softwart — 10,19¢ — — —
Goodwill impairment(2 — — 17,60¢ — —
Operating incom: 18,44( 7,62¢ 32,817 57,84 53,03(
Loss on extinguishment of debt( — — — 12,52: 16,11
Interest expense, net of interest incc 21,01: 20,96¢ 23,58 25,32¢ 33,37:

Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalrime (2,139 (1,87¢€) (2,307%) (1,799 (1,819
Net (loss) income before (benefit) provision

corporate income tax¢ (439 (11,469 11,54: 21,79: 5,362
(Benefit) provision for corporate income ta (144 (5,800 9,20/ 8,14 71E
Net (loss) incom $ (290 $ (5,66f) $ 2,337 $ 13,64t $ 4,647
(Loss) earnings per weighted average number of

shares

Basic $ (00) $ (025 $ 00 $ 052 $ 0.2

Diluted $ (00) $ (©25 $ 00 $ 051 $ o0.2
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Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalel

Working capital defici

Total asset

Long-term debt, including current installmel
Total stockholder (deficit) equity

Cash Flow Data:

Cash provided by (used ir
Operating activitie:
Investing activities
Financing activitie:

Other Data:

Non-cash rental expense, net of -cash rental incom

As of December 31,

Non-cash compensation expense incurred in connection

with stock options and common stock gre

Club and Membership Data:
New clubs opene
Clubs acquiret
Clubs closed or relocate
Wholly-owned clubs operated at end of pel
Total clubs operated at end of period
Members at end of period(
Comparable club revenue (decrease) increa
Revenue per weighted average

club (in thousands)(i
Average revenue per member
Average joining fees collected per membe
Annual attrition(10

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

$ 38,80: $ 10,75¢ $ 10,39¢ $ 546 $ 6,81C
(22,887)  (46,62) (67,21) (73,480 (58,366
464,16¢ 467,46¢ 511,63¢ 488,76 423,52°
316,51:  318,36:  338,01( 316,02 281,12
(6,945 (8,239 772 183 (17,829

Year Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

$51,23¢ $76,24. $95,62: $82,74¢ $75,12(
(22,039 (49,277 (95,108 (97,230 (67,11
(1,765 (26,769  4,19¢ 12,93 (52,59¢

(5,552 (2,499 (412) 50€ 1,76¢

1,33¢ 1,704 1,26¢ 91z 1,13¢

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

— 4 9 14 10

— — — 1 1

(1) 9) (4) €) (€)

15¢& 15¢ 164 15¢ 147

16C 161 16€ 161 14¢

493,00( 486,00( 510,00( 486,00( 453,00(
(4.39% (5.6)% 2.2% 5.2% 7.9%

$ 2,881 $ 2,95i $ 3,142 $ 3,158 $ 3,021

$ 947 $ 96¢ $ 99C $ 1,00 $ 982

$ 37 % 19 % 45 $ 69 $ 63

41.% 45.2% 40.2% 38.2% 36.1%

(1) In the year ended December 31, 2009, Payroll datekincludes a correction of an accounting enfc751
related to deferred membership costs. See Note'€errection of Accounting Errors” to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements in this Annugbdtefor further details

(2) Goodwill impairment testing requires a comparisetween the carrying value and fair value of eaploming

unit. If the carrying value exceeds the fair valgeodwill is considered impaired. The amount ofithpairmen
loss is measured as the difference between thgimguvalue and the implied fair value of goodwailhich is

determined based on purchase price alloca
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(a) The Company performed an interim impairment tesifd3ecember 31, 2008. As a result of the testais
determined that all of the goodwill in our Bostgmo&s Clubs region, amounting to $15,766, and galbdw
of $1,843 at two of our outlier clubs that did benefit from being part of a regional cluster wagaired. /
deferred tax benefit of $1,755 was recorded in ectian with these impairment charg

(3) The $16,113 loss on extinguishment of debt foryier ended December 31, 2006 consists of the foipiwo
transactions

(&) On June 8, 2006, the Company paid $93,001 to re&8&n901 of the outstanding principal of the
Company’s previously outstanding 9 5/8% Senior HN¢t2003 Senior Notes”), together with $6,796 of
early termination fees and $1,204 of accrued istef2eferred financing costs totaling $1,601 weriten
off and fees totaling $222 were incurred in coniwectvith this early extinguishmer

(b) On July 7, 2006, the Company paid $62,875 to red&®¥h of the Senior Discount Notes. The aggregate
accreted value of the Senior Discount Notes ométlemption date totaled $56,644 and early ternonati
fees totaled $6,231. Deferred financing costsitye$1,239 were written off and fees totaling $2drev
incurred in connection with this early extinguishms

The $12,521 loss on extinguishment of debt recofdethe year ended December 31, 2007 resulted from
the repayment of the $169,999 remaining outstanplimgipal of the 2003 Senior Notes with the pratee
from the 2007 Senior Credit Facility obtained omifeary 27, 2007. We incurred $8,759 of tender poemi
and $215 of call premium together with $335 of faed expenses related to the tender of the 20081Sen
Notes. Net deferred financing costs related tadQbmpan’s previous senior secured revolving credit
facility entered into in 2003 (the “2003 Senior @itd-acility”) and the 2003 Senior Notes totaling
approximately $3,212 were expensed in the firsttguaf 2007

(4) Includes wholly-owned and partly-owned clubs. Idi&dn, during 2008, 2009 and 2010 we managed four
university fithess clubs in which we did not haveeguity interest. During 2006 and 2007 we mandiyed
university fitness clubs in which we did not haveeguity interest

(5) Represents members at wh-owned and part-owned clubs

(6) Total revenue for a club is included in comparatildy revenue increase beginning on the first dapef
thirteenth full calendar month of the c’s operation

(7) Revenue per weighted average club is calculatéotaisrevenue divided by the product of the totainfer of
clubs and theiweighted average months in operation as a peroewoifate period

(8) Average revenue per member is total revenue fromllydowned clubs for the period divided by the age
number of memberships from wholly-owned clubs Fa period, including new student, summer studedt an
summer pool memberships, where average number mberships for the period is derived by dividing the
sum of the total memberships at the end of eachthmduring the period by the total number of moriththe
period.

(9) Average joining fees per member is calculated &8 oitiation and processing fees divided by thenber of
new members, excluding pre-sold, summer studensamner pool memberships and including the new
student memberships during each respective

(10) Annual attrition is calculated as total member éssfor the year divided by the average monthly memsbunt
over the year excluding pre-sold, summer studeditsaimmer pool memberships and including new student
memberships during each respective y
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &esults of Operations

You should read the following discussion and anslgsour financial condition and consolidated riswf
operations in conjunction with the “Selected Coidatled Financial and Other Data” section of this iural Report
and our consolidated financial statements and #iated notes appearing at the end of this AnnugbReln
addition to historical information, this discussiand analysis contains forward-looking statemehég tnvolve
risks, uncertainties and assumptions (se8ORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS'’ discussion). Our actual
results may differ materially from those anticiphta these forwardeoking statements as a result of certain fact
including, but not limited to, those set forth itteéim 1A. Risk Factors” of this Annual Report.

Overview

We are the largest owner and operator of fitnasisscin the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions & thnited
States. As of December 31, 2010, we owned and tguki®0 clubs that collectively served approximat&3,000
members. We develop clusters of clubs to servealgpspulated major metropolitan regions and weisersuch
populations by clustering clubs near the highesteatrations of our target customers’ areas of bathloyment
and residence. Our clubs are located for maximumveience to our members in urban or suburban ackse to
transportation hubs or office or retail centerse Tigjority of our members is between the ages @mil60 and has
an annual income of between $50,000 and $150,0@Ma&leve that this “mid-value” segment of the nediik not
only the broadest but also the segment with thatgse growth opportunities.

Our goal is to be the most recognized health cktwark in each of the four major metropolitan regidghat we
serve. We believe that our strategy of clustering< provides significant benefits to our memberd allows us to
achieve strategic operating advantages. In eaohraiarkets, we have developed clusters by injtiglening or
acquiring clubs located in the more central urbamkets of the region and then branching out froes¢hurban
centers to suburbs and neighboring communitiesit@lamng on this clustering of clubs, as of DecaanB1, 2010,
approximately 47% of our members participated inRassport membership which allows unlimited actesdl of
our clubs in our clusters within one, or all ofy eegions, respectively, for higher monthly membgrsiues.
Approximately 50% of our members participate in previously offered Gold membership which allowdimited
access to a designated club and access to all@ther during off-peak hours and 3% of our memlparsicipate in
our newly offered Core membership, which allowsmited access to the member’s home club.

We have executed our clustering strategy succégsfihe New York region through the network dhiss
clubs we operate under our New York Sports Clubsdmname. We are the largest fithess club opeirator
Manhattan with 38 locations (more than twice asyraour nearest competitor) and operated a tbtd® clubs
under the New York Sports Clubs brand name withl2@mile radius of New York City as of December 3010.
We operated 25 clubs in the Boston region undeBoston Sports Clubs brand name, 18 clubs (twolatkvare
partly-owned) in the Washington, D.C. region under Washington Sports Clubs brand name and sixsdluthe
Philadelphia region under our Philadelphia Spottd€brand name as of December 31, 2010. In addlite
operated three clubs in Switzerland as of Decer@beP010. We employ localized brand names for tubrscto
create an image and atmosphere consistent witlo¢hécommunity and to foster recognition as a loedwork of
quality fitness clubs rather than a national chain.

The results for the year ended December 31, 20d0da the correction of an accounting error thaulted in a
decrease in benefit for corporate income taxesaamthted decrease in deferred tax assets in osotidated
statement of operations and consolidated balanmet stespectively. In the fourth quarter of 2018, identified un-
reconciled temporary deductible differences, maielated to fixed assets, which gave rise to defetax assets of
$357,000. These un-reconciled temporary differepceipally relate to periods prior to 2008. As were unable
to identify a specific transaction that created tm-reconciled difference, such as the disposala#rtain asset, a
current deduction could not be taken on our 20%@aturn. Accordingly, we wrote-off the deferrea &sset. This
write-off resulted in the recognition of an outyoéfiod income tax expense in 2010 of $352,000. Weal believe
that this error correction is material to the cuatrer prior reporting periods.

The results for the year ended December 31, 2080@da the correction of an accounting error thaulted in a
cumulative pre-tax charge of $751,000 to payrodl exlated expense and a related decrease in défeembership
costs on our consolidated statement of operatindsansolidated balance sheet, respectively. Histity, we
applied an accounting policy of capitalizing andrttamortizing membership consultants’
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commissions, bonuses and a portion of their bdseiess, and related taxes and benefits, as dimsts ®©f obtaining
new members. Company policy limited the costs ¢tbatd be capitalized to the amount of initiatioe fevenue
deferred for new memberships. The application isf plolicy required us to make certain estimatesoimection
with a review of the accounting treatment for mershig consultant salaries, including the applicatbthe
accounting policy and appropriateness of its esémaethodology, we determined that our previouisnedes were
incorrect. We concluded that it was not clear whetny portion of the consultants’ base salariesthe taxes and
benefits related to those base salaries should e capitalized. While we are no longer deferanmprtion of
membership consultants’ salaries and related amdsenefits, we will continue to defer memberstupsultants’
commissions and bonuses and portions of taxes emefits related to those commissions and bonuses. S
Note 2— “Correction of Accounting Errors” to the consalidd financial statements for further details.

We are in the process of executing a number ofikiéigtives identified in an environmental sustdiiidy
master plan in the areas of energy efficiency, mat@sumption, recycling and greenhouse gas rasudivhile
many of the programs are still in the planning sfage have already begun implementing recyclingliding
retro-fit projects and are preparing for a moreragsgjve roll-out in the months ahead. We belieesdhnitiatives
are helpful to enhancing the member and employper@ance while reducing our environmental impaais eertair
operating expenses.

Revenue and operating expenses
We have two principal sources of revenue:

* Membership revenuc Our largest sources of revenue are dues anchipfeies paid by our members. These
dues and fees comprised 80.1% of our total revéomube year ended December 31, 2010. We recognize
revenue from membership dues in the month whesdhgces are rendered. Approximately 96% of our
members pay their monthly dues by Electronic Furdsisfer, or EFT, while the balance is paid anrmyuall
advance. We recognize revenue from joining fees theeexpected average life of the members

¢ Ancillary club revenue For the year ended December 31, 2010, we gedet8t2% of our revenue from
personal training and 5.7% of our revenue from o#meillary programs and services consisting of
programming for children, group fitness traininglarther member activities, as well as sales of
miscellaneous sports produc

We also receive revenue (approximately 1.0% oftotal revenue for the year ended December 31, 2040)
the rental of space in our facilities to operatoh® offer wellness-related offerings, such as ptglgherapy and
juice bars. In addition, we sell-club advertising and sponsorships and generatagesment fees from certain club
facilities that we do not wholly own. We refer tog revenue as Fees and Other revenue.

Our performance is dependent on our ability to icomatly attract and retain members at our clubs. We
experience attrition at our clubs and must attn@egt members in order to maintain our membershipranenue
levels. In the years ended December 31 2010 an@, 200 attrition rate was 41.9% and 45.2%, respelsti In
2009, our attrition levels increased partially assult of the recessionary economy. In 2010 tattrimoved closer
to 2008 levels due to an improved member experiemogore stabilized economy and increased reteptiograms.
We expect attrition levels to show modest improvenie 2011.

Our operating and selling expenses are compriseodtbffixed and variable costs. Fixed costs inclcidé and
supervisory and other salary and related expepnsespancy costs, including most elements of rdilitjes,
housekeeping and contracted maintenance expesses|laas depreciation. Variable costs are primaglated to
payroll associated with ancillary club revenue, rhership sales compensation, advertising, certaititfarepairs
and club supplies.

General and administrative expenses include cektting to our centralized support functions, sash
accounting, insurance, information and communicasigstems, purchasing, member relations, legatandulting
fees and real estate development expenses. Pagtbtelated expenses are included in a separatédim on the
consolidated statement of operations and are ohtded in general and administrative expenses.

As clubs mature and increase their membership liaed, costs are typically spread over an increasavenue
base and operating margins tend to improve. Coalyerehen our membership base declines our opgratin
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margins are negatively impacted. During 2010, mesthp at our clubs opened over 24 months increased
approximately 1.5%. These membership increasesihaxeased our operating margins in 2010 compar&d®9.

Our primary capital expenditures relate to the tmiesion or acquisition of new club facilities andgrading
and expanding our existing clubs. The construcdioth equipment costs vary based on the costs ofraotien
labor, as well as the planned service offeringssinel and configuration of the facility. We perforautine
improvements at our clubs and partial replacemetiteofitness equipment each year for which wecareently
budgeting approximately 3.0% to 5.0% of projectedual revenue. Expansions of certain facilitiessdse
performed from time to time, when incremental sga@eomes available on acceptable terms and uidlizand
demand for the facility dictate. In this regard;ifidy remodeling is also considered where appratgeri

From 2009 to 2010, operating income increased #4R8d from 2008 to 2009 operating income decreased
76.8%. In 2009, we experienced an overall decrefsarnings and experienced considerable impaircteniges
related to our internal-use software project andixad assets at nine of our clubs. In 2010, werditlincur
impairment charges of this magnitude.

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)

Operating incom: $18,44( $ 7,628  $32,81:
Increase (decrease) over prior pet 141.¢% (76.%  (43.9%

Net (loss) incom: $ (290) $(5,66f $ 2,33
Increase (decrease) over prior pel 94.9% (342.5H% (82.9%

Cash flows provided by operating activit $51,23¢  $76,24.  $95,62:
(Decrease) increase over prior per (32.9% (20.9% 15.€%

Historically, we have focused on building or acingrclubs in areas where we believe the market is
underserved or where new clubs are intended tacepxisting clubs at their lease expiration. Basedur
experience, a new club tends to experience a sgnifincrease in revenues during its first threarg of operation
as it reaches maturity. Because there is relatitly incremental cost associated with such iasieg revenue,
there is a greater proportionate increase in @doifity. We believe that the revenues and operadtingme of our
immature clubs will increase as they mature. Intiast, operating income margins may be negativalyaicted in
the near term by our new club openings. In 2010¢heed one club with collectively marginal to nmecating cash
flow. In most cases, we are able to transfer mdrtilgeomembers of closed clubs to other clubs theegthancing
overall profitability. We currently expect to closae club in 2011. We will continue to opporturgatly pursue
closing underperforming clubs.

As of December 31, 2010, 158 of the existing finelsibs were wholly-owned by us and our consolidlate
financial statements include the operating resflall such clubs. Two locations in Washington, Dw@re partly-
owned and operated by us, with our profit shariageentages approximating 20% (after priority digttions) and
45%, respectively, and are treated as unconsotlidgsdtéiates for which we apply the equity methddascounting.
In addition, we provide management services at fitmess clubs located in colleges and universitieshich we
have no equity interest.
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Comparable Club Revenue

We define comparable club revenue as revenue s¢ ttlabs that were operated by us for over 12 nscauthl
comparable club revenue increase (decrease) asuever the 13th month and thereafter as applicableompared
to the same period of the prior year.

Comparable Club Revenue
Increase (Decrease)

Quarter Full-Year

2008

First Quarte! 4.5%

Second Quarte 3.2%

Third Quartel 2.2%

Fourth Quarte (1.9% 2.2%
2009

First Quartel (2.1)%

Second Quarte (6.9%

Third Quarte! (7.0%

Fourth Quarte (7.)% (5.6%
2010

First Quartel (6.0)%

Second Quarte (4.2%

Third Quartel (5.0%

Fourth Quarte 1.7% (4.9%

Key determinants of comparable club revenue ine®édecreases) are new memberships, member retentio
rates, pricing and ancillary revenue increasesrédaes).

Comparable club revenue had generally been trerdtimgnward since the first quarter of 2007; however,
beginning in the first quarter of 2010, the decesdsegan to improve modestly. In the year ende@&mber 31,
2009, membership at our comparable clubs decréag@étas compared to 2008 and in 2010 membershipased
1.4% as compared to 2009. Further increases in mesiip coupled with an expected increase in petdmiaing
revenue will be contributing factors to the expddtaprovement in comparable club revenue and thezeiperatin
margins in 2011. In 2011, we expect modest impra@mnand to have slight comparable club revenueasas in
the second half of the year when compared to thee ggriods in 2010.

Historical Club Count

Year Ended
December 31,
2010 2008 2008

Wholly-owned clubs operated at beginning of pe 15¢ 164 15¢
New clubs opene — 4 9
Clubs closed or relocate o9 &
Wholly-owned clubs operated at end of per 15¢ 15¢ 164
Partly-owned clubs operated at end of pet 2 2 2
Total clubs operated at end of perioc 16C 161 16¢€

(1) Includes wholly-owned and partly-owned clubs. ldiéidn, during these periods, we managed four usitye
fithess clubs in which we did not have an equitgriest.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain operatingedas a percentage of revenue for the periodsatetic

Year Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008

Revenue: 100.% 100.% 100.(%
Operating expense
Payroll and relate 40.1 39.¢ 38.2
Club operating 37.7 36.€ 34.C
General and administrati\ 6.2 6.5 6.7
Depreciation and amortizatic 11.2 11.7 10.4
Impairment of fixed asse 0.7 1.4 0.8
Impairment of interni-use softwar: — 2.1 —
Impairment of goodwil — — 3.5
Operating incom: 4.C 15 6.4
Interest expens 4.€ 4.3 4.7
Interest incom (0.0 (0.0 (0.7
Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalime (0.5 (0.4 (0.5)
(Loss) income before provision for corporate incdaees (0.7) (2.9 2.3
(Bengefit) provision for corporate income ta (0.0 (1.2 1.8
Net (loss) incomi (0.)% (1.2% 0.5%

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year endedcember 31, 2009
Revenue
Revenue (in thousands) was comprised of the follomg for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009
Revenue % Revenue Revenue % Revenue % Variance

Membership due $363,42¢ 78.6% $387,12! 79.1% (6.1)%
Joining fees 6,967 1.5% 12,04¢ 2.5% (42.29%
Membership revenu 370,39t 80.1% 399,17: 82.2% (7.2%
Personal training revent 60,87¢ 13.2% 56,97 11.7% 6.%
Other ancillary club revent 26,35¢ 5.7% 24,58¢ 5.1% 7.2%
Ancillary club revenut 87,23( 18.€% 81,56( 16.£% 7.C%
Fees and other reven 4,761 1.C% 4,661 1.C% 2.1%
Total revenue $462,38 100.(% $485,39. 100.(% (4.0%

Revenue decreased 4.7% in the year ended Decehpb20B) compared to the year ended December 39, 200
For the year ended December 31, 2010, revenuessaised $2.4 million as compared to the year endedrbieer 31
2009 at the four clubs opened or acquired subsedgo&ecember 31, 2008. For the year ended Dece8ihe2010,
revenue decreased 4.6% or $21.7 million at ourscagened or acquired prior to December 31, 2008 and
$6.1 million at the ten clubs that were closed sgbgnt to December 31, 2008.

Personal training revenue in the year ended Dece8ihe2010 includes $2.7 million related to unuaad
expired personal training sessions. We recognizenige from personal training sessions as the ssnae
performed (i.e., when the session is trained). @dysersonal training sessions expire after a setioded period of
time after purchase and are not refundable or redbke by the member for cash. The State of New Yiak
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informed us that it is considering whether we aauired to remit the amount received by us for edusxpired
personal training sessions to the State of New Yasrlinclaimed property. As of December 31, 2010hack
approximately $11.7 million of unused and expiredspnal training sessions at our six remainingsglictions that
have not been recognized as revenue and recoratefeased revenue. We do not believe that thesaiataare
subject to the escheatment or abandoned propevsydaany jurisdiction, including the State of N&wrk.
However, it is possible that one of these jurisditd may not agree with our position and may cléiat we must
remit all or a portion of these amounts to sucksdliction. For three of our jurisdictions in whiale operate, we
concluded, based on opinions from outside coutisal,monies held by a company for unused and exjpieesonal
training sessions are not escheatable. As a rélsel€ompany has removed approximately $2.7 mifiiom
deferred revenue, of which approximately $570,@08ted to expired sessions that would have beegnézed the
year ended December 31, 2010, and recorded suchram® personal training revenue in the fourth gunaf 2010

This 4.7% decrease in total revenue was drivengiiynby a decline in membership revenue resulfing the
decrease in membership trends. We began the yedesl ®ecember 31, 2010 and 2009 with 486,000 a6@d6Q
members, respectively. While over the course 0B208 lost a net of 24,000 members and in 2010 weeda net
of 7,000 members, we averaged more members throti@009 compared to 2010, resulting in the decregmase
revenue in the year ended December 31, 2010 coohpatbe year ended December 31, 2009. AveragedeFT
individual membership dues on a per-member basityding the effect of promotions and membershijtk w
reduced dues, decreased from $64 per month in 20862 per month in 2010.

Joining fees collected in the year ended DecembgeP@L0 were $7.9 million compared to $4.0 milliorthe
same period in 2009. However, because joining deesecognized over estimated average membejdiféng fee
revenue decreased due to the decline in joining dedlected in 2009 relative to fees collectedriomperiods.

Effective April 1, 2010, the estimated average mership life changed from 28 months to 25 months and
effective July 1, 2010 it changed to 27 months.sEhehanges resulted in a net increase of $462,00hing fee
revenue recognized in the year ended December030, 2

Comparable club revenue decreased 4.3% for theeyelad December 31, 2010 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2009. Of this 4.3% decrease, 1.7%dwa$o a decrease in membership, 2.4% was duddoraase
in price and 0.2% was due to a collective decr@asaacillary club revenue, initiation fees and othe/enue.
Operating Expenses

Operating expenses (in thousands) were comprised thfe following for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31,
2010 2009 $ Variance % Variance
Payroll and relate $185,58. $193,89: $ (8,309 (4.9%
Club operating 174,13" 178,85: (4,719 (2.€0%
General and administrati 28,77: 31,58 (2,819 (8.9%
Depreciation and amortizatic 52,20: 56,53 (4,33)) (7.71%
Impairment of fixed asse 3,25¢ 6,70¢ (3,459 (51.5%
Impairment of internally developed softwz — 10,19« (10,199 (100.0%
Operating expenst $443,94° $477,76° $(33,820) (7.1)%

Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@030,were impacted by a 3.5% decrease in the total
months of club operation from 1,970 to 1,902, tfieats of which are included in the additional dgstions of
changes in operating expenses below.

Payroll and related. This change was primarily impacted by the follogvfactors:

« Payroll related to our membership consultaeteased $9.1 million. The amount of membershisaibant
commissions deferred over the prior two years reghlieclining with our decline in joining fees eactied.
We limit the amount of payroll costs that we dafethe amount of joining fees collected. This resiliin a
decrease in membership consultant commissions sggdéen the year ended December 31, 2010 relating to
deferrals established in prior years of $6.4 millidlso contributing to this decrease was
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increase in the amount of payroll costs defeimetie year ended December 31, 2010 compared tpefire
ended December 31, 2009 of $1.6 million as joidees collected increased in 2010. The aforemendione
decrease in payroll is net of a $411,000 chardeatiriig the changes in the estimated average mesmiper
life from 28 months to 25 months effective April2010 and to 27 months effective July 1, 2(

« Payroll related to club staffing, excludingmm@ership consultants, decreased $1.7 million frtaffisg
efficiencies realized in the year ended DecembeRB10 compared to 200

« Payroll related to our management incentiveuses was $1.6 million higher in the year endecdebdxer 31,
2010 compared to 2009. We recorded our managemesrttive bonus payout at 100% of target for the yea
ended December 31, 2010 compared to 50% in the par in 2009 due to meeting our bonus targets fo
2010.

» Personal training payroll increased $2.1 wiildue to the increase in personal training reveisugell as an
increase in payroll related to personal trainingnpotions geared at attracting additional persaaating
clientele.

As a percentage of total revenue, payroll andedlakpenses increased to 40.1% in the year ended
December 31, 2010 from 39.9% in the year ended mbkee 31, 2009.

Club operating. This change was primarily impacted by the follogvfactors:

» Operating expenses relating to laundry ancetewdecreased approximately $1.2 million primardiated to
the opening of our laundry facility in EImsford, NiY January 200¢

« Utilities decreased $1.1 million in the year en@lEtember 31, 2010 compared with 20

* Rent and occupancy expenses decreased $28R800Dand occupancy expenses decreased $1.7muitlio
our clubs that were closed after January 1, 2008dtition, we recorded early lease terminatioriscob
$1.3 million in the year ended December 31, 200fvatclubs that were closed prior to the leasaratipn
dates. We also recorded $700,000 in damages in2D@paid to a landlord of one of TSI LLC'’s former
health clubs. Offsetting these decreases was agase $3.1 million at our clubs that opened poor t
January 1, 2009 and $322,000 at clubs that opeimdlanuary 1, 200!

As a percentage of total revenue, club operatimgeses increased to 37.7% in the year ended Dec&hpe
2010 from 36.9% in the year ended December 31,.2009

General and administrative.The decrease in general and administrative exsdios the year ended
December 31, 2010 when compared to the year endedriber 31, 2009 was principally attributable tkeerease
in general liability insurance expense due to aicddn in claims activity and therefore a reductasrclaims
reserves. In addition, during the year ended DeeerBb, 2010, we benefited from our cost reductibores within
various general and administrative expense accanelteding information and communication costs.tRdy
offsetting these decreases were increases indeghalelated fees for various litigations as welktasts related to ol
leadership conference in March 2010.

As a percentage of total revenue, general and astnaitive expenses decreased to 6.2% in the yekaden
December 31, 2010 from 6.5% in the year ended Dbeefi, 2009.

Depreciation and amortizationIn the year ended December 31, 2010 compardtetgear ended
December 31, 2009, depreciation and amortizatienedesed due to the accelerated depreciation rdladbs
closed prior to lease expiration dates in the yealed December 31, 2009 and the closing of fiveschubsequent
to December 31, 2009. In addition, in the year dridecember 31, 2009 and the year ended Decemb203Q, we
recorded fixed asset impairment charges, decreéiséngalance of fixed assets to be depreciated.

As a percentage of total revenue, depreciationaamoitization expenses decreased to 11.3% in theeyeked
December 31, 2010 from 11.7% in year ended DeceBthe2009.

Impairment of fixed assetsln the year ended December 31, 2010, we recdixked asset impairment charges
totaling $3.3 million, representing $1.6 million fafed assets at three underperforming clubs and $llion
related to the planned closure of one club prighlease expiration date. In the year ended Dbeefi, 2009, w
recorded fixed asset impairment charges totaling 86llion, which represented the write-off of ftkassets at nine
underperforming clubs.
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Impairment of internal-use softwareln the year ended December 31, 2009, we recandgairment charges
$10.2 million related to an internal-use softwargjgct. Although the software project was not yanpleted, we
determined that it is not probable that we will tione in the development of this project due todieg litigation.
See Note 5 — Fixed Assets and Note 13 — Contingsrtoi the Compang’consolidated financial statements in
Annual Report for further details. There were norsimpairment charges in the year ended Decemhet(@D.

Benefit for Corporate Income Taxes

We recorded a benefit for corporate income taxe&ld#,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010 amedp
to a benefit of $5.8 million for the year ended Bber 31, 2009. Our effective tax rate benefit 8a% in the year
ended December 31, 2010 compared to 51% in theeyemhlrd December 31, 2009. The expected benefits duo
Captive Insurance arrangement increased our eféetaik rate benefit on our pre-tax loss in the yeated
December 31, 2010 and increased the benefit oprdiéax loss in the year ended December 31, 2009.

As of December 31, 2010, we have net deferredgagta of $41.9 million. Quarterly, we assess thightef
all positive and negative evidence to determinethdrethe net deferred tax asset is realizableOkD2and 2009, we
incurred losses and expect to be profitable in 2004 have historically been a taxpayer and projezsit will be
in a three year cumulative income position, exalgdionrecurring items, as of December 31, 2011. In agldjtive.
based on recent trends, projects improved perfoteand future income sufficient to realize the defétax assets
during the periods when the temporary tax dedwetiifferences reverse. We have state net operatssgarry-
forwards which we believe will be realized withimetavailable carry-forward period, except for a lbstate
operating loss carryforward in Rhode Island duthéoshort carryforward period in that state. Acaugty, we
concluded that it is more likely than not that tleferred tax assets will be realized. If actualiitssdo not meet our
forecasts and we incur losses in 2011, a valuatiomvance against the deferred tax assets maydgoéree in the
future. In addition, with exception of the deduosaelated to our captive insurance for state taaable income
has been and is projected to be the same as FeBecaluse the captive insurance company will beodisnued, th
assessment of realizability of the state deferagdatsets is consistent with the Federal tax aisedyp®ve with the
exception of the aforementioned Rhode Island lass/forward.

Year ended December 31, 2009 compared to year endedcember 31, 2008
Revenue
Revenue (in thousands) was comprised of the follomg for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008
Revenue % Revenue Revenue % Revenue % Variance
Membership due $387,12: 79.7% $400,87- 79.1% (3.9%
Joining fees 12,04¢ 2.5% 13,72 2.7% (12.29%
Membership revenu 399,17: 82.2% 414,59 81.8% (3.7%
Personal training revent 56,97 11.7% 61,75: 12.2% (7.71%
Other ancillary club revent 24,58¢ 5.1% 24,32¢ 4.8% 1.1%
Ancillary club revenue 81,56( 16.€% 86,08 17.(% (5.2%
Fees and other reven 4,661 1.C% 6,031 1.2% (22.1%
Total revenue $485,39. 100.(% $506,70¢ 100.(% (4.2%

Revenue decreased 4.2% in the year ended Decehpb20® compared to the year ended December 38, 200
This decrease in revenue was driven primarily bigeine in membership revenue and ancillary clvemee. For
the year ended December 31, 2009, revenues inck&49e6 million as compared to the year ended Dbeer3dl,
2008 at the 13 clubs opened or acquired subsetpu&gcember 31, 2007. For the year ended
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December 31, 2009, revenue decreased 6.8% or §8%ah at our clubs opened or acquired prior tacBmber 31,
2007 and $8.2 million at the 13 clubs that wersetbsubsequent to December 31, 2007.

Comparable club revenue decreased 5.6% for theeymbad December 31, 2009 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2008. Of this 5.6% decrease, 2.5%dwado a decrease in membership, 1.2% was duddoraase
in price and 1.9% was due to a decrease in ancitlab revenue and fees and other revenue.

Our onetime member initiation fees and a portion of redad@ect expenses, up to the amount of those fiwiti
fees, are deferred and recognized on a straightblsis in operations over the estimated membelifhijsee
Note 3— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to tensolidated financial statements in this Annual
Report. Effective April 1, 2009, we changed théneated life of our memberships from 30 months tar&ths.
The change in estimated membership life was prallgiglue to an unfavorable trend in membershipntite rates,
and it has the effect of increasing initiation feegenue recognized in the current period becass®der
amortization period is being applied resulting m&300,000 increase in initiation fee revenue recal in the year
ended December 31, 2009 when compared to theywar

Personal training revenue decreased 7.7% for thegreded December 31, 2009 compared to the prior Yée
attribute this decrease primarily to reduced corauspending.

Fees and other revenue decreased 22.7% in theydad December 31, 2009 compared to the prior year
primarily due to a decrease in marketing revenuegged by our in-club advertising programs.
Operating Expenses

Operating expenses (in thousands) were comprised thfe following for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 $ Variance % Variance
Payroll and relate $193,89: $193558( $ 311 0.2%
Club operating 178,85«  172,40¢ 6,44¢ 3.7%
General and administrati 31,58 33,95: (2,365) (7.00%
Depreciation and amortizatic 56,53: 52,47¢ 4,05¢ 7.7%
Impairment of fixed asse 6,70¢ 3,861 2,841 73.5%
Impairment of internally developed softwz 10,19¢ — 10,19¢ NA
Impairment of goodwil — 17,60¢ (17,609 (100.0%
Operating expenst $477,76° $473,89. $ 3,87¢ 0.8%

Operating expenses for the year ended Decemb@089, were impacted by an 8.2% increase in totd clu
usage year over year and a 1.8% increase in thlentoinths of club operation from 1,935 to 1,97@, ¢fffects of
which are included in the additional descriptiofisltanges in operating expenses below.

Payroll and related. This change was primarily impacted by the follogvfactors:

« In 2008, we began discounting our memberdtidn fees in an effort to drive membership saas: payroll
costs related to new membership contracts thatefer dre limited to the amount of these initiatieas, thus
causing an increase of approximately $1.8 milliocurrent payroll expense, net of club commissemds
bonuses, in the year ended December 31, 2009. &ee3N—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
the consolidated financial statements in this AhiRegport.

* In December 2009, we made an adjustment t@cban accounting error related to deferred mesfiyer
costs. The correction of the error, which incregsagroll expense by $751,000 in the three montlivder
ended December 31, 2009, represented the net clivewdajustment for the years ended December 315 20
through December 31, 2009. See Note 2 — Corredfigkccounting Errors to our consolidated financial
statements in this Annual Report for further dsti

« Effective April 1, 2009, we changed the estiedamembership life from 30 months to 28 monthss Th
change resulted in an increase in payroll expeh$&%8,000 when compared to 201

» Severance charges increased $781,000 principdditeceto a reduction in force in January 2C
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These increases were partially offset by a decr@aaecillary club payroll of $2.9 million directiselated to th
decrease in ancillary club revenue.

As a percentage of total revenue, payroll andedlakpenses increased to 39.9% in the year ended
December 31, 2009 from 38.2% in the prior year.

Club operating. This change was primarily impacted by the follogvfactors:

* Rent and occupancy expenses increased $7i8rmRent and occupancy costs increased $4.9amilt
clubs that opened after December 31, 2007, $3I18®m#t our clubs that opened prior to December2BD;7
and $441,000 at our laundry facility in EImsfordy Nn addition, in the year ended December 31, 2089
recorded early lease termination costs of $1.3anilét five clubs which were closed prior to tHegse
expiration dates. Rent and occupancy expensesatett&2.5 million, excluding rent penalties, atdubs
that were closed after December 31, 2(

» Operating expenses relating to laundry ancetewdecreased $1.2 million primarily related to dpening of
our laundry facility in ElImsford, NY in January 28(

As a percentage of total revenue, club operatimgeses increased to 36.9% in the year ended Dec&hpe
2009 from 34.0% in the prior year.

General and administrative. This decrease was principally attributable t@2@$nillion decrease in general
liability insurance expense. Our claims experienctivity has been decreasing as a percentage oéuvenue,
resulting in a decreased loss trend rate, and tiethsan related claims reserves requirementsdtition, we
reduced our insurance reserves because we havedtairas exposure as a result of a decrease inuhwer of
memberships. The remainder of the expense deongasdue to cost reduction efforts realized withamiaus
general and administrative expense accounts, imguthta and phone lines, office supplies and trave

As a percentage of total revenue, general and asknstive expenses decreased slightly to 6.5% 09Z6om
6.7% in the prior year.

Depreciation and amortization.The increase in depreciation and amortizatioreegps was principally due to
the acceleration of depreciation related to clubsed prior to their lease expiration dates in 2808 to the 13 clut
that opened in the two year period ended Decemhe2(®9. We also began depreciating the new laufiadility
and corporate office in ElImsford, NY, which opemedanuary 2009.

Impairment of fixed assetsln the year ended December 31, 2009, we recdixked asset impairment charges
totaling $6.7 million, which represented the writiés of fixed assets at nine underperforming clibsring the year
ended December 31, 2008, we recorded an impairmenbf $755,000 on fixed assets of a remote ¢labdid not
benefit from being part of a regional cluster aidirtbt sustain profitable membership levels gives competition
in its market and $1.2 million related to the pledrtlosures of two clubs prior to their lease eton dates.

Impairment of internal-use softwareln the year ended December 31, 2009, we recdmdedirment charges
$10.2 million related to an internal-use softwarejgct. Although the software project was not yahpleted, we
determined that it is not probable that we will tione in the development of this project due todieg litigation.
See Note 5 — Fixed Assets and Note 13 — Contingsrtoi the Compang’consolidated financial statements in
Annual Report for further details.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $2.9 million or 12.88m $23.9 million to $21.0 million for the year et
December 31, 2009 compared to the same perioeipribr year. This decrease is a result of the tovaeiable rate
of interest on our Term Loan Facility during theayended December 31, 2009 period. For the yeardend
December 31, 2008, the average variable interesprathe Term Loan Facility was approximately 4,.9%hile the
average variable interest rate for the year endszéBber 31, 2009 was approximately 2.2%.

Provision (Benefit) for Corporate Income Taxes

We recorded a benefit for corporate income taxekbd million for the year ended December 31, 2009
compared to a provision of $9.2 million for the yeaded December 31, 2008, calculated using thep@owyis
effective tax rate. For the year ended Decembe2@19 we recognized a $637,000 charge for the trifnlited
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earnings of our non-U.S. subsidiaries since we dmpse to reinvest those earnings in the U.S. 2009, we
recognized state tax benefits of $1.2 million rdbto self-insurance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have satisfied our liquidity negtisough cash generated from operations and various
borrowing arrangements. Principal liquidity needsédincluded the acquisition and development of alelvs, debt
service requirements and other capital expenditueesssary to upgrade, expand and renovate exdtibg.

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities for ylear ended December 31, 2010 was
$51.2 million compared to $76.2 million for the yesaded December 31, 2009, a decrease of 32.8% d€krease
was related to the decrease in earnings, excluipgeciation and amortization and impairments & &illion.
Total cash paid for interest increased $7.4 miltim$20.2 million. On February 1, 2009, our Serfdscount Notes
became fully accreted with an outstanding balarié@188.5 million. Semi-annual cash interest paymeft
$7.6 million commenced on August 1, 2009. In tharyended December 31, 2009, the August 1, 2008estte
payment of $7.6 million represented a single sanmitial payment. In the year ended December 31, 204@ wert
two semi-annual payments totaling $15.2 milliorsuléng in an increase in cash paid for interest@t million on
our Senior Discount Notes. In addition, our landloontributions decreased $4.7 million in 2010 whempared
with that of 2009 and prepaid rent increased apprately $5.0 million; both reducing our 2010 opergtcash
flows compared to 2009. The effect of the changdefierred revenue and deferred membership costsaised cash
$1.8 million in the aggregate in the year endedebszer 31, 2010 offsetting the decrease in cash.

Net cash provided by operating activities decre@§28% for the year ended December 31, 2009 cordpare
the year ended December 31, 2008. This decreasprimagrily related to the decrease in overall aagsi Also
contributing to the decrease were the effects aharease in cash paid for interest and reductioagferred
revenue. Total cash paid for interest increase@ $@llion to $12.8 million. Deferred revenue de@ed $8.2 milliol
in the year ended December 31, 2009 and $4.2 miltighe prior year. Offsetting these decrease2000 we had
tax refunds, net of tax payments, of $3.9 millionilerin 2008 we had tax payments, net of refuné$.16.9 million
for an increase in cash of $19.8 million.

Investing Activities. Investing activities in the year ended Decemlegr2®10 consisted primarily of
remodeling existing clubs and the purchase of ngwgds equipment. Net cash used in investing dietivdecreased
55.3% to $22.0 million in the year ended Decemlgr2B10 compared to the year ended December 39, 200
During the year ended December 31, 2010, we s@én®3$nillion to upgrade existing clubs, $4.9 mitlicelated to
major renovations at clubs with recent lease reitsearad upgrading our in-club entertainment systetwark and
$660,000 to enhance our management informatioeisygstThe remainder of our 2010 capital expenditwaes
committed to building or expanding clubs. Theseeexjitures were funded by cash flow provided by apens,
available cash on hand and, to the extent needediings from the $63.8 million Revolving Loan Hig.

For the year ending December 31, 2011, we currghdly to invest $29.0 million to $32.0 million iaital
expenditures. This is an increase from $22.0 nmilbd capital expenditures in 2010. This amountudels
approximately $7.5 million to $8.5 million relatéalthe two planned club openings in the seconddfaé2D11,
approximately $15.5 million to continue to upgradesting clubs and $4.3 million principally relatedmajor
renovations at clubs with recent lease renewalsuggdading our in-club entertainment system netw@rk also
expect to invest $2.0 million to $3.0 million toremce our management information systems. Thessndkpres
will be funded by cash flow provided by operatioagailable cash on hand and, to the extent nedtechwings
from the $63.8 million Revolving Loan Facility.

Investing activities in the year ended December2BD9 consisted primarily of expanding and remadgli
existing clubs and the purchase of new fithesspgent. Net cash used in investing activities desgda8.2% or
$45.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2G0fgared to the year ended December 31, 2008. Dthngear
ended December 31, 2009, we spent $23.4 milliarpyade existing clubs, $16.6 million for growttpital
expenditures primarily related to clubs added i6®and 2009, $4.6 million to enhance our management
information systems and $4.7 million for the constion of corporate offices and the completion of new
regional laundry facility in our New York Sportsubls market. During the year ended December 31,,20808pent
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$23.6 million on upgrading existing clubs, $9.1li to enhance our management information systems,
$5.7 million for the construction of a new regiotaindry facility in our New York Sports Clubs matland the
remaining $57.8 million for the building of new blior the expansion of existing clubs. We alsoivece

$1.1 million in insurance proceeds during the yerated December 31, 2008.

Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities decreags@®million for the year ended
December 31, 2010 compared to the year ended Dere3tth2009. In the year ended December 31, 208 aid
$5.4 million related to repurchases of 2.1 millgirares of our common stock and had net repaymarttseo
Revolving Loan Facility of $19.0 million. There veéeno common stock repurchases or Revolving Loailifyac
repayments in the year ended December 31, 2010tidwmally, in July 2009, the Company incurred amyeegate of
approximately $615,000 in fees and expenses relatad amendment to the 2007 Senior Credit Faclhitypoth
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, we maugpai payments of $1.9 million on our outstandiregm
Loan Facility.

Net cash related to financing activities decre&2d0 million for the year ended December 31, 26@8parec
to the year ended December 31, 2008 primarilyedl& the repayment of outstanding borrowings uoder
Revolving Credit Facility of $19.0 million in theepr ended December 31, 2009 compared to net bargsvin the
year ended December 31, 2008 of $10.0 million &edsb.4 million payment related to repurchases bfdllion
shares of our common stock compared to $4.6 miftothe year ended December 31, 2008. Proceegt®deto the
exercise of stock options decreased $1.2 milliodd@9 compared to 2008. In both years ended Deaedih@009
and 2008, we made $1.9 million of principal paynsestt our outstanding Term Loans.

Senior Discount Notes

On February 4, 2004, TSI Holdings completed anroffeof the Senior Discount Notes that will matime
February 2014. The Senior Discount Notes are plyltiaded. No cash interest was required to be paat to
August 2009. The accreted value of each discouetinareased from the date of issuance until Feprua2009, at
a rate of 11.0% per annum compounded semi-annaiatlyis currently at the fully accreted principaluea Since
February 1, 2009, interest on the Senior Discowteslis being accrued and is payable semi-annimadiyrears
February 1 and August 1 of each year, and comme#fwagdst 1, 2009. The discount notes are strucgurall
subordinated and effectively rank junior to all@btiedness of TSI, LLC. The debt of TSI Holdingeas guaranteed
by TSI, LLC and TSI Holdings relies on the casiwi#oof TSI, LLC, subject to restrictions containadhe indentur
governing the Senior Discount Notes, to servicelést.

The indenture governing our Senior Discount Notegains, among other things, covenants that mdsices
our ability to finance future operations or capitakds or to engage in other business activities.ifdenture
governing our Senior Discount Notes restricts, agnatier things, our ability and the ability of aestricted
subsidiaries to: incur additional indebtedness; gigidends or make distributions; purchase or redstock; make
investments and extend credit; engage in transectigth affiliates; engage in sale-leaseback tretisas;
consummate certain asset sales; effect consolidationerger or sell, transfer, lease or otherwispase of all or
substantially all of our assets; and create lienewr assets.

The covenant contained in the indenture limiting ithcurrence of additional indebtedness allowsdbmpany
to incur such indebtedness provided that the Cosnpélhcontinue to be in compliance with a “fixetharge
coverage ratio” of greater than 2.00 to 1.00. Tuenture does, however, allow the Company andilisidiaries to
incur certain “permitted indebtedness” without nely the fixed charge coverage ratio. The fixedrgk coverage
ratio is defined as the ratio of consolidated eagsibefore interest, taxes, and depreciation arwtaation to
consolidated interest expense with certain adjustsn® these items as specified in the indentuegef@nce should
be made to the indenture for the detailed defingiof the defined terms used for purposes of ttediftharge
coverage ratio (see Exhibit 4.1 to this Report)D&étember 31, 2010, our fixed charge coverage, rasiaalculated
for purposes of the indenture, was 3.46 to 1.00.

2007 Senior Credit Facility

On February 27, 2007, TSI, LLC entered into the@@6nillion 2007 Senior Credit Facility. The 200&rfsor
Credit Facility consists of a Term Loan Facilitget$75.0 million Revolving Loan Facility and anri@mental term
loan commitment facility in the maximum amount d0$.0 million, under which borrowing is subject to
compliance with certain conditions precedent by, TEIC and agreement upon certain terms and comditio
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thereof between the participating lenders and TBC. The Revolving Loan Facility replaced the pasly
existing revolving credit facility of $75.0 milliothat was to mature on April 15, 2008.

As a result of an amendment to the 2007 SenioriCFadility on July 15, 2009 (the “Amendment”), ttatal
amount of borrowings under the Revolving Loan Fgoivas reduced by 15% from $75.0 million to $668lion.
Additionally, the Company incurred an aggregataggroximately $615,000 in fees and expenses relatdte
Amendment. See Note 8 — Long-Term Debt to the Camgaconsolidated financial statements in this Aainu
Report for further details.

As of December 31, 2010, TSI, LLC had $178.1 millautstanding under the Term Loan Facility. Bormogs
under the Term Loan Facility, at TSI, LLC’s optidrear interest at either the administrative agdrdase rate plus
0.75% or its Eurodollar rate plus 1.75%, each dimelé in the 2007 Senior Credit Facility. As of [@eaber 31,
2010, TSI, LLC had elected the Eurodollar rateaptiequal to 2.1% as of December 31, 2010. Inteadstlated
under the base rate option would have equaled 498t December 31, 2010, if TSI, LLC had electeasl diption.
The Term Loan Facility matures on the earlier 9fH@bruary 27, 2014 or (b) August 1, 2013 if thei8eDiscount
Notes are still outstanding. TSI, LLC is requiredé¢pay 0.25% of principal, or $462,500, per quaeiarterly
principal payments began on June 30, 2007 andrf#ién has been paid as of December 31, 2010.

The Revolving Loan Facility expires on February 2012 and borrowings under the facility currend TSI,
LLC’s option, bear interest at either the admimistre agens base rate plus 1.25% or its Eurodollar rate pIa§%.
each as defined in the 2007 Senior Credit Facili§l, LLC's applicable base rate and Eurodollae ragargins, and
commitment commission percentage, vary with ouisotidated secured leverage ratio, as defined 2005
Senior Credit Facility. TSI, LLC is required to paycommitment fee of 0.50% per annum on the dailytilized
amount.

TSI, LLC'’s applicable base rate and Eurodollar mtggins and commitment commission percentage wity
the Company’s consolidated secured leverage rafie following table summarizes the interest rategina and
commitment commission percentages applicable aetheparate secured leverage ratio levels as fllow

Revolving Loans Applicable
Base Commitment
Rate Eurodollar Commission
Level Secured Leverage Ratic Margin Margin Percentage
3 Greater than 1.50 to 1.( 1.25% 2.25% 0.5(%
2 Greater than 1.00 to 1.00 but equal to or less 1ha@ to 1.0( 1.0(% 2.0(% 0.5(%
1 Equal to or less than 1.00 to 1. 0.75% 1.7%% 0.37%%

The Company has been within the Level 3 range sntering into the Revolving Loan Facility in 208@d
expects to be in this range throughout 2011.

The 2007 Credit Agreement contains a covenantréuptires us to comply with a “total leverage ratd’hot
greater than 4:25 to 1:00 during any period in Whiorrowings or letters of credit are outstandinger the
Revolving Loan Facility. The total leverage ratadiefined as the ratio of consolidated indebtedfesduding the
Senior Discount Notes and certain contingent olitiga) to consolidated earnings before intereggdaand
depreciation and amortization (with adjustmentstifansaction expenses relating to certain othet, deln-cash
deferred compensation expense relating to issuan@purchase of stock options and other equitrésts, and
deferred rent expense in addition to certain oitieens). Reference should be made to the 2007 CAggéement fo
the detailed definitions of the defined terms ulgurposes of the total leverage ratio (see Ekhib.1 to this
Annual Report). At December 31, 2010, our totaklage ratio, as calculated for purposes of the Zh@dit
Agreement, was 2.63:1.00.

There were no borrowings outstanding under the RegLoan Facility during the year ended Decentbir
2010. The applicable interest rate on outstandirgniLoan Facility borrowings at December 31, 20H3®.1%,
and outstanding letters of credit issued totale@ Binillion. The unutilized portion of the Revolgr.oan Facility
as of December 31, 2010 was $53.1 million.

In addition, our operations are conducted throughsabsidiaries and our ability to make paymentsuam
outstanding Senior Discount Notes is dependenherearnings and distribution of funds from our gtibsies;
however, our subsidiaries are not obligated to nfakds available to us for payment on the outstag&enior
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Discount Notes. The terms of the indenture goveyoinr Senior Discount Notes and the 2007 SeniodiCFacility
significantly restrict the payment of dividendsum: Our subsidiaries are permitted under the tefrttze 2007
Senior Credit Facility and the indenture governing Senior Discount Notes to incur additional ingelmess that
may severely restrict or prohibit the payment eidinds by such subsidiaries to us. Our substaetiatage may
impair our financial condition and we may incurrgficant additional debt (see “ltem 1A. Risk Fast)r

The 2007 Credit Agreement contains covenants ifegyémong others, limitations on the Compangnd eac
of its subsidiaries’ ability to: create, incur, asg or be liable for indebtedness (other than cetypes of permitted
indebtedness); dispose of assets outside the oydinarse (subject to certain exceptions); acquirerge or
consolidate with or into another person or entithér than certain types of permitted acquisitiposgate, incur or
allow any lien on any of its property (except fertain permitted liens); make investments (othantbertain types
of investments); or pay dividends or make distiitng (each subject to certain limitations). In giddi, the 2007
Credit Agreement provides for certain events oad#fsuch as nonpayment of principal and interdstmdue
thereunder, breaches of representations and wisanbncompliance with covenants, acts of insalyedefault or
indebtedness held by third parties and the occoereha change of control.

As of December 31, 2010, we were in compliance withdebt covenants in the 2007 Credit Agreemedt an
given our operating plans and expected performéorc2011, we expect we will continue to be in corapte durin
2011. These covenants may limit TSI, LLC’s abitityincur additional debt. As of December 31, 2(Qdérmitted
borrowing capacity of $63.8 million was not redii by the covenants.

As of December 31, 2010, we had $138.5 million @fiSr Discount Notes outstanding.

As of December 31, 2010, we had $38.8 million afftcand cash equivalents. Financial instruments that
potentially subject the Company to concentratidnzredit risk consist of cash and cash equivaleithough we
deposit our cash with more than one financial fattin, as of December 31, 2010, $22.0 million Wwakl at one
financial institution. We have not experienced &sses on cash and cash equivalent accounts taddtee do not
believe that, based on the credit ratings of tloeeamhentioned institutions, we are exposed to agyifitant credit
risk related to cash at this time.

The 2007 Senior Credit Facility contains provisitimat require Excess Cash Flow payments, as defiodze
applied against outstanding Term Loan Facility bed¢s. The Applicable Excess Cash Flow RepaymeeR&ge
is applied to the Excess Cash Flow when determitiiagexcess Cash Flow payment. The Applicable ExCash
Flow Repayment Percentage is 50% when the Senaur&e Leverage Ratio, as defined, exceeds 2.0@ Our
total leverage ratio, as calculated for purposabh®P007 Credit Agreement, was 2.63:1.00 as okber 31,
2010. Our earnings, changes in working capital@pital expenditure levels all impact the deterrdameof any
excess cash flows. The calculation was performexf Beecember 31, 2010 and resulted in a payment of
$12.7 million to be made with cash on hand on M&th2011 and is recorded as current portion ajf#emm debt
on the December 31, 2010 consolidated balance.3Neehad not been required to pay any amount jpeictf this
requirement in the past.

Consolidated Debt

As of December 31, 2010, our total consolidated dets $316.5 million. This substantial amount dbtdeould
have significant consequences, including:

« making it more difficult to satisfy our obligatior
* increasing our vulnerability to general adverseneooic conditions

« limiting our ability to obtain additional fimeing to fund future working capital, capital expéares,
acquisitions of new clubs and other general cotpaeguirements

 requiring cash flow from operations for the/peent of interest on our credit facility and ounge Discount
Notes and the payment of principal pursuant to execash flow requirements and reducing our ahiityse
our cash flow to fund working capital, capital erdéures, acquisitions of new clubs and generghaate
requirements; an

« limiting our flexibility in planning for, oreacting to, changes in our business and the industrhich we
operate
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These limitations and consequences may placeais@npetitive disadvantage to other less-leveraged
competitors.

We believe that we have, or will be able to, obtaigenerate sufficient funds to finance our curogrerating
and growth plans through the end of 2011. Any ni@tacceleration or expansion of our plans throngily
constructed clubs or acquisitions (to the extenhscquisitions include cash payments) may reaisr® pursue
additional sources of financing prior to the en®011. There can be no assurance that such firmadihbe
available, or that it will be available on accep¢atierms.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The aggregate long-term debt and operating ledsgatibns as of December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Payments Due by Period (In thousands

Less than After
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years  4-5Years 5 Years
Long-term debt $ 316,510 $ 14,55( $163,51 $138,45( $ —
Interest payments on lo-term debt(1 56,19¢ 18,721 36,20: 1,26¢ —
Operating lease obligations( 774,13( 81,56« 155,79( 143,19: 393,58.
Total contractual cash obligatio $1,146,84. $114,84: $355,50¢ $282,91: $393,58:

Notes:

(1) Includes 11% annual interest on the Senior Discblatés and variable interest on the 2007 Term Lresmility
using the rate as of December 31, 2010 of 2

(2) Operating lease obligations include base rent dbdytain leases provide for additional rent bagsedeal estate
taxes, common area maintenance and defined amioasésl on the operating results of the les

The following long-term liabilities included on tleensolidated balance sheet are excluded fronathle t
above: income taxes (including uncertain tax posg), insurance accruals and other accruals. Thep@oy is
unable to estimate the timing of payments for thtsmas.

Recent negative economic conditions have resuttedtightening of the credit markets, includingderny by
financial institutions, which are the source ofditéor our borrowing and a source of our liquidityis difficult to
predict how long the current economic and capital eredit market conditions will continue; howeviécurrent
levels of economic and capital and credit markéatildy continue or worsen, there can be no assteahat we wil
not experience further adverse impact, which magnbeerial to our business and therefore our resfiltgerations
and liquidity, including our ability to borrow undthe Revolving Loan Facility. Although we have matb request
for funding under the Revolving Credit Facilityjstuncertain whether any of the lenders partyetoewill
participate in any future requests for funding drether another lender might assume its commitments.
Consequently, our ability to borrow under the Reirgy Loan Facility may be adversely impacted. Bazed
information available to us, we do not expect #rat of the financial institutions that are a paayur facility
would be unable to fulfill their obligations theraler as of the filing date of this Annual Report.

Our Term Loan Facility matures on the earlier dbfeary 27, 2014 (or August 1, 2013 if the Senicsddunt
Notes are still outstanding) as of that date aedRbvolving Loan matures in 2012. Our Senior Distdptes will
mature in 2014. We expect to refinance our outstanihdebtedness under these arrangements with new
indebtedness prior to their maturity dates. Thelab#ity of refinancing will depend on a variety factors, such as
economic and market conditions, business performahe availability of credit and our credit ratings well as th
lenders’ perception of the prospects of our compgamyur industry generally. We may not be ableuccessfully
obtain any necessary refinancing on favorable teimefuding interest rates and financial and ottwrenants, or at
all. In that event, our business and financial d¢tord may be materially adversely affected.

In recent years, we have typically operated wittoaking capital deficit. We had a working capitafitit of
$22.9 million at December 31, 2010, as compareh $46.6 million at December 31, 2009. Major compusef
our working capital deficit on the current liabjliside are deferred revenues, accrued expensésdiimg, among
others, accrued construction in progress and earnprpayroll and occupancy costs) and the curreriiqn of long-
term debt. These current liabilities more thanetffie main current assets, which consist of cadrcash
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equivalents, accounts receivable, and prepaid exgsesind other current assets. Payments underhengutrent
liability for deferred revenue are generally noloh&s cash and cash equivalents, but rather acefaséhe
Company’s business needs, including financing amdsting commitments, which use contributes tonbeking
capital deficit. The deferred revenue liabilityates to dues and services paid-in-fuladvance and joining fees p.
at the time of enrollment and totaled $35.1 millaord $35.3 million at December 31, 2010 and Decer®@bg2009,
respectively. Joining fees received are deferretaamnortized over a 27-month period, which represtrd
estimated membership life of a club member. Prega@as are generally realized over a period of upvéive
months, while fees for prepaid services normallyraalized over a period of one to nine monthgdmods when
we increase the number of clubs open and consdyuetitease the level of payments received in adeawe
anticipate that we will continue to have deferredenue balances at levels similar to or greater thase currently
maintained. By contrast, any decrease in demanduioservices or reductions in initiation fees ecled would hay
the effect of reducing deferred revenue balancaghwwould likely require us to rely more heavily other sources
of funding. The decrease in number of clubs andifgi fees and the increase of our cash balancddweased the
working capital deficit. In either case, a sigrdifnt portion of the deferred revenue is not expetianbnstitute a
liability that must be funded with cash. At the érm member joins our club, we incur enroliment gcstportion of
which are deferred over 27 months. These costeeameded as a long-term asset and as such, ddfset the
working capital deficit. We expect to record a wintkcapital deficit in future periods and, as ie ast, will fund
such deficit using cash flows from operations aoddwings under our 2007 Senior Credit Facilityodrer credit
facilities, which resources we believe will be giffint to cover such deficit.

Recent Changes in or Recently Issued Accounting Stdards

For details of applicable new accounting standgt#sse, see Note 4 Recent Accounting Pronouncement
our consolidated financial statements in this AhfReport.

Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management toeregkmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgimgassets and liabilities at the dates of thenfiied statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhaneporting periods. Actual results could diffem those
estimates.

Our most significant assumptions and estimateserétaestimated membership life, the allocation faidvalue
ascribed to fixed and intangible assets, the usiekg of long-term assets, recoverability and iimpant of fixed
and intangible assets, valuation of and expensgri@d in connection with stock options, legal cogéncies,
estimated self-insurance reserves, and valuatigdefefired income taxes.

Estimated membership lifeOur one-time member joining fees and a portioretd#ted direct expenses, up to
the amount of deferred joining fees, are deferratiracognized on a straight-line basis in operatmrer the
estimated membership life of 27 months. This mesthprlife estimate was the result of decreasestunah
membership retention experienced by us and wastadjdirom 28 months to 24 months in April 2010 &odh
24 months to 27 months in July 2010. This estiméiteatould increase or decrease in future peri@sisequently,
deferred initiation fees and direct expenses windcease or decrease accordingly.

Fixed and intangible assetsFixed assets are recorded at cost and depredatadtraight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which arge3®s for building and improvements, five yearsdioib equipmen
furniture, fixtures, flooring and computer equiprhand three to five years for computer softwareadehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of #stimated useful lives or the remaining periotheflease.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are cdoeperations as incurred. The cost and relatedraulated
depreciation, or amortization of assets retiredadt, are removed from the respective accountsaaagdjain or loss
is recognized in operations. The costs relatecetelbping web applications, developing web pageksimstalling
developed applications on the web servers areatgitl and classified as computer software. Weblgisting fees
and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets and iriengssets are reviewed for impairment when ewvants
circumstances indicate that the carrying value nmatybe recoverable. Estimated undiscounted expdaterk cash
flows are used to determine if an asset group paimed, in which case the asset’s carrying valuelevbe
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reduced to its fair value, calculated using distedrtash flows. Projected cash flows are basedtemial budgets
and forecasts through the end of each respectge & he most significant assumptions in those étsdand
forecasts relate to estimated membership and anciévenue, attrition rates, and maintenance @iagipenditures,
which are estimated at approximately 3% of totaéreies. Actual cash flows realized could diffenfrthose
estimated and could result in asset impairmentisaérfuture. During the year ended December 31, 28&0ecorde
impairment charges of $1.6 million at three undeigrening clubs out of a total of 13 clubs testetieTeasehold
improvements at these clubs were written down e tfair values of zero due to negative projectashcflows. A
change in the discount rate would not have hadrfgiant impact on the impairment charge. The lLbg tested
that did not have impairment charges had an agtged&11.0 million of net leasehold improvemersaining as
of December 31, 2010. Two of these clubs, withl to¢ leasehold improvements and furniture andifes of

$3.0 million as of December 31, 2010, had estim&iade undiscounted net cash flows attributablthépassets
approximately 10% greater than the carrying amquautsordingly, a small change in our expectatiamgtese
clubs could cause the assets to be impaired. Wenwititor the results and changes in expectatidntisese clubs
closely in the year ending December 31, 2011 terdghe if fixed asset impairment is necessaryhtnytear ended
December 31, 2010, we also recorded fixed assetirmgnt charges of $1.7 million related to the pkhclosure
of a club prior to its lease expiration date fdatdixed asset impairments in 2010 of $3.3 millitmthe year ended
December 31, 2009, we recorded a $10.2 million impent of construction in progress related the tpaent
costs of an internal-use software project. It watednined that it was not probable that we wouldtiooie with the
project as of December 31, 2009. During the yededrDecember 31, 2009, we recorded impairment ekanf)
$6.7 million at nine underperforming clubs. Seed\Bt— Fixed Assets to our consolidated financeteshents in
this Annual Report.

Goodwill has been allocated to reporting units tasely reflect the regions served by our foud¢raames:
New York Sports Clubs“NYSC"), Boston Sports Clubs (“BSC”), Washington@®fs Clubs (“WSC") and
Philadelphia Sports Clubs (“PSC”), with certain moemote clubs that do not benefit from a regichater being
considered single reporting units (“Outlier Clubai)d our three clubs located in Switzerland (“SSCHe
Company has one Outlier Club with goodwill. The BSZSC and PSC regions do not have any goodwilfas o
December 31, 2010. The carrying value of goodwélbwallocated to the Company'’s reporting units pamsto
FASB guidance.

In each of the quarters ended March 31, 2010 afél,28e Company performed its annual impairmentaes
goodwill. The March 31, 2010 and 2009 impairmestdeupported the recorded goodwill balances asd@sno
impairment of goodwill was required. The valuatafrintangible assets requires assumptions and atssf many
critical factors, including revenue and market gfovoperating cash flows and discount rates. Thagamy may
decide to complete an interim evaluation of thedyath by reporting unit due to the existence ofigdering event.
The determination as to whether a triggering eeaidts that would warrant an interim review of gaiitland
whether a write-down of goodwill is necessary imed significant judgment based on short-term angd-term
projections of the Company. Solely for purposessiéiblishing inputs for the fair value calculatiolescribed abov
related to goodwill impairment testing, the Compamde the following assumptions. The Company d@eslo
long-range financial forecasts (five years or lagder all reporting units. The Company used distaates ranging
between 12.1% and 18.2%, compounded annual rey@ough ranging from (0.7%) to 5.4% and terminalvgtio
rates ranging between 1% and 3%. These assumpatiertalculated separately for each reporting nie to the
significant decrease in market capitalization amigeine in the Company’s business outlook primatiie to the
macroeconomic environment, the Company performedtanm impairment test as of December 31, 2008 an
recorded $17.6 million of impairment at the BSCamrimg unit and one outlier club as a result. Fdetailed
description of the impairment test as well as t®uenptions used, please see Note 6 — Goodwill siaddible
Assets to our consolidated financial statementhi;mAnnual Report. We believe our recent finanoéslults
combined with our current business outlook do ndidate a need to perform interim impairment tegstirhe
March 31, 2010 impairment tests supported the dexbgoodwill balances and as such no impairmegboéiwill
was required. As of March 31, 2010, the implied falue of NYSC was 30% greater than book valuethad
estimated fair value of SSC was 73% greater thak lvalue.

Valuation of and expense incurred in connectiomstbck options. We recognize all share-based payments to
employees in the financial statements based onftieivalues using an option-pricing model at tfage of grant.
We use a Black-Scholes option-pricing model to walke the fair value of options. This model regsivarious
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judgmental assumptions including volatility, fotfeie rate and expected option life. If any of tkeuanptions use
in the model change significantly, shdresed compensation may differ materially in theretfrom that recorded
the current period.

Legal contingencies.In accordance with FASB guidance, we determinettdr to disclose and accrue for loss
contingencies based on an assessment of whetheskhe loss is remote, reasonably possible obabte. Our
assessment is developed in consultation with otgidelcounsel and other advisors and is based analygsis of
possible outcomes under various strategies. Lassngency assumptions involve judgments that dneriently
subjective and can involve matters that are igdiiion, which, by its nature is unpredictable. Véédve that our
assessment of the probability of loss contingensiesasonable, but because of the subjectivitglired and the
unpredictable nature of the subject matter at jssueassessment may prove ultimately to be incgrvehich could
materially impact the consolidated financial statets.

Self-insurance reservesWe limit our exposure to casualty losses on iasce claims by maintaining liability
coverage subject to specific and aggregate lighiitductibles. Self-insurance losses for clainedféind claims
incurred but not reported are accrued based upoméer of factors including sales estimates foheasurance
year, claim amounts, claim settlements and numbelaans, our historical loss experience and vadue providec
by independent third-party consultants. To the mixeat estimated self-insurance losses differ femtual losses
realized, our insurance reserves could differ icgmtly and may result in either higher or lowesurance expense
in future periods. In the past year, our actua lmsperience has been better than expected overall.

Deferred income taxesAs of December 31, 2010, our net deferred tagtadstaled $41.9 million. These net
assets represent cumulative net “temporary diffeshthat will result in tax deductions in futureays. Quarterly,
the Company assesses the weight of all positivenagdtive evidence to determine whether the netriaf tax
asset is realizable. In 2010 and 2009, the Companyred losses and expects to be profitable ill2Uhe
Company has historically been a taxpayer and piojbat it will be in a three year cumulative ineoposition,
excluding non-recurring items, as of December 81,12 In addition, the Company, based on recentlfgorojects
improved performance and future income sufficientgalize the deferred tax assets during the pgemdten the
temporary tax deductible differences reverse. Thmf@any has some small net operating loss carrydiasvwhich
the Company believes will be realized within thaitable carry-forward period, except for a smaditstoperating
loss carryforward in Rhode Island due to the sbamntyforward period in that state. Accordingly, thempany
concluded that it is more likely than not that tleferred tax assets will be realized. If actualiitssdo not meet the
Company'’s forecasts and the Company incurs loss2811, a valuation allowance against the defalardssets
may be required in the future. In addition, witlcegtion of the deductions related to the Compaog{give
insurance for state taxes, taxable income has &eeis projected to be the same as Federal. Betaisaptive
insurance company will be discontinued, the assessof realizability of the state deferred tax éss®consistent
with the Federal tax analysis above.

FASB guidance effective on January 1, 2007 pressribrecognition threshold and measurement agrfouta
tax position taken or expected to be taken in agtwn and also provides guidance on derecognitiassification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim m@sjalisclosure and transition. The Company recagniaterest and
penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax bisnefincome tax expense.

Inflation

Although we cannot accurately anticipate the efédééhflation on our operations, we believe thdtation has
not had, and is not likely in the foreseeable feitiorhave, a material impact on our results of aens or financial
condition.

Seasonality of Business

Seasonal trends have a limited effect on our oveugliness. Generally, we experience greater meshiger
growth at the beginning of each year and experianc@creased rate of membership attrition durirggsummer
months. In addition, during the summer months, weedence a slight increase in operating expensedalour
outdoor pool and summer camp operations, genaratghed by seasonal revenue recognition from sgasain
memberships and camp revenue.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Our debt consists of both fixed and variable ratetdacilities. As of December 31, 2010 a total of
$178.1 million of our debt consisted of the Termahd-acility for which borrowings are subject toiaate interest
rates. Borrowings under this Term Loan Facility fareperiods of one, two, three or six months ie tase of
Eurodollar borrowings and no minimum period in tase of base rate borrowings and upon each cotitnuz an
interest period related to a Eurodollar borrowing interest rate is reset and each interest rabdovio® considered
variable. If short-term interest rates had incrdase100 basis points for the year ended Decembe2(@®LO0, our
interest expense would have increased by approzlyn®i.8 million. This amount is determined by ddesing the
impact of the hypothetical interest rates on ountd@lance during this period.

As of December 31, 2010 a total of $138.5 millidroor debt consisted of the fixed rate Senior DistdNotes
A 100 basis point increase in interest rates fenfsar ended December 31, 2010 would have resuol@decrease
in the fair values of the Senior Discount Notegpproximately $1.4 million.

For additional information concerning the term®of debt, see Note 8 — Long-Term Debt to our cadatdd
financial statements in this Annual Report.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our Financial Statements appear following the digneapage hereto, are incorporated herein by neferand
are listed in the index appearing under Item 15.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéinting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduresiWWe maintain disclosure controls and procedurasale
designed to ensure that the information requirdoktdisclosed by us in the reports filed or suleditty us under ti
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegutted within the time periods specified in 8C'’s rules
and forms and such information is accumulated amdncunicated to management, including the Chief Etee
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as appiaf®, to allow timely decisions regarding requidéstclosure. Any
controls and procedures, no matter how well desigmal operated, can provide only reasonable assesani
achieving the desired controls.

As of December 31, 2010, we carried out an evalonatinder the supervision and with the participatbour
management, including the Chief Executive Officed ¢he Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveaed the
design and operation of our disclosure controls@dedures (as such term is defined in Rules B8e}kand
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based uponetvedtiation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chiafancial
Officer have concluded that, as of December 31020ar disclosure controls and procedures weregfeat the
reasonable assurance level.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Ovéiinancial Reporting: Our management is responsi
for establishing and maintaining adequate intecoatrol over financial reporting (as such termedirked in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchangg. Alnder the supervision and with the participatid our
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, we assessed the effectss of ot
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2010. In making this assessment, our geamant used
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponmsgi®rganizations of the Treadway Commission (COIBO)
Internal Control— Integrated FrameworkBased on our management’s assessment usingdtitese, our
management concluded that, as of December 31, 2@l Maintained effective internal control over fical
reporting.

Our internal control over financial reporting issted to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of cditeded financial statements for external purpasesccordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Biseaof its inherent limitations, internal contreko financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstateme¥it®, projections of any evaluation of effectivesés future
periods are subject to the risk that controls magoime inadequate because of changes in conditibiisat the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedumnay deteriorate.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent regasfeublic accounting firm that audited the finahci
statements included in this Annual Report on Fo@iK1has issued its written attestation reporttanéffectiveness
of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2010, as stated in their report incl
following the signature page hereto, which is ipavated herein by reference.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportgn There have not been any changes in our internal
control over financial reporting (as such termesinied in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under tlketange Act)
during the quarter ended December 31, 2010 that treaterially affected, or are reasonably likelyrtaterially
affect, our internal control over financial repogi

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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PART IlI

COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS AN D RELATED INFORMATION

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

The information with respect to directors, execitdfficers and corporate governance of the Comany
incorporated herein by reference to the followiagt®ns of the Company’s definitive Proxy Statenrefdting to
the Company’s 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholderbé filed with the SEC within 120 days of the Camy's
fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (the “ProxieStant”): “Matters to be Considered at Annual Megti—

Proposal One — Election of Directors,

Corporatev@rnance and Board Matters — Corporate Governance

Documents,” “Corporate Governance and Board MatterSommittee Membership — Audit Committee,”
“Section 16(A) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coimapte,” and “Deadline for Receipt of Stockholdeoptsals.”

The following are the members of our Board of Dioes and our Executive Officers:

Board of Directors:
Robert Giardina

Keith E. Alessi
Paul N. Arnold
Bruce C. Bruckmann

J. Rice Edmond
Thomas J. Galligan Il
Kevin McCall

Executive Officers:
Robert Giardin:¢
Martin Annese
Paul Barror

Daniel Gallaghe
David M. Kastin

Scott Milford

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

Chief Executive Officer and President, Town Sports
International Holdings, Inc

Chief Executive Officer and President, Westmoreland
Coal Compan)

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer,
Cort Business Services, Ir

Managing Director, Bruckmann, Rosser, Sherrill & {
LP

Managing Director, Edmonds Capital, LI

Executive Chairman, Papa G’s Holdings Corp
Chief Executive Officer and President, Paradigm
Properties, LLC

Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Chief Operations Office

Chief Information Officel

Chief Financial Office

Senior Vice President General Counsel and Corpot
Secretary

Senior Vice Preside— Human Resource

The information with respect to executive compeinsais incorporated herein by reference to theofeihg
sections of the Proxy Statement: “Executive Comatos” and “Corporate Governance and Board Matters
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Eipgtion.”

The information with respect to compensation oédiors is incorporated herein by reference to oHewing
section of the Proxy Statement.: “Corporate Govecaand Board Matters — DirectoSbmpensation for the 20

Fiscal Year.”
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners anbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table provides information with regpéo compensation plans (including individual
compensation arrangements) under which our eqedyrgties are authorized for issuance to emplopsesf
December 31, 2010:

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available for
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under
Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plan:
Outstanding Options Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column(a))
Plan Categony () (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: 2,240,25 % 5.2C 257,34¢

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holder: — — —

Total 2,24025 % 5.2( 257,341

The information with respect to security ownersbiigertain beneficial owners and management isrporatec
herein by reference to the following section of Brexy Statement: “Ownership of Securities”.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independenci

On January 8, 2010, we received a notice from séeatities owned or controlled, directly or inditly, by
Farallon Partners, L.L.C., demanding that the Compagister for resale, pursuant to a February 28Q#tration
rights agreement, as amended, its shares of thep&@unyis Common Stock. On December 7, 2010, the Cagnpa
filed a prospectus registering for resale an aggeed,060,082 shares of the Company’s Common Stock.

The information with respect to certain relatiopshénd related transactions and director indepedisn
incorporated herein by reference to the followiegt®ns of the Proxy Statement.: “Certain Relathjns and
Related Transactions” and “Corporate GovernanceBaradd Matters — Director Independence.”

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information with respect to principal account@es and services is incorporated herein by eefa to the
following section of the Proxy Statement: “Mattéssbe Considered at Annual Meeting — Proposal Two —
Ratification of Independent Registered Public Agdng Firm.”

54




Table of Contents

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits And Financial Statement

(a) Financial Statemen

(1) Financial statements filed as part of this ref

Page
_Number
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements of Towar&pnternational Holdings, In

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-2
Consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2@12099 F-3
Consolidated statements of operations for the yeraded December 31, 2010, 2009 and = F-4

Consolidated statements of stockholders’ (defexjyity for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009
and 200¢ F-5
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the yeadeed December 31, 2010, 2009 and = F-6
Notes to consolidated financial stateme F-7

(2) Financial Statements Schedul

To the extent applicable, required information besn included in the financial statements.
(3) Exhibits. See Item 15(b) belo

(b) Exhibits required by Item 601 Regulation -K

The information required by this item is incorp@herein by reference from the Index to Exhibits
immediately following page F-39 of this Annual Rejpo
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the rtegit has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on
February 25, 2011.

TowN SPORTSINTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /sl ROBERT GIARDINA

Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
By: /s ROBERT GIARDINA Chief Executive Officer (principal February 19, 2011
Robert Giardin: executive officer), President and Director
By: /s/ DANIEL GALLAGHER Chief Financial Officer (principal financi February 23, 2011
Daniel Gallaghe and accounting officer)
By: Director
Keith Alessi
By: /s| PauL ARNOLD Director February 22, 2011
Paul Arnold
By: /s BRUCE BRUCKMANN Director February 19, 2011
Bruce Bruckmani
By: /s| Rice EDMONDS Director February 18, 2011
Rice Edmond:
By: /sl THomAs J. GALLIGAN I Director February 23, 2011
Thomas J. Galligan I
By: /sl KeviN McCaLL Director February 23, 2011
Kevin McCall
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Town Sports International Holdings, Inc:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bzgasheets and the related consolidated statenfents o
operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and clistvs present fairly, in all material respectss financial position
of Town Sports International Holdings, Inc. andsitdsidiaries (the “Company”) at December 31, 2@ 2009,
and the results of their operations and their ¢asts for each of the three years in the periodeghBecember 31,
2010 in conformity with accounting principles gealr accepted in the United States of America. Atsour
opinion, the Company maintained, in all materiajects, effective internal control over financigborting as of
December 31, 2010, based on criteria establishédeémal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremgd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for these financial statements, fomtaaiing effective internal control over financraporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internarabaver financial reporting, included in Managertis Annual
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportapgpearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility i€xpress
opinions on these financial statements and on trapgany’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our
integrated audits. We conducted our audits in atznmre with the standards of the Public Company Aeting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standamgisinethat we plan and perform the audits to obta&sonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatises of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal
control over financial reporting was maintaineciihmaterial respects. Our audits of the finanstatements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in the finarstaiements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, and evaluagngverall
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimaécontrol over financial reporting included dbtag an
understanding of internal control over financigloging, assessing the risk that a material weakegists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operatirgcgffeness of internal control based on the asdesde Our audi
also included performing such other proceduresexsamsidered necessary in the circumstances. Visvbehat ou
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exaepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in redsergetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (iiyvjute reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as nactsgarmit preparation of financial statementsdgordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasoaassurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauittexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl RRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERSLLP

New York, New York
February 25, 2011
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
(All figures in thousands
except share data)

ASSETS

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 38,80¢ $ 10,75¢
Accounts receivable, n 5,25¢ 4,29t
Inventory 217 224
Prepaid corporate income tay 7,34z 1,27¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 13,21 10,264
Total current asse 64,83: 26,81¢
Fixed assets, n 309,37: 340,27
Goodwill 32,79¢ 32,63¢
Intangible assets, n 44 14¢
Deferred tax assets, r 41,88: 50,581
Deferred membership cos 5,93¢ 6,07¢
Other asset 9,301 10,92¢
Total asset $464,16¢ $467,46¢

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities:

Current portion of lon-term debt $ 1455( $ 1,85C
Accounts payabl 4,00¢ 6,011
Accrued expense 27,47 23,65¢
Accrued interes 6,57¢ 6,577
Deferred revenu 35,10¢ 35,34¢
Total current liabilities 87,72( 73,43¢
Long-term debt 301,96 316,51
Deferred lease liabilitie 67,18( 71,43¢
Deferred revenu 3,16¢ 1,48¢
Other liabilities 11,08: 12,82¢
Total liabilities 471,11 475,69¢

Contingencies (Note 1:
Stockholder deficit :
Common stock, $.001 par value; issued and outsigrizi2,667,650 and

22,603,199 shares at December 31, 2010 and Dec&hp2009, respective 23 23
Paic-in capital (21,789 (22,577)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (curreranystation adjustmen 2,121 1,327
Retained earning 12,69¢ 12,98¢

Total stockholder deficit (6,945) (8,237)

Total liabilities and stockholde’ deficit $464,16¢  $467,46t

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

2010 2009 2008
(All figures in thousands except share and per shai
data)

Revenues:

Club operation: $ 457,62¢ $ 480,73: $ 500,67¢

Fees and othe 4,761 4,661 6,031

462,38 485,39. 506,70¢

Operating Expenses:

Payroll and relate 185,58 193,89: 193,58

Club operating 174,13! 178,85« 172,40¢

General and administratiy 28,77 31,581 33,95

Depreciation and amortizatic 52,20: 56,53: 52,47

Impairment of fixed asse 3,25¢4 6,70¢ 3,861

Impairment of interni-use softwari — 10,19¢ —

Impairment of goodwil — — 17,60¢

443,94 477,76 473,89.

Operating incom: 18,44( 7,62¢ 32,815
Interest expens 21,15¢ 20,97 23,90z
Interest incom (14%) 3 (319
Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalrime (2,139 (1,876) (2,307)

(Loss) income before benefit for corporate incomes (4349) (11,469 11,541
(Benefit) provision for corporate income ta (144) (5,800) 9,20/
Net (loss) incom $ (290 % (5,668) % 2,331
(Loss) earnings per shai

Basic $ (0.0) $ (0.25 % 0.0¢

Diluted $ 0.0y $ 0.2y 3 0.0¢
Weighted average number of shares used in caleglétiss)

earnings per shar

Basic 22,634,23 22,720,93 26,247,39

Diluted 22,634,23 22,720,93 26,314,95

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Balance at January 1, 200!
Repurchase of common sta

Stock option exercise

Common stock gran

Compensation related to stock optic
Tax benefit from stock option exercis
Other comprehensive incorr

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustm

Total comprehensive incon

Balance at December 31, 20C
Repurchase of common sta
Stock option exercise
Common stock gran

Other

Compensation related to stock options and

restricted stock gran
Tax benefit from stock option exercis
Other comprehensive incorr
Net loss
Foreign currency translation adjustm
Total comprehensive lo!
Balance at December 31, 2009
Stock option exercise
Common stock gran
Cancellation of option
Forfeiture of restricted stoc

Compensation related to stock options ar

restricted stock gran
Tax shortfall from stock option exercis
Other comprehensive incomr
Net loss
Foreign currency translation adjustm
Total comprehensive incon

Balance at December 31, 201

Accumulated
Common Stock Additional Other Total
($.001 par) Paid in Comprehensive Retained  Stockholder
Shares Amount Capital Income Earnings  Equity (Deficit)
(All figures in thousands except share and per shardata)

26,254,77 $ 26 9$(16,97) $ 814 $16,32( $ 183
(1,838,96) (2) (4,643 — — (4,64E)
195,70( 1 1,19¢ — — 1,19¢
16,26¢ — 87 — — 87

— — 1,181 — — 1,181

— — 177 — — 177

— — — — 2,337 2,337

— — — 25€ — 25€

2,59¢

24,627,77 $ 25 $(18,98() $ 1,07C $18,657 $ 172
(2,09561) (2) (5,359 — — (5,35E)
22,40( — 36 — — 36
25,13: — 70 — — 70
23,50( — — — — —

— — 1,63¢ — — 1,63/

— — 21 — — 21
- = — — (5,669 (5,66¢)

— — — 257 — 257
(5,419
22,603,19 $ 23 $(22,57) $ 1,327 $12,98¢ $ (8,239
40,24 — 85 — — 85
26,70¢ — 85 — — 85
= — (621) - - (621)

(2,500 — — — — —

— — 1,251 — — 1,251
- - (16) — — (16)
- — — — (290) (290)

— — — 794 — 794

504
22,667,65 $ 23 $(21,78) $ 2,121 $1269¢ $ (6,949

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

2010 2009 2008
(All figures in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net (loss) incomi $ (290) $ (5,66f) $ 2,337
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to @esthcprovided by operating activiti
Depreciation and amortizatic 52,20: 56,53: 52,47t
Impairment of fixed asse 3,25¢ 6,70¢ 3,861
Impairment of interni-use softwart — 10,194 —
Impairment of goodwil — — 17,60¢
Non cash interest expense on Senior Discount M — 1,20: 13,931
Write-off of deferred financing cos — 10C —
Amortization of debt issuance co: 1,011 89¢€ 781
Noncash rental expense, net of noncash rental ie: (5,557) (2,499 (411)
Compensation expense incurred in connection witbksbptions and common stock gra 1,33¢ 1,704 1,26¢
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax a 8,64: (8,31%) 2,07¢
Net change in certain operating assets and liggs (8,247) 3,26z (10,259
Decrease in deferred membership ¢ 14& 8,38t 3,51z
Landlord contributions to tenant improveme 10C 4,817 6,591
(Decrease) increase in insurance rese (1,11¢ 601 2,03¢
Other (24¢ (1,687) (209)
Total adjustment 51,52¢ 81,90¢ 93,28t
Net cash provided by operating activit 51,23¢ 76,241 95,62:
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure (22,039 (49,277  (96,187)
Insurance proceeds receiv — — 1,074
Net cash used in investing activiti (22,039 (49,277 (95,109
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings on Revolving Loan Fac — 86,00( 19,00(
Repayment of borrowings on Revolving Loan Faci — (105,000 (9,000
Repayment of long term borrowin (1,850 (1,850 (1,949
Costs related to deferred financi — (615) —
Change in book overdre — — (583)
Repurchase of common sta — (5,35%) (4,64%)
Proceeds from stock option exerci: 85 36 ,
Tax benefit from stock option exercis — 21 177
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (1,765 (26,767) 4,19¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 607 15¢ 22€
Net increase in cash and cash equival 28,04t 35¢ 4,93¢
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of pe 10,75¢ 10,39¢ 5,46:
Cash and cash equivalents end of pe $38,80: $ 10,75¢ $10,39¢
Summary of the change in certain operating assetsd liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receiv $ (951) $ 222 $ 1,78¢
Decrease (increase) in inventc 9 (80) 89
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and aftrentasset (2,532 2,26( 197
Increase in accrued interest on Senior Discouné$ — 6,34¢ —
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accryssheas and accrued inter (419 (4,21)) 77€
Change in prepaid corporate income taxes and cat@arcome taxes payat (6,01¢€) 6,89t (8,879
Increase (decrease) in deferred reve 1,66¢ (8,170 (4,239
Net change in certain working capital compon $ (8,247 $ 3,262 $(10,25%)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(In thousands except share and per share data)

1. Basis of Presentatior

As of December 31, 2010, Town Sports Internatidgt@tings, Inc. (the “Company” or “TSI Holdings”),
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Town Sportemational, LLC (“TSI, LLC"), operated 160 fitheshibs
(“clubs™) comprised of 108 clubs in the New York tmopolitan market under the “New York Sports Clubsand
name, 25 clubs in the Boston market under the ‘®BoSports Clubs” brand name, 18 clubs (two of wizighpartly-
owned) in the Washington, D.C. market under the $Wfagton Sports Clubs” brand name, six clubs in the
Philadelphia market under the “Philadelphia SpGit$s” brand name and three clubs in Switzerlame: T
Company’s operating segments are New York Spoub$;Boston Sports Clubs, Philadelphia Sports Clubs
Washington Sports Clubs and Swiss Sports Clubs Cldmepany has determined that our operating segrhents
similar economic characteristics and meet thergaitehich permit them to be aggregated into onentable
segment.

Certain reclassifications were made to the repatadunts as of December 31, 2009 to conform to the
presentation as of December 31, 2010 and to tt@texpamounts for the year ended December 31, 2008nform
to the presentation for the year ended Decembe2BIQ).

2. Correction of Accounting Errors
Error Correction in 2010

The results for the year ended December 31, 20d0da the correction of an accounting error thatlted in &
decrease in benefit for corporate income taxesaamtated decrease in deferred tax assets in thg&uwy's
consolidated statement of operations and conselidaalance sheet, respectively. In the fourth guaft2010, the
Company identified un-reconciled temporary deduetdfferences, mainly related to fixed assets,clvtgave rise
to deferred tax assets of $357. These un-reconghfagorary differences principally relate to pesqaior to 2008.
As the Company was unable to identify a specifiasaction that created this un-reconciled diffeeesach as the
disposal of a certain asset, a current deductioidamt be taken on the Company’s 2010 tax retdocordingly,
the Company wrote-off the deferred tax asset. White-off resulted in the recognition of an outyméfiod income
tax expense in 2010 of $352. The Company doesei@\ve that this error correction is material te turrent or
prior reporting periods.

Error Correction in 2009

The results for the year ended December 31, 2080@da the correction of an accounting error thaulted in &
cumulative charge to payroll and related expenskaarelated decrease in deferred membership costeo
Company’s consolidated statement of operationscandolidated balance sheet, respectively. Histiyiche
Company has applied an accounting policy of capitaj and then amortizing membership consultants’
commissions, bonuses and a portion of their baseiess, and related taxes and benefits, as dicsts ©f obtaining
new members. Company policy limited the costs ¢tbatd be capitalized to the amount of initiatioe fevenue
deferred for new memberships. The application i3f plolicy required the Company to make certaimestes.
Specifically, the Company capitalized a percentgbe membership consultants’ base salaries, elated taxes
and benefits, based on estimates of the percenfabe membership consultants’ time that was spardbtaining
new members.

The Company has undertaken a review of the acamutrgatment for membership consultant salaries,
including the application of the accounting polayd appropriateness of its estimate methodologgoimection
with that review, the Company determined that iesvpus estimates were incorrect. The Companyaiscluded
that it was not clear whether any portion of theszdtants’ base salaries and the taxes and bendfited to those
base salaries should have been capitalized.

Although the Company believes that its accountiolicg for deferred membership costs was not unneaisie,
the errors in its estimates combined with its revad the policy have led the Company to concluds the
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

capitalization of any portion of membership corenitsalaries and related taxes and benefits stheutdgarded as
an accounting error. As a result, there are efrotise Company’s previously reported consolidatedricial
statements. The error caused payroll and relatpdrese for the years ended December 31, 2009 argit@ Q@
overstated by $1,183 and $1,014, respectivelhdfdrror had been corrected for all periods, inagithe
cumulative error in 2009 as described below, thesobidated statements of operations and the catzeli balance
sheet would have been affected as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2009 2008
As As if As As if
Reported Corrected  Reported  Corrected

Consolidated Statement of Operatia

Operating incom: $ 7,628 $ 9,55¢ $32,81° $33,83:
(Loss) income before provision for corporate incaares (11,469 (9,539 11,54: 12,55¢
(Benefit) provision for corporate income ta (5,800 (4,959 9,20¢ 9,64
Net (loss) incomi (5,669 (4,57¢6) 2,331 2,91
Diluted (loss) earnings per she $ (0.2 $ (0.200 $ 0.0¢ $ o0.11
As of
December 31, 200!
As As if

Reported Corrected*

Consolidated Balance She

Deferred membership cc $ 7,73¢€ NA
Total asset $467,46¢ NA
Total liabilities $475,69¢ NA
Stockholder deficit $ (8,239 NA

* Not applicable as no correction applies to the obaigted balance sheet as of December 31, 2

For the Quarters Ended
March 31, June 30  September 3C  December 31

2009 2009 2009 2009

Operating (loss) incom

As reportec $ 557¢ $8,77¢ $ 144 $ (7,929

As if correctec $ 5911 $9,15¢ $ 1,65¢ $ (6,916
Net (loss) incomi

As reportec $ 63¢ $252¢ $ (1,48Y) $ (7,346

As if correctec $ 827 $2,731 $ (1,366 $ (6,779
Diluted (loss) earnings per she

As reportec $ 00 $011 $ (0.0 $ (0.39)

As if correctec $ 004 $01z $ (0.06) $ (0.30)
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For the Quarters Ended
March 31, June 30, September 3C  December 31

2008 2008 2008 2008

Operating (loss) incom

As reportec $14,08. $16,46¢ $ 1158. $ (9,31)

As if correctec $14,42¢ $16,65: $ 11,887 $ (9,136
Net (loss) incomi

As reportec $ 4811 $6801 $ 384 $ (13,11Y

As if correctec $ 500¢ $6907 $ 4,01« $ (13,019
Diluted (loss) earnings per she

As reportec $ 018 $ 02¢ $ 014 $ (0.5))

As if correctec $ 01¢ $ 02 $ 0.1¢ $ (0.50)

In addition to the overstatement of payroll anétedl expense in 2009 for costs related to priaogsrof
$1,183, the Company recorded additional payrollr@tated expense of $751 in the fourth quarter0®@2to
recognize the remaining portion of the deferred toership consultant salaries. This resulted in #oegnition of a
out-of-period expense in 2009 of $1,934. The Comghetermined that the impact of this error on abpperiods,
as well as the correction of the error in the autrpeeriod, was immaterial to all periods and acoaly, the
Company did not restate its prior period resultiléthe Company is no longer deferring a portibmembership
consultants’ salaries and related taxes and bsnifitill continue to defer membership consultantsnmissions
and bonuses and portions of taxes and benefitedela those commissions and bonuses.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of TSI Holdings and all wholly
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts aandsactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generally receives one-time refandable joining fees and monthly dues from itssmbers. Th
Company’s members have the option to join on a mtedmonth basis or to commit to a one- or two-year
membership. Month-to-month members can cancel thembership at any time with 30 days notice. Meisitier
dues for members who pay annual dues upfront acetesed on a straight-line basis over a 12-monttiope
commencing with the first month of the new memlmrtcact. Membership dues for members who pay mysitd
recognized in the period in which access to thb @yrovided.

Joining fees and related direct and incrementateses of membership acquisition, which includessale
commissions, bonuses and related taxes and bemefitsh are direct and incremental costs relateti¢csale of
new memberships, are deferred and recognized stiaight-line basis, in operations over an estichatembership
life of 27 months. In the second half of 2008 th@pany began to see unfavorable trends in memiperstantion
rates and therefore considerable increases in ntshipeattrition rates due primarily to pressured daclines in
consumer confidence and economic growth. Theséeclygs continued into 2009 and 2010 and resultetiamges
in our estimated membership life. In April 2009 thstimated member life decreased from 30 montB8 toonths
and in April 2010 it further decreased to 24 monthghe second half of 2010, the economy begardover and
consumer confidence stabilized. The Company bemapd improvement in membership retention, andlin2010
the Company increased its estimated member lif tmonths where it remained for the duration ofytbar.

Prior to October 1, 2009, the Company was alsordefpa percentage of salaries and related bernaitable
to membership consultants over the estimated meshipdlife (See Note 2 — Correction of Accountingdgs).
Deferred membership costs were $5,934 and $6,0D@@mber 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The atrafu
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

costs deferred does not exceed the related defevedue for the periods presented and thereferdeabrease in
deferred joining fee revenue resulted in a decremselated deferred membership costs.

Dues that are received in advance are recognizedpoo-rata basis over the periods in which sesvige to be
provided. Revenues from ancillary services, sugbesisonal training sessions, are recognized agessrare
performed. Unused personal training sessions exzffiee a set, disclosed period of time after pusehand are not
refundable or redeemable by the member for cash State of New York has informed the Company thiat i
considering whether we are required to remit thewarhreceived by us for unused, expired personalitrg
sessions to the State of New York as unclaimedgrtgpAs of December 31, 2010 the Company had ajpegely
$11,737 of unused and expired personal trainingiees. \We have not recognized any revenue fronetbessions
and have recorded the amounts as deferred revEhaé€Company does not believe that these amountubject to
the escheatment or abandoned property laws ofuaisgiction, including the State of New York. Hovegyit is
possible that one of these jurisdictions may notagvith the Company’s position and may claim thatCompany
must remit all or a portion of these amounts tchgudsdiction. For three of our jurisdictions, tB®mpany
concluded, based on opinions from outside coutisai,monies held by a company for unused and eXjpieesonal
training sessions are not escheatable. As a rélsel€ompany has removed approximately $2,697 fiefarred
revenue, of which approximately $570 related toiredpsessions that would have been recognizedgaegnded
December 31, 2010, and recorded such amount asnaétsaining revenue in the fourth quarter of 2010

Management fees earned for services rendered @gniged at the time the related services are pagd.

When a revenue agreement involves multiple elemsoth as sales of both memberships and serviaesin
arrangement or potentially multiple arrangemeths gntire fee from the arrangement is allocateshtth respective
element based on its relative fair value and reizegihwhen the revenue recognition criteria for ealeiment is met.

The Company recognizes revenue from merchandies sgbn delivery to the member.

In connection with advance receipts of fees or diesCompany is required to maintain bonds toge$ia,540
and $3,840 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, rsglgcpursuant to various state consumer protedaws.

Advertising and Club Pre-opening Costs

Advertising costs and club pre-opening costs aeegdd to operations during the period in which they
incurred, except for production costs related kevision and radio advertisements, which are expéngen the
related commercials are first aired. Total adverisosts incurred by the Company for the yeargdnd
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 totaled $6,69668&nd $7,868, respectively and are includedui c
operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instrumentsch have original maturities of three monthdess
when acquired to be cash equivalents. The caringunts reported in the balance sheets for cashasid
equivalents approximate fair value. The Companyamd operates a captive insurance company int#te &
New York. Under the insurance laws of the StatB@iv York, this captive insurance company is requtre
maintain a cash balance of at least $250. At Deee®b, 2010 and 2009, $272 of cash related toathidly-owned
subsidiary was included in cash and cash equivalent

Deferred Lease Liabilities, Non-cash Rental Experesed Additional Rent

The Company recognizes rental expense for leagbsseheduled rent increases and inclusive of rental
concessions, on the straight-line basis over faefithe lease beginning upon the commencemeatafahe lease.
Rent concessions, primarily received in the fornfre¢ rental periods, are also deferred and ansattin a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease.
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The Company leases office, warehouse and multeatiomal facilities and certain equipment under-non
cancelable operating leases. In addition to baste ttee facility leases generally provide for aatgial rent to cover
common area maintenance charges incurred and $cafiasy increases in real estate taxes. The Conguaumyes
for any unpaid common area maintenance chargescahdstate taxes on a club-by-club basis.

Upon entering into certain leases, the Companyiveseonstruction allowances from the landlord. Sehe
construction allowances are recorded as defergest|Bability credits on the consolidated balarwes when the
requirements for these allowances are met as statbd respective lease and are amortized asugtied of rent
expense over the term of the lease. Amortizatioedérred construction allowances were $2,838 @2n@2¥ at
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, resphctive

Certain leases provide for contingent rent basexh wjefined formulas of revenue, cash flows or djrgga
results for the respective facilities. These caggint rent payments typically call for additionatrpayments
calculated as a percentage of the respective ctaldEnue or a percentage of revenue in excesdioedereak-
points during a specified year. The Company recooagingent rent expense over the related contingeral
period at the time the respective contingent target probable of being met.

Lease termination penalties are recognized usiagitldiscounted cash flow method. In the year ended
December 31, 2009, the Company recorded approxiyr®ie305 in lease termination penalties. The Camgpiid
not incur any lease termination penalties recoiddle year ended December 31, 2010.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acous

Accounts receivable consists of amounts due framQtbmpany’s membership base and was $7,823 ant356,7
at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, befitmerance for doubtful accounts. The Company nadiirst
allowances for doubtful accounts for estimateddeg®sulting from the inability of the Company’smizers to
make required payments. The Company considersrfastch as: historical collection experience, the af the
receivable balance and general economic conditttatsmay affect our members’ ability to pay.

Following are the changes in the allowance for dimlilaccounts for the years December 31, 2010, 20@D

2008:
Balance Beginning Write -offs Net of Balance at
of the Year Additions Recoveries End of Year
December 31, 201 $ 2,41C $592¢ % (5,76¢) $ 2,56t
December 31, 20C $ 3,000 $627: $ (6,869 $ 2,41
December 31, 200 $ 2,797 $8430 $ (8,22¢0 $ 3,001
Inventory

Inventory consists of supplies, headsets for thb ehtertainment system and clothing for sale tmbers.
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or redidy the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciatadtaight-line basis over the estimated usefeslof the
assets, which are 30 years for building and imprems, five years for club equipment, furnituratdres and
computer equipment and three to five years for agempsoftware. Leasehold improvements are amortixed the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or the rieing period of the related lease. Payroll costsally related to the
construction or expansion of the Compangiub base are capitalized with leasehold imprearem Expenditures f
maintenance and repairs are charged to operatioingarred. The cost and related accumulated diggi@t of
assets retired or sold is removed from the resgeettcounts and any gain or loss is recognizegénations. The
costs related to developing web applications, dgie web pages and installing developed applinatam the web
servers are capitalized and classified as comofervare. Web site hosting fees and maintenands eos
expensed as incurred.
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Intangible Assets and Debt Issuance Costs

Intangible assets consist of membership lists nefigal lease and covenants-not-to-compete. Thesets are
stated at cost and are being amortized by thegbtrline method over their estimated lives. Membigrdists are
amortized over the estimated membership life, oto230 months historically, and covenants-not-toipete are
amortized over the contractual life, generally tméve years. The beneficial lease is being amediover the
remaining life of the underlying club lease. All mieership lists and the beneficial lease were fafhortized as of
December 31, 2010.

Debt issuance costs are classified within otheztassnd are being amortized as additional intergstnse over
the life of the underlying debt, five to ten yearsing the interest method. Amortization of debtisscosts was
$1,011, $896 and $781, for the years ended Dece&ih&010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assetsd Goodwiill

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets and ifibngssets are reviewed for impairment when evants
circumstances indicate that their carrying valug mat be recoverable. Estimated undiscounted egpdature cas
flows are used to determine if an asset is impairaghich case the asset’s carrying value wouldeokiced to fair
value calculated using discounted cash flows, whidiased on internal budgets and forecasts thrtheghnd of
each respective lease. The most significant assongpin those budgets and forecasts relate to attin
membership and ancillary revenue, attrition rad@sl maintenance capital expenditures, which amnmatgd at
approximately 3% of total revenues.

Goodwill represents the excess of consideratiod paér the fair value of the net identifiable besia assets
acquired in the acquisition of a club or group lobs. ASC 350-20 requires goodwill to be testedrguairment on
an annual basis and between annual tests in ceitaiimstances, and written down when impaired. i©yairment
review process compares the fair value of the tampunit in which the goodwill resides to its oang value.

Goodwill impairment testing is a two-step proced®p 1 involves comparing the fair value of the @any’s
reporting units to their carrying amounts. If tladr fvalue of the reporting unit is greater tharcasrying amount,
there is no impairment. If the reporting unit'sigémg amount is greater than the fair value, treoad step must be
completed to measure the amount of impairmentyf &tep 2 calculates the implied fair value of dwil by
deducting the fair value of all tangible and intéhg assets, excluding goodwill, of the reportimgtdrom the fair
value of the reporting unit as determined in StepHe implied fair value of goodwill determinedthris step is
compared to the carrying value of goodwill. If ihgplied fair value of goodwill is less than the igang value of
goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized equahwdifference. The Company performs this analgsisually as
of March 31.

Insurance

The Company obtains insurance coverage for sigmfiexposures as well as those risks required tosoeed
by law or contract. The Company retains a portibrisk internally related to general liability lass Where the
Company retains risk, provisions are recorded baped the Company’s estimates of its ultimate expo$or
claims. The provisions are estimated using actuanalysis based on claims experience, an estiofati@ims
incurred but not yet reported and other relevagiofs. In this connection, under the provisionte Deductible
Agreement related to the payment and administraticghe Company’s insurance claims, we are requoed
maintain irrevocable letters of credit, totaling®% as of December 31, 2010.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management tceregkmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgimgassets and liabilities at the dates of thenfiied statements and
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the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhaneporting periods. Actual results could diffem those
estimates.

The most significant assumptions and estimateserédethe allocation and fair value ascribed t@tsacquired
in connection with the acquisition of clubs undex purchase method of accounting, the useful iésng-term
assets, recoverability and impairment of fixed améngible assets, deferred income tax valuatiafyation of and
expense incurred in connection with stock optigmsjrance reserves, legal contingencies and theaatst
membership life.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recogniaethe expected future tax consequences of eteatdave
been included in the financial statements or téorns. Under this method, deferred tax liabilitesl assets are
determined on the basis of the difference betwhkeriihancial statement and tax basis of assetdiaitities
(“temporary differences”) at enacted tax ratesfiaat for the years in which the temporary diffecen are expected
to reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded thuoe deferred tax assets to the amount that is hkeig than not
to be realized. In December 2009, the Company dddidat the cumulative earnings of the Swiss chaldd be
invested in the United States. Accordingly, in ademce with ASC 740-30, the Company has recograzeeferred
tax liability of $776 for the U.S. taxes on thealotumulative earnings of the Swiss clubs.

Statements of Cash Flows
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Cash paic
Interest (net of amounts capitalize $20,157 $12,797 $10,03:
Income taxe: $ 3,311 $ 6,007 $15,93.

Noncash investing and financing activit
Acquisition of fixed assets included in accountggide and accrued expen:  $ 4,392 $ 2,047 $11,13:
See Note 8 for additional noncash financing adts

Foreign Currency

At December 31, 2010, the Company owned three Sskibs, which use the Swiss Franc, their localenty,
as their functional currency. Assets and liab#iitere translated into U.S. dollars at year-end &xgé rates, while
income and expense items are translated into WIfrd at the average exchange rate for the pefiodall periods
presented foreign exchange transaction gains asé$overe not material. Adjustments resulting ftioentranslatio
of foreign functional currency financial statemeint® U.S. dollars are included in the currencyigtation
adjustment in stockholders’ (deficit) equity. Th&etence between the Company’s net (loss) inconte a
comprehensive (loss) income is the effect of faregchange translation adjustments, which was $¥287 and
$256 for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2002@08, respectively.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as the changeuityeaf a business enterprise during a period from
transactions and other events and circumstancesrfom-owner sources, including foreign currencpgration
adjustments. The Company presents comprehensigmam its consolidated statements of stockholdeleficit)
equity.
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Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk are casthcash
equivalents. Such amounts are held, primarily, small number of commercial banks. The Companyshotl
collateral for these financial instruments. Casti @ash equivalents held in a small number of cornialdbanks as
of December 31, 2010 totaled $22,120. During 2@1@ny one month, this amount has been as higB@980.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed bylidiginet income applicable to common stockholdgrthb
weighted average numbers of shares of common statskanding during the period. Diluted earningsgiare is
computed similarly to basic earnings per shareggixthat the denominator is increased for the asduerercise of
dilutive stock options and unvested restrictedlstging the treasury stock method.

The following table summarizes the weighted aver@gamon shares for basic and diluted earningshmres
(“EPS”") computations.

For The Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Weighted average number of common share outsta— basic 22,634,23 22,720,93 26,247,39
Effect of diluted stock optior — — 67,55:
Weighted average number of common shares outsig— diluted 22,634,23 22,720,93 26,314,95
(Loss) earnings per shal
Basic $ 0.0) % 0.25 % 0.0¢
Diluted $ (0.01) % (0.25) $ 0.0¢

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 art] 2@0did not include options and restricted stalards
totaling 2,164,485, 1,880,798 and 957,928 sharéiseo€ompany’s common stock, respectively, in tilewations
of diluted EPS because the exercise prices of thptens were greater than the average market arideheir
inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 200, wees no effect of diluted stock options and retstd
common stock on the calculation of diluted earnipgsshare as the Company had a net loss for ¢hisdo

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2007, the SEC issued guidance regatiaingse of a “simplified” method, as discussed in
previous guidance in developing an estimate of ebgakterm of “plain vanilla” share options. In pautar, the staff
indicated in the previous guidance that it will @gta company election to use the simplified method, regardés:
whether the company has sufficient information &kexmore refined estimates of expected term. Atithe this
was issued, the staff believed that more detaikéereal information about employee exercise behaeq.,
employee exercise patterns by industry and/or athexgories of companies) would, over time, becoradily
available to companies. Therefore, the staff stitatlit would not expect a company to use the Biiap method
for share option grants after December 31, 200@.sEaff understood that such detailed informatiooua employee
exercise behavior may not be widely available bgdpeber 31, 2007. Accordingly, the staff would coné to
accept, under certain circumstances, the use dfithygified method beyond December 31, 2007. Then@any
currently uses the simplified method for shareaqtiand warrants as all options issued since tiep@oy’s Initial
Public Offering (“IPO”) in June of 2006 can be cmesed “plain vanilla®options. In addition the Company does
have sufficient historical detailed exercise bebaavailable. The Company will further assess the af this policy
for fiscal year 2011.
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The fair value of the awards was determined usimpdified Black-Scholes methodology using the fwilog
weighted average assumptions:

Risk-Free Expectec Fair Value

Interest Expected Expectec Dividend at Date

Common Rate Life Volatility Yield of Grant
2008 Grant: 2.3% 6 year 60% — $ 264
2009 Grant: 2.5% 6 year 84% — $ 15¢
2010 Grantt 2.C% 6 year 81% — $ 202

The weighted average expected option term reftbetapplication of the simplified method set outhia
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standards Codification 718-10-S88pic 14 issued b
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)ctvldiefines the term as the average of the contabigim of
the options and the weighted average vesting péoiodll option tranches. Expected volatility pertages for grant
years 2008, 2009 and 2010 were based on the dsityrical volatility of the Compar’s stock price over the period
from the Company’s IPO in June of 2006 throughgtent date. The risk-free rate for periods witthia tontractual
life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasurplied yield at the time of grant.

4. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2009, the FASB issued new accountiidpgce related to the revenue recognition of rplalti
element arrangements. The new guidance states treaidor specific objective evidence or third gastzidence for
deliverables in an arrangement cannot be determauedpanies will be required to develop a bestett of the
selling price to separate deliverables and alloaatngement consideration using the relativergefirice method.
The accounting guidance will be applied prospettiaad will become effective during the first querbf 2011. Wi
do not expect this accounting guidance to havetanmahimpact on our financial position or resudfsoperations.

Effective January 1, 2010, the Company adoptedr&@B-issued guidance which changes the way that
companies account for Variable Interest EntitiddEs”). The adoption of this guidance did not haveimpact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Company has investments in two partly-owned ¢lGlagpitol
Hill Squash Club Associates (“CHSCA") and KaloraBports Management Associates (“KSMAEp(lectively, the
“Affiliates”). The Company accounts for these Afffiles in accordance with the equity method of anting. The
Company has a limited partnership interest in CHS@lich provides the Company with approximately 26Pthe
CHSCA profits. The Company has a co-general pastrigrand limited partnership interests in KSMA, et
entitles it to receive approximately 45% of the K&Mrofits. The Affiliates have operations, whicleaimilar, and
related to, those of the Company. The Company besmined that the Affiliates are VIEs, howeveg @ompany
is not the primary beneficiary. The Company’s maximexposure to loss as a result of its involverétit the
Affiliates is limited to its investment balance plany outstanding intercompany receivable. Thetsdsmbilities,
equity and operating results of the Affiliates ahd Company’s pro rata share of the Affiliates’ assets and
operating results were not material for all peripdssented.
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5. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets as of December 31, 2010 and 200havensat cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and are summarized below:

December 31

2010 2009

Leasehold improvemen $488,18(  $ 485,26:
Club equipmen 95,95( 96,22¢
Furniture, fixtures and computer equipm 48,51( 70,75¢
Computer softwar 13,55( 18,90¢
Building and improvement 4,99t 4,99t
Land 98¢€ 98¢
Construction in progres 7,744 2,88¢
659,91! 680,01!

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (350,54 (339,739

$309,37. $340,27

Depreciation and leasehold amortization expensthfoyears ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2@38,
$52,097, $56,271 and $51,743, respectively.

In February, 2008, the FASB released a statemdimtiig fair value, establishing a framework in geadby
accepted accounting principles for measuring falue and expanding disclosures about fair valuesoreaents.
The standard establishes a hierarchy of inputs @yedlto determine fair value measurements, witbethevels.
Level 1 inputs, are quoted prices in active markatsdentical assets and liabilities, are constdeto be the most
reliable evidence of fair value and should be uskdnever available. Level 2 inputs are observaliéep that are
not quoted on active exchanges. Level 3 inputsiaobservable inputs employed for measuring thevlire of
assets or liabilities.

Fixed assets are evaluated for impairment peritigiednenever events or changes in circumstancesaiel
that related carrying amounts may not be recoveribin undiscounted cash flows in accordance WKBIE
released guidance. The Company’s long-lived ass®tdiabilities are grouped at the individual clakel which is
the lowest level for which there is identifiablesbeflow. To the extent that estimated future unalisited net cash
flows attributable to the assets are less thagdhging amount, an impairment charge equal taltfierence
between the carrying value of such asset andiitsdiue, calculated using discounted cash flowsetognized. In
the year ended December 31, 2010, the Companylt&3tanderperforming clubs and recorded impairnesges ¢
$1,570 on fixed assets at three of these clubsttprienced decreased profitability and saledddwelow
expectations. The leasehold improvements at tHabs were written down to their fair values of zeee to
negative projected cash flows. The 10 clubs tetstatddid not have impairment charges had an agtgefa10,999
of net leasehold improvements and furniture antlifes remaining as of December 31, 2010. Two ofdtwdubs,
with total net leasehold improvements and furnitame fixtures of $2,991 as of December 31, 2016,dsimated
future undiscounted net cash flows attributablthéoassets approximately 10% greater than theingramounts;
accordingly, a small change in the Compargxpectations for these clubs could cause thésasske impaired. Tk
Company will monitor the results and changes ireeigtions of these clubs closely in the year enBiagember 3:
2011 to determine if fixed asset impairment is ssaey.

In addition, in the year ended December 31, 20¥®CQompany recorded impairment charges of $1,68¢erk
to the planned closure of a club prior to its leasgiration date.

In 2008, the Company entered into an agreementawtdndor to develop a new enterprise management
software system, GIMS which was planned to be imgleted in 2010. The Company had capitalized $10(d94
costs incurred related to this project in accoréanith ASC 350-40, Internal-Use Software. In Segien?009, the
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Company commenced litigation against this vendéggiag, among other things, breach of contractdnnection
with this litigation, development of this softwarenject ceased during the third quarter of 200%d$ determined
that it was not probable that the Company wouldicoe with the development of this software andG@oenpany is
currently exploring other alternatives. As a resualtaccordance with ASC 350-40, the Company ingghthe
balance of the project as of December 31, 2009.6f194 to its implied fair value of zero.

The fair values of fixed assets evaluated for impait were calculated using Level 3 inputs usirsgalinted
cash flows, which are based on internal budgetd@medasts through the end of each respective .|@&semost
significant assumptions in those budgets and fetsaalate to estimated membership and ancillarymee, attritior
rates, and maintenance capital expenditures, waretestimated at approximately 3% of total revenues

6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill has been allocated to reporting units thasely reflect the regions served by our foudé¢raames:
New York Sports Clubs‘NYSC”), Boston Sports Clubs (“BSC”), Washington®{s Clubs (“WSC") and
Philadelphia Sports Clubs (“PSC”), with certain moemote clubs that do not benefit from a regichater being
considered single reporting units (“Outlier Clubat)d our three clubs located in Switzerland (“SSCTHe
Company has three Outlier Clubs with goodwill. ADecember 31, 2010, the BSC, WSC and PSC regiomotl
have goodwill balances. The carrying value of godidwas allocated to the Company’s reporting upitssuant to
FASB guidance.

In each of the quarters ended March 31, 2010 af6é,28e Company performed its annual impairmerit Téwe
March 31, 2010 and 2009 impairment tests suppahtedecorded goodwill balances and as such no imgait of
goodwill was required. The valuation of reportingts requires assumptions and estimates of matigadriactors,
including revenue and market growth, operating dksts and discount rates.

In accordance with FASB guidance, the Company ceteglan interim evaluation of the goodwill by rejpay
unit due to the existence of a triggering everafd3ecember 31, 2008. The determination as to vérethiriggering
event exists that would warrant an interim revidwaodwill and whether a write-down of goodwillngcessary
involves significant judgment based on short-terd Bpng-term projections of the Company. Due todigmificant
decrease in market capitalization and a declitkérCompany’s business outlook primarily due to the
macroeconomic environment, the Company performeidtanm impairment test as of December 31, 200& T
result of the Company’s analysis indicated thateheould be no remaining implied value attributatiolehe BSC
reporting unit. Accordingly, in December 2008, Bempany wrote off all $15,766 of goodwill associhteth this
reporting unit and $1,843 at two of the three @utClubs that did not benefit from being part afiomal clusters.
The Company did not have a goodwill impairment gkedn the NYSC region as a result of the interist tgven the
profitability of this unit. The remaining goodwalt SSC is $1,096 and there is one remaining OuEliel with
goodwill of $137.

Fair value was determined by using a weighted coatliin of two market-based approaches (weighted 25%
each) and an income approach (weighted 50%), asdnmbination was deemed to be the most indicafitiee
Company’s fair value in an orderly transaction betw market participants. Under the market-baserbappes, the
Company utilized information regarding the Compahyg, Companys industry as well as publicly available indu:
information to determine earnings multiples an@sahultiples that are used to value the Compargporting units
Under the income approach, the Company determimieddlue based on estimated future cash flowsiofie
reporting unit, discounted by an estimated weiglaegrage cost of capital, which reflects the ovdezkl of
inherent risk of a reporting unit and the rateaifirn an outside investor would expect to earnefahning the fair
value of a reporting unit is judgmental in natunel aequires the use of significant estimates asdraptions,
including revenue growth rates and operating margiiscount rates and future market conditions,rapuathers.

Solely for purposes of establishing inputs forfdie value calculations described above relategomdwill
impairment testing, the Company made the follovasgumptions. The Company developed long-rangediabn
forecasts (five years or longer) for all reportingts. The Company used discount rates rangingdeatvt2.1% and
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18.2%, compounded annual revenue growth ranging {b7%) to 5.4% and terminal growth rates randgatyveer
1% and 3%. These assumptions are calculated sejydi@teach reporting unit.

Given the recent economic and consumer environar@hthe uncertainties regarding the impact on the
Company’s business, there can be no assuranctéh@ompanys estimates and assumptions regarding the du
of the ongoing economic downturn, or the periodtoength of recovery of the economic downturn, nfade
purposes of the Company’s goodwill impairment tesfis of March 31, 2010, will prove to be accupatslictions
of the future. If the Company’s assumptions regaydorecasted revenue or margin growth rates déicereporting
units are not achieved, the Company may be reqtoreecord additional goodwill impairment chargeguture
periods, whether in connection with the Compangstrannual impairment testing in the quarter eridadch 31,
2011 or subsequent to that, if any such changetitaties a triggering event outside the quarter wihenannual
goodwill impairment test is performed. It is notsgible at this time to determine if any such futumpairment
charge would result. There were no events triggesineview of goodwill as of December 31, 2010. Mach 31,
2010 impairment tests supported the recorded gdblalances and as such no impairment of goodval w
required. As of March 31, 2010, the implied faitueaof NYSC was 30% greater than book value anc#tienated
fair value of SSC was 73% greater than book value.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill fréemuary 1, 2009 through December 31, 2010 ardefkta
in the charts below.

NYSC BSC SSC_ Outlier Clubs Total
Balance as of January 1, 200
Goodwill $31,40: $15,76¢ $1,07C $ 3,98: $52,22!
Accumulated impairment of goodw (15,766) — (3,845 (19,61)
31,40: — 1,07C 137 32,61(
Changes due to foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations — — 26 — 26
Balance as of December 31, 20(
Goodwill 31,40 15,76¢  1,09¢ 3,98: 52,241
Accumulated impairment of goodw (15,76¢) — (3,845 (19,61)
31,40 —  1,09¢ 137 32,63¢
Changes due to foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations — — 15¢ — 15¢
Balance as of December 31, 20:
Goodwill 31,40: 15,76¢  1,25¢ 3,98 52,40¢
Accumulated impairment of goodw (15,76¢6) — (3,845 (19,61)
$31,40: $ — $125¢ $ 137 $32,79¢

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2010 and 2@08s follows:

As of December 31, 201

Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Intangibles
Covenant-not-to-compete $1506 $ (1469 & 44
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As of December 31,

200

Gross
Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization

Net
Intangibles

Covenant-not-to-compete $150¢8 $ (1,359

§  14¢

The amortization expense of the above acquiredigiitée assets for the year ending December 31, 201 be

$44.

Amortization expense of intangible assets for tharg ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $10

$262 and $732, respectively.

7. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2010 and 20G%sted of the following:

December 31,

2010 2009
Accrued payrol $ 8,95 $ 6,001
Accrued construction in progress and equipn 4,18¢ 1,90¢
Accrued occupancy cos 4,76¢€ 5,621
Accrued insurance clain 3,371 3,691
Accrued othe 6,20( 6,42¢
$27,47°  $23,65¢

8. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt as of December 31, 2010 and 2008isted of the following:

December 31,

2010 2009
Term Loan Facility $178,060 $179,91:
11% Senior Discount Not¢ 138,45( 138,45(
316,51 318,36:
Less: Current portion due within one yi 14,55( 1,85(
Long-term portion $301,96: $316,51:

The aggregate long-term debt obligations maturimigng the next five years and thereafter are devial:

Year Ending December 31
2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Thereafte
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Senior Discount Notes

On February 4, 2004, TSI Holdings completed anroféeof the 11% senior discount notes due in 2Qhd (
“Senior Discount Notes”). TSI Holdings receivedtat of $124,807 in connection with this issuarieees and
expenses related to this transaction totaled appedrly $4,378. No cash interest was required tpdié prior to
February 1, 2009. The accreted value of each S&ismount Note increased from the date of issuamti
February 1, 2009, at a rate of 11.0% per annum ocomgbed semi-annually. As of February 1, 2009, treeeded
value of the Senior Discount Notes equaled itsqipial maturity value of $138,450. Subsequent torraty 1, 200¢
cash interest on the Senior Discount Notes hasvélhdccrue and be payable semi-annually in arr€atsruary 1
and August 1 of each year, commencing August 19208e Senior Discount Notes are structurally sdinated
and effectively rank junior to all indebtednessT&, LLC. The debt of TSI Holdings is not guaramtdsy TSI, LLC
and TSI Holdings relies on the cash flows of TSICL. subject to restrictions contained in the indeatgoverning
the Senior Discount Notes, to service its debt.

The Senior Discount Notes contain a consolidatestificharge coverage covenant ratio of 2.00:1.06;twh
covenant is subject to compliance, on a consolithésis. As of December 31, 2010, the Companyé&ifcharge
coverage ratio was 3.46:1.00, thus the Companyimesmpliance with this covenant.

2007 Senior Credit Facility

On February 27, 2007, the Company entered intc68,8R0 senior secured credit facility (the “200nise
Credit Facility”). The 2007 Senior Credit Facilitpnsisted of a $185,000 term loan facility (the rfiid_oan
Facility”) and a $75,000 revolving credit facilifthe “Revolving Loan Facility”) and an incrementatm loan
commitment facility in the maximum amount of $10@0which borrowing thereunder is subject to coarpde witt
certain conditions precedent and by TSI and agreeomon certain terms and conditions thereof betvibe
participating lenders and TSI.

On July 15, 2009, the Company and TSI, LLC entém&althe First Amendment to the 2007 Senior Credit
Facility (the “Amendment”), which amends the defm of “Consolidated EBITDA”, as defined in the@0Senior
Credit Facility to permit TSI, LLC (as Borrowerplsly for purposes of determining compliance witke thaximum
total leverage ratio covenant, to add back the ahofunon-cash charges relating to the impairmentrite-down
of fixed assets, intangible assets and goodwilé AMmendment also reduced the total Revolving Laaciliy by
15%, from $75,000 to $63,750. Additionally, the Guany incurred an aggregate of approximately $616es and
expenses related to the Amendment.

Borrowings under the Term Loan Facility will, at [TELC’s option, bear interest at either the adrsirative
agents base rate plus 0.75% or its Eurodollar rate plidS%, each as defined in the 2007 Senior Creditifya The
Term Loan Facility matures on the earlier of Febyv, 2014, or August 1, 2013, if the Senior DistbNotes are
still outstanding. TSI, LLC is required to repa2®% of principal, or $463 per quarter beginninglane 30, 2007.
As of December 31, 2010, the Company has paid 8698utstanding principal.

The Revolving Loan Facility expires on February 2012 and borrowings under the facility currendy TSI,
LLC’s option, bear interest at the administratigeat’'s base rate plus 1.25% or the Eurodollarphite 2.25%, as
defined in the 2007 Senior Credit Facility. The Blging Loan Facility contains a maximum total leage covenant
ratio of 4.25:1.00, which covenant is subject tmpbance, on a consolidated basis, only duringpévéod in which
borrowings and letters of credit are outstandiregeghinder. As of December 31, 2010, the Compantes leverage
ratio, as defined, was 2.63:1.00, thus the Compaas/in compliance with this covenant. As of Decengde 2010,
there were no outstanding Revolving Loan Faciliyrbwings and outstanding letters of
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credit issued totaled $10,650. The unutilized portf the Revolving Loan Facility as of Decembey 2110 was
$53,100.

TSI, LLC’s applicable base rate and Eurodollar mtggins and commitment commission percentage wity
the Company’s consolidated secured leverage ralie following table summarizes the interest rategina and
commitment commission percentages applicable aetheparate secured leverage ratio levels as fllow

Revolving Loans Applicable
Base Commitment
Rate Eurodollar Commission
Level Secured Leverage Ratic Margin Margin Percentage
3 Greater than 1.50 to 1.( 1.25% 2.25% 0.5(%
2 Greater than 1.00 to 1.00 but equal to or less 1had to 1.0( 1.0(% 2.0(% 0.5(%
1 Equal to or less than 1.00 to 1. 0.75% 1.7%% 0.37%%

The Company’s secured leverage ratio as of Decethe2010 was within the Level 3 range at 2.63:1T0@&
Company has been within the Level 3 range sincerieigtinto the Revolving Loan Facility in 2007 agxpects to
be in this range throughout 2011.

The 2007 Senior Credit Facility contains provisitimst require Excess Cash Flow payments, as defiodue
applied against outstanding Term Loan Facility bed¢s. The Applicable Excess Cash Flow RepaymekeR&ge
is applied to the Excess Cash Flow when determitiiagexcess Cash Flow payment. The Applicable ExCash
Flow Repayment Percentage is 50% when the Seneur&e Leverage Ratio, as defined, exceeds 2.0@& Our
earnings, changes in working capital and capitpkexiture levels all impact the determination of arcess cash
flows. The calculation was performed as of Decen#1er2010 and as a result a principal payment af &0 will
be made with cash on hand on March 31, 2011. Waenbabeen required to pay any amount as we didhanod
Excess Cash Flow in the past.

Fair Market Value

Based on quoted market prices, the Senior Disddotgs and the Term Loan Facility had a fair valfie o
approximately $137,066 and $168,270, respectivelyegember 31, 2010 and $83,762 and $165,519, ctrsply,
at December 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2010 8A8,2here were no outstanding Revolving Loan Fgcil
borrowings.

Interest Expense

The Company’s interest expense and capitalizedesteelated to funds borrowed to finance clublitaes
under construction for the years ended Decembe2(@®1l), 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Interest costs expens $21,15¢ $20,97: $23,90:
Interest costs capitaliz¢ 16 73 632
Total interest expense and amounts capital $21,17¢ $21,04f $24,53¢

Related Party Transactions

The Company entered into a professional serviceemgent with Bruckmann, Rosser, Sherrill & Co., Inc.
(“BRS"), a stockholder of the Company, for strategic andrfaial advisory services on December 10, 1996. fee
such services, which are included in general amdir@dtrative expenses, were $250 per annum. OreSeqar 16,
2008, an affiliate fund of BRS liquidated its owslgip in the Company. As a result, immediately failog the
distribution, this affiliate fund held no sharestioé Company’s common stock and thus the profeabgsrvice
agreement was terminated. However, as a resuieddistribution, affiliates of BRS continue to osimares of the
Company’s Common Stock. No amounts were due BRE®a¢mber 31, 2010 and 2009.
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9. Leases

The Company leases office, warehouse and multeatiomal facilities and certain equipment under-non
cancelable operating leases. In addition to baste ttee facility leases generally provide for autditl rent based on
operating results, increases in real estate tanxg¢®ther costs. Certain leases provide for additioent based upon
defined formulas of revenue, cash flow or operatggults of the respective facilities. Under thevisions of
certain of these leases, the Company is requiretbiatain irrevocable letters of credit, which amtad to $2,250
as of December 31, 2010.

The leases expire at various times through Nover8®eP029 and certain leases may be extended at the
Company’s option.

In the year ended December 31, 2009, the Compaayded early lease termination costs of $1,305ed!t0
five club closures prior to their lease expiratiates. There were no early lease termination doste year ended
December 31, 2010.

Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelafpdgating leases are as follows:

Minimum
Annual Rental

Year Ending December 31,

2011 $ 81,56¢
2012 79,41:
2013 76,37¢
2014 73,22t
2015 69,96¢
Aggregate thereafte 393,58:

Rent expense, including the effect of deferredddabilities, for the years ended December 31,02@0D09 and
2008 was $111,150, $109,209 and $98,763, respictiech amounts include additional rent of $20,888,459
and $18,102, respectively.

The Company, as landlord, leases space to thitgl fEmrants under non-cancelable operating leasiks an
licenses. In addition to base rent, certain lepsegide for additional rent based on increasegah estate taxes,
indexation, utilities and defined amounts basetheroperating results of the lessee. The leasdreeadpvarious
times through March 31, 2028. Future minimum rentateivable under noncancelable leases are as/ll

Minimum
Annual Rental

Year Ending December 31

2011 $ 3,612
2012 3,111
2013 2,40z
2014 2,15¢
2015 2,09¢
Aggregate thereaftt 28,01:

Rental income, including non-cash rental incomette years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and\2888
$4,718, $4,740 and $4,452, respectively. Such atsonclude additional rental charges above the berseof $544
$474 and $735, respectively. We own the buildingre of our club locations which houses a rentznée that
generated $1,968, $1,970 and $1,739 of rental iedomthe years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 GO®8, 2
respectively.
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10. Stockholders (Deficit) Equity
a. Capitalization

The Company’s certificate of incorporation adogtedonnection with the IPO provides for 105,000,80@res
of capital stock, consisting of 5,000,000 shareBreferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share @neférred Stock”
and 100,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par valli®$ per share (the “Common Stock”).

b. Common Stock Option

Grants vest in full at various dates between Jyr2910 and November 1, 2014. The vesting of cegeants
will be accelerated in the event that certain dafievents occur including the achievement of anegaity values ¢
the sale of the Company. The term of each gragerierally ten years.

As of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, a totab8{857, 719,923 and 426,384 Common Stock optiars
exercisable, respectively.

At December 31, 2010, the Company had 148,120 @822 37 stock options outstanding under its 2004k
Option Plan and 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, respelgti The total compensation expense related tioapt
classified within payroll and related on the coidated statements of income, related to these plass$1,220,
$1,562 and $1,155 for the years ended Decemb&03D, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and the relatedenefit
was $531, $670 and $492 for the years ended Deae3ith2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

On May 30, 2006, the Board of Directors of the Campapproved the 2006 Stock Option Plan. The 2006
Stock Option Plan authorizes the Company to isgu® 1,300,000 shares of Common Stock to employpen the
exercise of Options Rights, Stock Appreciation RsgRestricted Stock, in payment of Performancea&har other
stock-based awards. Under the 2006 Stock Optiam, Btack options may be granted at a price basedeofair
market value of the stock on the date the optigrasted, generally are not subject to re-pricing ao stock option
will be exercisable more than ten years after tite df grant. In March 2008, the Board of Directadspted the
Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Incentive Plarghiwhimong other things, increased the aggregatbeuof
shares of Common Stock issuable under the plan2801000 shares to a total of 2,500,000 shares2086 Optior
Plan, as amended, was approved by stockholdens 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May R& As
of December 31, 2010, there were 257,348 sharésbleato be issued under the Plan.
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The following table summarizes the stock optionvitgtfor the years ended December 31, 2008, 20GP a

2010:
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Common Price
Balance at January 1, 20 1,497,031 $ 11.01
Grantec 903,37! 4.8:
Exercisec (195,700 6.1C
Cancellec (83,070) 10.4¢
Forfeited (240,079 12.5¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 1,881,56! 8.3¢
Granted 759,25( 2.17
Exercisec (22,400 1.61
Cancellec (75,440 11.3¢
Forfeited (259,29) 8.97
Balance at December 31, 2C 2,283,67. 6.2
Granted 429,50( 2.8¢
Exercisec (40,249 2.1z
Cancellec (236,189 10.62
Forfeited (196,489 6.24
Balance at December 31, 2C 2,240,25 $ 5.2C
The following table summarizes stock option infotimia as of December 31, 2010:
Options Outstanding
Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
Common
2003 grantt 4,48C 34 month $ 10.2¢ 4,48( $ 10.2¢
2004 amended and repriced 2001 gr 44,80( 6 month: 3.3¢ 44,80( 3.3¢
2004 amended and repriced 2003 gr: 43,12( 31 month 6.54 34,58( 6.54
2005 grant: 38,92( 52 month 6.54 20,02( 6.5
2006 grant: 214,12 62 month 11.7:  195,92! 12.11
2007 grant: 147,50 79 month 17.8¢ 113,62! 18.0C
2008 grant: 640,31 92 month 4.7¢ 321,28. 4.8(C
2009 grant: 678,50( 107 month 217 174,14 2.1¢
2010 grant: 428,50( 116 month 2.8¢ — —
Total Grants 2,240,25 94 month $ 5.2C 908,85 $ 7.5¢
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Options granted during the year ended Decembe2@l) to employees of the Company and members of the
Company’s Board of Directors were as follows:

Grant Risk
Number Black- Date Free Expectec
of Exercise Scholes Aggregate Amount Dividend Interest Term
Date Options Price  Valuation Fair Value Expensec Volatility Yield Rate (Years)
January 4, 201 7,000 $2.47$ 1.7¢$ 12 $ 12.C 84.% —% 2.83% 5.5
January 4, 201 7500$247% 181% 14$ 3C 84.% —% 3.1&% 6.2%
August 2, 201( 260,000 $2.77 $ 1.9¢ $ 51C $ 52.C 80.2% —% 2.1/% 6.2
November 1, 201 155,000 $3.0¢ $ 2.1¢ $ 33 $ 14.C 8l.% —% 1.72% 6.2

Total 429,50(

Options granted under the 2004 Stock Option Plareigdly qualify as “incentive stock options” undbe
U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Options granted urde2®06 Stock Option Plans generally qualify am“gaalified
stock options” under the U.S. Internal Revenue Cdtie exercise price of a stock option is genermdjyal to the
fair market value of the Company’s Common Stockhmnoption grant date.

The fair value of share-based payment awards wasated using the Black-Scholes option pricing madth
the following assumptions and weighted averageviaines as follows as of December 31, 2010:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Number of Exercise Term Value
Shares Price (years) (thousands
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,240,25 $ 5.2C 7.8 $ 247¢
Vested at December 31, 20 908,85° $ 7.5¢ 6.6 % 682
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 908,851 $ 7.5¢ 6€ $ 68

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (théedénce
between the estimated fair value of the Compang'sraon stock and the exercise price, multipliedh®/riumber
of in-the-money options) that would have been nemby the option holders had all option holdersreised their
options on December 31, 2010. The intrinsic vatueased on the fair market value of the Comparngtksand
therefore changes as the fair market value oftitekprice changes. The total intrinsic value ofi@ps exercised
was $85 for the year ended December 31, 2010.

As of December 31, 2010, a total of $1,641 unremeghcompensation cost related to stock optioes|rected
to be recognized, depending upon the likelihood &lcaelerated vesting targets are met in futursgerover a
weighted-average period of 3.1 years.
c. Common Stock Grant

Restricted Stock Grants

There were no restricted stock grants issued iyelaes ended December 31, 2010 or 2009. In thegreded
December 31, 2008, there were 31,000 shares oictesdtstock issued to employees of the Compang.tétal
compensation expense, classified within payroll @fdted on the consolidated statements of incoetated to
these grants was $31 and $72 for the years endeehfiteer 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and tlagertkax
benefit was $13 and $31 for the years ended Dece®1h010 and 2009, respectively. The shares comésting
restrictions and vest 25% per year over four yearthe anniversary date of the grants. There wemrestricted
stock grants prior to 2008.

The total unrecognized compensation expense ofsb@@pected to be recognized through December¥.20
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Non-Restricted Stock Grants

For each of the quarters ended March 31, 2010, 3002010, September 30, 2010 and December 31, 840
Company issued non-restricted common stock grarttseet Company Board of Directors. The total fair value of
shares issued was expensed upon the grant datakshares issued were:

Number of Exercise Grant Date

Date Shares Price Fair Value
March 25, 201( 3,04¢ $ 41C $ 13
June 24, 201 525 $ 2.3¢ 12
September 24, 201 10,87C $ 2.7¢ 30
December 23, 201 7,531 $ 3.9¢ 3C

Total 26,70¢ $ 85

d. Common Stock Repurchast

On April 29, 2008, the Board of Directors approweplan to repurchase up to an aggregate of $2%000
Common Stock. The repurchase program continuedighr®ecember 31, 2009.

During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 200& ompany repurchased 2,095,613 and
1,838,960 shares of common stock, respectively,caist of $5,355 and $4,645, respectively.
11. Revenue from Club Operations
Revenues from club operations for the years endaé@ber 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are summarizedbelo

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Membership due $363,42¢ $387,12{ $400,87:
Joining fees 6,967 12,04¢ 13,72
Personal training revent 60,87¢ 56,97 61,75
Other club ancillary revent 26,35t 24,58¢ 24,32¢
Total club revenu 457,62t 480,73: 500,67¢
Fees and Other reven 4,761 4,661 6,031
Total revenue $462,38° $485,39. $506,70¢

12. Corporate Income Taxes
The (benefit) provision for income taxes for thageended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 cahsistie

following:
Year Ended December 31, 201
State anc
Federal Foreign Local Total
Current $(7,819) $ 17¢ $ (479 $(8,119
Deferred 8,53¢ 1 (562) 7,97¢

$ 717 $ 18C $(1,04) $ (149
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Year Ended December 31, 200

State anc
Federal Foreign Local Total
Current $2,17¢  $ 19¢ $ 144 $2,51f
Deferred (4,57%) — (3,740 (8,315

$(2,397) $ 19  $(3,59¢ $(5,800

Year Ended December 31, 2008

State anc
Federal Foreign Local Total
Current $4,711  $ 26S $ 2,14t  $7,12¢
Deferred 3,23¢€ — (1,157 2,07¢

$7,941 $ 26 $ 98¢ $9,20¢

The components of deferred tax assets consisedbtlowing items:

December 31,

2010 2009

Deferred tax assets

Deferred lease liabilitie $14,56¢  $15,66¢
Deferred revenu 8,36¢ 8,25:
Deferred compensation expense incurred in conrreutith stock option: 1,76 2,04¢
Federal and State net operating loss «forwards 4,87¢ 877
Interest accretio 27,22¢ 27,41¢
Accruals, reserves and ott 6,004 6,28
Valuation allowanct (445) —

$62,36: $60,547
Deferred tax liabilities

Fixed assets and intangible as: $16,627 $ 7,33¢
Deferred cost 2,56: 2,63(
Undistributed foreign earnings and otl 1,29( 637

20,48( 10,601
Net deferred tax asse $41,88: $50,58:

As of December 31, 2010, the Company has net aeféax assets of $41,883. Quarterly, the Compasgsas
the weight of all positive and negative evidencdétermine whether the net deferred tax assetlzable. In 2010
and 2009, the Company incurred losses and expebs profitable in 2011. The Company has histdsidag¢en a
taxpayer and projects that it will be in a threaryeumulative income position, excluding non-reingritems, as of
December 31, 2011. In addition, the Company, basegcent trends, projects improved performancefatiode
income sufficient to realize the deferred tax asdeting the periods when the temporary tax deblectlifferences
reverse. The Company has state net operating éosgforwards which the Company believes will balized
within the available carry-forward period, except & small state operating loss carryforward indhtsland due to
the short carryforward period in that state. Acaogty, the Company concluded that it is more likédgn not that
the deferred tax assets will be realized. If actaallts do not meet the Compamnjorecasts and the Company inc
losses in 2011, a valuation allowance against éfierted tax assets may be required in the futaraddition, with
exception of the deductions related to the Compaogptive
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insurance for state taxes, taxable income has &eeis projected to be the same as Federal. Bettarisaptive
insurance company will be discontinued, the assessof realizability of the state deferred tax éss®consistent
with the Federal tax analysis above.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company has a Fedetalperating loss carryforward of $2,568, Fedewde
credit carryforwards of $606, pre-apportioned stegtoperating loss carryforwards of $149,050 avst-p
apportioned state net operating loss carryforwaf@®23,077. Such amounts expire between Decemh&4 anc
December 31, 2030. The Company has concludedttisamniore likely than not that the net deferredaaget balant
as of December 31, 2010 will be realized with theeption of the aforementioned Rhode Island loss.

The Company’s foreign pre-tax earnings relatedhéoSwiss entity were $767, $829 and $1,044 foytaes
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respactndlthe related current tax provisions were $$793 and
$269, respectively. The Company expects to repattiee Swiss earnings in the future. Accordinglyaccordance
with ASC 740-30, the Company has recognized a dedanx liability of $776 for the United States¢aon the
total cumulative earnings of the Swiss clubs.

The results for the year ended December 31, 20d0da the correction of an accounting error thaulted in &
decrease in benefit for corporate income taxesaamtated decrease in deferred tax assets in thg&uwy's
consolidated statement of operations and conselidaalance sheet, respectively. In the fourth guaft2010, the
Company identified un-reconciled temporary deduetdfferences, mainly related to fixed assets,clvtgave rise
to deferred tax assets of $357. These un-reconighfagorary differences principally relate to pesqior to 2008.
As the Company was unable to identify a specifiasaction that created this un-reconciled diffeeesach as the
disposal of a certain asset, a current deductioidamt be taken on the Company’s 2010 tax retdocordingly,
the Company wrote-off the deferred tax asset. White-off resulted in the recognition of an outjuéfiod income
tax expense in 2010 of $352. The Company doesei@\ve that this error correction is material te turrent or
prior reporting periods.

The differences between the United States Fedetaltsry income tax rate and the Company’s effectax
rate were as follows for the years ended Decembge2(@®L0, 2009 and 2008:

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Federal statutory tax ra (35)% (35)% 35%
State and local income taxes, net of federal tavefie 9) 9) 8
Goodwill impairment — — 50
Change in state effective income tax 1 11€ 2 (@D}
State tax benefit related to insurance premi (310 (12) (12
State tax valuation allowan: 10C — —
Correction of an errc 80 — —
Foreign rate differentic — () (1)
Provision for undistributed earningsnor-U.S. subsidiaries — 6 —
Other permanent differenc 23 1 1

(33% (51)% 80%

The 2010 effective tax rate benefit of 33% on awrfax loss was higher than the United States éder
statutory income tax rate primarily due to the Stak benefit related to insurance premiums aretast paid to the
captive insurance company.

The 2009 effective tax rate benefit of 51% on awrfax loss was higher than the United States éder
statutory income tax rate primarily due State terddit related to insurance premiums and interait fo the
captive insurance company.
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The 2008 effective tax rate of 80% was higher ti@nUnited States statutory income tax rate pripairie to
the goodwill impairment of clubs that were acquinedtock-based transactions in our Boston Spduts region.

Unrecognized tax benefits were $1,155 for the pealed December 31, 2010.

As of December 31, 2010, $751 represented the anodwmrecognized tax benefits that, if recogniaeduld
affect the Company’s effective tax rate in any fatperiods. For each of the years ended Decemh&030, 2009
and 2008, interest expense on unrecognized taXiteewas $53. The Company recognizes both intexrestued
related to unrecognized tax benefits and pendhigscome tax expenses. The Company had accruaistéest or
penalties as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 of 8h87%145, respectively. In 2011, $751 of unrecagphiax
benefits could be realized by the Company sincértt@me tax returns may no longer be subject tat auding
2011.

The Company files Federal income tax returns, eidorjurisdiction return and multiple state anddloc
jurisdiction tax returns. The Company is no longéject to examinations of its Federal income &rns by the
Internal Revenue Service for years 2007 and pfioe. Federal government is currently examining 2008.

The State of New York is currently examining ye2@96 and 2007. The Company is no longer subject to
examinations of its income tax returns by the Stéfdew York for years 2005 and prior.

13. Contingencies

On or about March 1, 2005, in an action sty&dah Cruz, et al v. Town Sports International/afdew York
Sports Cluh plaintiffs commenced a purported class actionregahe Company in the Supreme Court, New York
County, seeking unpaid wages and alleging that MSC, violated various overtime provisions of theN¥ork
State Labor Law with respect to the payment of wagecertain trainers and assistant fitness masa@ar or about
June 18, 2007, the same plaintiffs commenced anslgmorported class action against the CompanyeirStipreme
Court of the State of New York, New York Countyekimg unpaid wages and alleging that TSI, LLC vieta
various wage payment and overtime provisions oflNbe York State Labor Law with respect to the pagtrd
wages to all New York purported hourly employees.S2ptember 17, 2010, the Company made motionisiuiss
the class action allegations of both lawsuits faintiffs’ failure to timely file motions to certjfthe class actions.
Oral argument on the motions occurred on Novembe2@10. While we are unable at this time to estntlae
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome or the potabss to the Company in the event of such anomég; we
intend to contest these cases vigorously. Depengiog the ultimate outcome, these matters may aamaterial
adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated filshposition, results of operations, or cash flows.

On September 14, 2009, the Staff of the SEC aditse€ompany that a formal order of private invgegion
had been issued with respect to the Company. $ilage2008, the Company had been providing docunesmds
testimony on a voluntary basis in response to forrimal inquiry by the Staff of the SEC, which prirtarelated to
the deferral of certain payroll costs incurred amigection with the sale of memberships in the Comisahealth an
fitness clubs and the time period utilized by tteerpany for the amortization of (i) such deferredtsanto expense
and (ii) initiation fees into revenue. On NovemB8r 2010, the Company received a letter from tlaf 8 the SEC
stating that it has completed the investigatiothefabove-referenced accounting matters and theitdf does not
intend to recommend any enforcement action by &€ 8gainst the Company.

On September 22, 2009, in an action stylewn Sports International, LLC v. Ajilon Solutigrs division of
Ajilon Professional Staffing LLC (Supreme Courtthé State of New York, New York County, 602911-065|,
LLC brought an action in the Supreme Court of ttetesof New York, New York County, against Ajiloarforeach
of contract, conversion and replevin, seeking, agmuther things, money damages against Ajilon feabhing its
agreement to design and deliver to TSI, LLC a nparts club enterprise management system known sSG|
including failing to provide copies of the compuseurce code written for GIMS, related documentatyoperly
identified requirements documents and other prgpasned and licensed by TSI, LLC. Subsequently, on
October 14, 2009, Ajilon brought a counterclaimiagaTSI, LLC alleging breach of contract, allegiagnong othe
things, failure to pay outstanding invoices in &mount of $2,900. The litigation is currently irettiscovery
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phase. We believe at this time the likelihood ofiafavorable outcome is not probable. The Compatgnids to
prosecute vigorously its claims against Ajilon aledend against Ajilon’s counterclaim.

On February 7, 2007, in an action stylathite Plains Plaza Realty, LLC v. TSI, LLC et,dhe landlord of one
of TSI, LLC’s former health and fitness clubs filadawsuit in state court against it and two ohigslth club
subsidiaries alleging, among other things, breddbase in connection with the decision to closedlub located in
a building owned by the plaintiff and leased tabsidiary of TSI, LLC, and take additional spac¢hia nearby
facility leased by another subsidiary of TSI, LLThe trial court granted the landlord damages agéstenant in
the amount of approximately $700, including intéasd costs (“Initial Award”). The landlord subseqtly
appealed the trial coug’award of damages, and on December 21, 2010pgedlae court reversed, in part, the t
court’s decision and ordered the case remanddukttrial court for an assessment of additional dgaaof
approximately $750 plus interest and costs (thedidahal Award”). On February 7, 2011, the landlondved for
re-argument of the appellate court’s decision, mge&dditional damages plus attornefegs. The Additional Awal
has not yet been entered as a judgment. The Contfussynot believe it is probable that TSI, LLC oy af its
subsidiaries will be held liable to pay for any ambof the Additional Award.

Separately, TSI, LLC is party to an agreement withird-party developer, which by its terms progide
indemnification for the full amount of any liabilibf any nature arising out of the lease, includittprneys’ fees
incurred to enforce the indemnity. In connectiotivthe Initial Award (and in furtherance of the @mnification
agreement), TSI, LLC and the developer have enietecan agreement pursuant to which the develbpsragreed
to pay the amount of the Initial Award in instalint& over time. The indemnification agreement walver the
Additional Award as and if entered by the courthi third-party developer fails to honor its indgty obligation
with respect to the Additional Award (or any amoewiarded on further appeal), TSI LLC’s liabilityttee landlord
may have a material adverse effect on the Compamyisolidated financial position, results of opers, or cash
flows.

In addition to the litigation discussed above, weiavolved in various other lawsuits, claims amdgeedings
incidental to the ordinary course of business uditlg personal injury and employee relations claifie results of
litigation are inherently unpredictable. Any claiagainst us, whether meritorious or not, coulditme ttonsuming,
result in costly litigation, require significant ammts of management time and result in diversiosigrificant
resources. The results of these other lawsuitsnsland proceedings cannot be predicted with ceytai

14. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) defined contribufitam and is subject to the provisions of the Empgéo
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA™h& Plan provides for the Company to make discratipn
contributions. The Plan was amended, effective diani, 2001, to provide for an employer matchingtdbution in
an amount equal to 25% of the participant’s contidn with a limit of five hundred dollars per initiual, per
annum. Employer matching contributions totaling $22d $225 were made in March 2010 and March 2009,
respectively, for the Plan years ended Decembe2@18 and 2007, respectively. The Company expeatsake an
employer matching contribution of approximately $22 March 2011 for the Plan year ended Decembg@10.
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15. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited’

2010
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(b) (©) (d)
Net revenue $117,75¢ $117,43¢ $113,12° $114,06!
Operating incom: 2,79¢ 2,46: 4,06 9,117
Net (loss) incomi (732) (81%) (18 1,27¢
(Loss) earnings per share
Basic $ (00 $ (0.0 $ (0.000 $ 0.0¢
Diluted $ (00 $ (009 $ (0.00) $ o0.0¢
2009
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(e) ® (@
Net revenue $126,70¢ $123,91:! $120,44¢ $114,32:
Operating incom: 5,57¢ 8,77¢ 1,44¢ (7,929
Net income (loss 63¢ 2,52¢ (1,485 (7,346
Earnings (loss) per share!
Basic $ 002 $ 011 $ (0.09) $ (0.39
Diluted $ 00 $ 011 $ (007 $ (0.39

(a) Basic and diluted earnings per share are compuotiEpendently for each quarter presented. Accorglitigé
sum of the quarterly earnings per share may n@eagith the calculated full year earnings per st

(b) Net income and earnings per share for the firsttquaf 2010 include $220 and ($0.01), respectivigythe
effect of impairment of fixed assets, net of 1

(c) Net loss and loss per share for the second quafr910 include $1,619 and ($0.07), respectivehitlie effect
of impairment of fixed assets, net of ti

(d) Net revenue, net income and earnings per shatbddourth quarter of 2010 include $2,697, $1,16d $0.07
respectively for the effect of the recognition olused and expired personal training sessions é@e thf our
jurisdictions.

(e) Net income and earnings per share for the firsttquaf 2009 include $639 and ($0.03), respectivigythe
effect of impairment of fixed assets, net of 1

(f) Netloss and loss per share for the third quaft@069 include $1,962 and ($0.09), respectivelytifier effect o
impairment of fixed assets, net of ti

(9) Net loss and loss per share for the fourth quaift@009 include $6,948 and ($0.31), respectivehtlie effect o
impairments of fixed assets and internal-use saétwaet of tax, $424 and ($0.02), respectivehates to a
previous accounting error in deferring the salaoiesiembership consultants and $302 and $0.01ectsply,
related to the correction of a rent settlementnged in the second quarter of 2009, net of
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The following is a list of all exhibits filed or @@rporated by reference as part of this Report:

Exhibit
No.

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

101

10.2

103

104

105

10.6

10.7

10.8

109

Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiohawn Sports International Holdings, Inc. (the
“Registrant”) (incorporated by reference to Exhiit of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on

for the quarter ended June 30, 20(

Second Amended and Restated By-laws of the Regidirecorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Registrar’'s Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed on May 19, 2008)

Indenture dated as of February 4, 2004 by and ariomgn Sports International Holdings, Inc, and The
Bank of New York (incorporated by reference to Eithil.1 of the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form &4, File No. 33:-114210(the“ S-4 Registration Stateme”)).

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated éference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Registrant’s
Registration Statement (Form £-1, File No. 33:-126428(the “ S-1 Registration Stateme”)).

Credit Agreement dated as of February 27, 200nayamong Town Sports International Holdings, Inc.
and Town Sports International, LLC, and DeutschelBBrust Company Americas, as administrative
agent, Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., as soledeathger and book manager, and a syndicate oétend
named therein (incorporated by reference to ExAibil of the Registrant’s Current Report on

Form &K filed March 5, 2007)

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as byf I, 2009, among Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc., Town Sports International, LLC,the borrower, the lenders from time to time pagty t
the Credit Agreement, dated as of February 27, 280d Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as
administrative agent for the lenders. (incorpordtgdeference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrantigi@nt
Report orForm ¢-K filed July 17, 2009)

Subsidiaries Guaranty dated as of February 27,,20@de by each of the guarantors named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of thegRtrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Maggh
2007).

Borrower/Sub Pledge Agreement, dated as of FebR2iar2007, among each of the pledgors named
therein and Deutsche Bank Trust Company AmericaspHateral agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Registra’'s Current Report oForm &K filed March 5, 2007)

Security Agreement, dated as of February 27, 20@ide by each of the assignors named therein i favo
of Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as colatgent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit:
of the Registrar's Current Report oForm &K filed March 5, 2007)

Restructuring Agreement, dated as of February @426y and among Town Sports International, Inc.,
Town Sports International Holdings, Inc. BruckmaRosser, Sherril & Co., L.P. the individuals and
entities listed on the BRS Co-Investor SignaturgeBahereto, Farallon Capital Partners, L.P., karal
Capital Institutional Partners, L.P., RR CapitaitRars, L.P., and Farallon Capital InstitutionaitRars

I, L.P., Canterbury Detroit Partners, L.P., Cabtey Mezzanine Capital, L.P., Rosewood Capital, L.P
Rosewood Capital IV, L.P., Rosewood Capital IV Adates, L.P., CapitalSource Holdings LLC, Keith
Alessi, Paul Arnold, and certain stockholders ef @ompany listed on the Executive Signature Pages
thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1df.the S-4 Registration Statemen

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Febrda®004, by and among Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc., Town Sports International, Inc.uBkmann, Rosser, Sherrill & Co., L.P. the individua
and entities listed on the BRS Co-Investor SigreaReages thereto, Farallon Capital Partners, L.P.,
Farallon Capital Institutional Partners, L.P., RRp@al Partners, L.P., and Farallon Capital Ingtnal
Partners Il, L.P., Canterbury Detroit Partners,. L Ganterbury Mezzanine Capital, L.P., Rosewood
Capital, L.P., Rosewood Capital IV, L.P., Rosew@apital IV Associates, L.P., CapitalSource Holdings
LLC, Keith Alessi, Paul Arnold, and certain stoclders of the Company listed on the Executive
Signature Pages thereto (incorporated by referenEghibit 10.5 of th¢S-4 Registration Statemen
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Rights Agreeindated as of March 23, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 of the Registrant’s Aalfkeport on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (t*2005Form 1(-K")).

Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Rights Agreeinderted as of May 30, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9.1 of tIS-1 Registration Statemen
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Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of February 4, 20p4nd among Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc., Town Sports International, Inc.dahe other signatories thereto (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of ttS-4 Registration Statemen

Pledge Agreement, dated as of February 4, 200veleet Town Sports International Holdings, Inc. and
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as collatgraht, for the benefit of the Secured Creditoss (a
defined therein) (incorporated by reference to BixHi0.8 of theS-4 Registration Statemen

Security Agreement, dated as of February 4, 20@4enby Town Sports International Holdings, Inc., in
favor of Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,ddisteral agent, for the benefit of the Secured
Creditors (as defined therein) (incorporated bemefce to Exhibit 10.9 of the S-4 Registration
Statement)

Holdco Guaranty, dated as of February 4, 2004, rbgdeown Sports International Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of S-4 Registration Statemen

2004 Common Stock Option Plan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.7 of the S-4 Registration
Statement)

Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s 2004 CommowlS@ption Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Repantform 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2007).

Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Incentive Plar'20@6 Incentive Plan”) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registre’s Current Report oForm &K filed on May 19, 2008)

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement pursuarthe 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhib10.1 of the Registra’s Current Report oForm ¢-K filed August 8, 2006)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursita the 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Regist’'s Current Report oForm ¢-K filed August 8, 2006)

Form of the Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreementfmn-Employee Directors pursuant to the 2006
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibil of the Registrant’s Current Report on

Form &K filed March 28, 2007)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursita the 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s QemdytReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2007

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant t®0@6 Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Registre’s Quarterly Report oForm 1(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20(
Amended and Restated 2006 Annual Performance Belams(incorporated by reference to Appendix A
of the Registrar' s definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A fdedVarch 30, 2010

Amended Non-Employee Director Compensation PlanBam (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registre's Form 1(-Q for the period ended September 30, 20

Amended Non-Employee Director Compensation Planr8am (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 of the Registre’s Quarterly Report oForm 1(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20(
Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Compiensalan Summary effective January 1, 2011
(filed herewith).

Offer Letter to David M. Kastin, Senior Vice Presid — General Counsel, dated July 23, 2007
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 of Registrant’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryea
ended December 31, 200

Amendment to Offer Letter to David M. Kastin, dat@dcember 23, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.35 of the Registre’s Annual Report oForm 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20!
Form of Executive Severance Agreement between #dggsRant and each of Alexander Alimanestianu,
Daniel Gallagher, Martin Annese and David Kastit@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 of the
Registrar’s Annual Report oForm 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Form of Amendment to Executive Severance Agreeletvteen the Registrant and each of Alexander
Alimanestianu, Daniel Gallagher, Martin Annese &avid Kastin (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.39 of the Registre’s Annual Report oForm 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20!
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Exhibit 10.25

Amended and Restated
Non-Employee Director Compensation Summary

1. The following non-employee Board members wilgige the following annual retainer:
(a) The non-executive chairman of the Board witleige a $100,000 annual retainer;

(b) Each non-employee Board member (other thamaoineexecutive chairman of the Board) will receive a
$50,000 annual retainer;

(c) The chairman of the Audit Committee will receian additional $10,000 annual retainer; and

(d) Each chairman of each Committee of the Boatitefathan the chairman of the Audit Committee) will
receive an additional $5,000 annual retainer.

2. The non-executive chairman shall not be therotan of any committee of the Board.

3. The annual retainer amounts set forth above Baglayable quarterly in arrears on the fifth bass day
prior to the end of each calendar quarter. For gaeln, any such Board member may elect (by givingem notice
to the Company on or before the first businessaldlge applicable calendar year) to receive suctuahretainer in
the form of shares of Common Stock of the Comppayable quarterly in arrears on the fifth busiraesg prior to
the end of each calendar quarter under the TowntSpaernational Holdings, Inc. 2006 Stock InceeatPlan, as
amended (the " Plaf (with the value of such shares of Common Stoeing the Fair Market Value (as defined in
the Plan) thereof on the fifth business day befloecend of each calendar quarter). Notwithstantiiegoreceding
sentence, any Board member who has so electeddiveesuch annual retainer in the form of shargdahmon
Stock of the Company may revoke such electiontferttalance of such calendar year by giving writtetice to the
Company at any time when such Board member is wtkereligible to purchase and sell shares of Com8toonk
of the Company pursuant to the Company’s theniegistading policies and procedures with respeaiich
purchases and sales. This annual retainer wilrbegied for any partial year.

4. Each existing non-employee Board member wikkiez an annual award of restricted stock on thrl thi
Wednesday of each calendar year as follows, with esvard being fully vested as of the award datd,vaill
otherwise be subject to the terms of the Plan:

(&) Chairman of the Board: 2,500 shares
(b) Other non-employee Board member: 1,667 shares
Additional grants may be made from time to time.

5. Each new non-employee Board member joining thar@ will receive an initial award of 1,667 shaoés
restricted stock, which shares shall be fully véste of the award date. Each new non-employee Boardber will
be eligible in the following year to receive thenaal restricted stock award referred to in Secli@bove.

6. No member of the Board will receive any feesditending any meetings of the Board or its cormaagt
7. Each non-employee Board member and each merhbeéB@ard committee will be reimbursed for any out-
of-pocket expenses reasonably incurred by him pirheonnection with services provided in such citya

Effective January 1, 20.



Company

Parent

Town Sports International, LL'
Subsidiaries

TSI 217 Broadway, LLC

TSI Alexandria, LLC

TSI Alexandria West, LLC
TSI Allston, LLC

TSI Andover, LLC

TSI Ardmore, LLC

TSI Arthrc-Fitness Services, LL!
TSI Astoria, LLC

TSI Battery Park, LLC

TSI Bay Ridge 86th Street, LL
TSI Bayridge, LLC

TSI Bensonhurst, LL(

TSI Bethesda, LL(C

TSI Boylston, LLC

TSI Broadway, LLC

TSI Brooklyn Belt, LLC

TSI Brunswick, LLC

TSI Bulfinch, LLC

TSI Butler, LLC

TSI Carmel, LLC

TSI Cash Management, LL
TSI Central Square, LL!

TSI Cherry Hill, LLC

TSI Chevy Chase, LL!

TSI Clarendon, LLC

TSI Clifton, LLC

TSI Cobble Hill, LLC

TSI Colonia, LLC

TSI Columbia Heights, LL(
TSI Commack, LLC

TSI Connecticut Avenue, LL!
TSI Court Street, LL(C

TSI Croton, LLC

TSI Danbury, LLC

TSI Davis Square, LL(

TSI Deer Park, LLC

TSI Dobbs Ferry, LLC

TSI Downtown Crossing, LL(
TSI Dupont Circle, Inc.

TSI Dupont I, Inc.

TSI East Brunswick, LLC

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

NY

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

n/a

New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
n/a

Boston Sports Clu
Philadelphia Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu

n/a

n/a

New York Sports Clul
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Company

TSI East Meadow, LL(
TSI East 23, LLC

TSI East 31, LLC

TSI East 34, LLC

TSI East 36, LLC

TSI East 41, LLC

TSI East 48, LLC

TSI East 51, LLC

TSI East 59, LLC

TSI East 76, LLC

TSI East 86, LLC

TSI East 91, LLC

TSI Englewood, LLC
TSI F Street, LLC

TSI Fairfax, LLC

TSI Fenway, LLC

TSI First Avenue, LLC
TSI Forest Hills, LLC
TSI Fort Lee, LLC

TSI Framingham, LLC
TSI Franklin (MA), LLC
TSI Franklin Park, LLC
TSI Freehold, LLC

TSI Gallery Place, LL(C
TSI Garden City, LLC
TSI Garnerville, LLC
TSI Georgetown, LLC
TSI Germantown, LLC
TSI Glendale, LLC

TSI Glover, LLC

TSI Grand Central, LL(
TSI Great Neck, LLC
TSI Greenwich, LLC
TSI Hartsdale, LLC

TSI Hawthorne, LLC
TSI Herald, LLC

TSI Hicksville, LLC

TSI Highpoint, LLC

TSI Hoboken, LLC

TSI Hoboken North, LLC
TSI Holdings (CIP), LLC
TSI Holdings (DC), LLC
TSI Holdings (IP), LLC
TSI Holdings (MA), LLC
TSI Holdings (MD), LLC

State of

Incorporation ~ Doing Business A
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Washington Sports Clu
DE Washington Sports Clu
DE Boston Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Boston Sports Clu
DE Boston Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Washington Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Washington Sports Clu
DE Washington Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Washington Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Philadelphia Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE n/a
DE n/a
DE n/a
DE n/a
DE n/a




Company

TSI Holdings (NJ), LLC
TSI Holdings (PA), LLC
TSI Holdings (VA), LLC
TSI Huntington, LLC
TSI Insurance, Inc

TSI International, Inc.
TSI Irving Place, LLC
TSI Jamaica Estates, LL
TSI Jersey City, LLC
TSI K Street, LLC

TSI Larchmont, LLC

TSI Lexington (MA), LLC
TSI Lincoln, LLC

TSI Livingston, LLC

TSI Long Beach, LLC
TSI Lynnfield, LLC

TSI M Street, LLC

TSI Mahwabh, LLC

TSI Mamaroneck, LL(
TSI Market Street, LLC
TSI Marlboro, LLC

TSI Matawan, LLC

TSI Mercer Street, LL(
TSI Midwood, LLC

TSI Montclair, LLC

TSI Morris Park, LLC
TSI Murray Hill, LLC
TSI Nanuet, LLC

TSI Natick, LLC

TSI New Rochelle, LLC
TSI Newark, LLC

TSI Newbury Street, LL(
TSI Newton, LLC

TSI No Sweat, LLC

TSI North Bethesda, LL¢
TSI Norwalk, LLC

TSI Oceanside, LL(

TSI Old Bridge, LLC
TSI Parsippany, LL(
TSI Plainsboro, LLC

TSI Port Jefferson, LL(
TSI Princeton, LLC

TSI Princeton North, LLC
TSI Providence Downtown, LL!
TSI Providence Eastside, LL

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

DE
DE
DE
DE
NY
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

n/a

n/a

n/a

New York Sports Clul
n/a

n/a

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
No Swear
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu




Company

TSI Radnor, LLC

TSI Ramsey, LLC

TSI Reade Street, LL
TSI Rego Park, LL(C

TSI Ridgewood, LLC
TSI Rodin Place, LLC
TSI Scarsdale, LL(

TSI Seaport, LLC

TSI Sheridan, LLC

TSI Silver Spring, LLC
TSI Smithtown, LLC

TSI Society Hill, LLC
TSI Soho, LLC

TSI Somers, LLC

TSI Somerset, LL(

TSI South Bethesda, LL
TSI South End, LLC

TSI South Park Slope, LL
TSI South Station, LL(
TSI Springdfield, LLC
TSI Stamford Downtown, LL(
TSI Stamford Post, LL(
TSI Stamford Rinks, LL(
TSI Staten Island, LL(
TSI Sterling, LLC

TSI Sunnyside, LLC

TSI Syosset, LLC

TSI University Management, LL

TSI Varick Street, LLC
TSI Wall Street, LLC
TSI Waltham, LLC
TSI Washington, Inc.
TSI Water Street, LL(
TSI Watertown, LLC
TSI Wellesley, LLC
TSI Wellington Circle, LLC
TSI West 14, LLC

TSI West 16, LLC

TSI West 23, LLC

TSI West 38, LLC

TSI West 41, LLC

TSI West 44, LLC

TSI West 48, LLC

TSI West 52, LLC

TSI West 73, LLC

State of

Incorporation ~ Doing Business A
DE Philadelphia Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Philadelphia Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Washington Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Philadelphia Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Washington Sports Clu
DE Boston Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Boston Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Washington Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE n/a
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Boston Sports Clu
DE Washington Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE Boston Sports Clu
DE Boston Sports Clu
DE Boston Sports Clu
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul
DE New York Sports Clul




State of

Company Incorporation  Doing Business A
TSI West 76, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI West 80, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI West 94, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI West 115th Street, LL DE New York Sports Clul
TSI West 125, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI West 145th Street, LL DE New York Sports Clul
TSI West Caldwell, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI West Hartford, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI West Newton, LLC DE Boston Sports Clu
TSI West Nyack, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI West Springfield, LLC DE Washington Sports Clu
TSI Westborough, LL( DE Boston Sports Clu
TSI Westport, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI Westwood, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI Weymouth, LLC DE Boston Sports Clu
TSI White Plains City Center, LL! DE New York Sports Clul
TSI White Plains, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI Whitestone, LLC DE New York Sports Clul
TSI Woburn, LLC DE Boston Sports Clu

TSI Woodmere, LLC DE New York Sports Clul



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-8
(No. 333-135048 and 333-151965) of Town Sportsrivagonal Holdings, Inc. of our report dated Feloyu2b,
2011 relating to the financial statements and ffectiveness of internal control over financial ogjing, which
appears in this Form 10-K.

/s/ RRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERSLLP

New York, NY
February 25, 201



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Robert Giardina, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended December 31, 2010 of Town Sports
International Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmndttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamisother financial information included in thipoet,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedorre
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe#@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that iniesmanagement or other employees who have a sim
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

By: /s/ Robert Giardin.

Robert Giardina
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 25, 201



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Daniel Gallagher, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended December 31, 2010 of Town Sports
International Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmndttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamisother financial information included in thipoet,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedorre
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe#@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that iniesmanagement or other employees who have a sim
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

By: /s/ Daniel Gallaghe

Daniel Gallagher
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 25, 201



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Town Spdrtternational Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 20&d fivith the Securities and Exchange Commissiotherdate
hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert Giardina, certifyjyrsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted purso®6 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®an
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Robert Giardina

Robert Giardina
Chief Executive Officer

February 25, 201



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Town Spdrtternational Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 20&d fivith the Securities and Exchange Commissiotherdate
hereof (the “Report”), I, Daniel Gallagher, certifyursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursad@é of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®an
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition
and results of operations of the Company.

/sl Daniel Gallagher

Daniel Gallagher
Chief Financial Officer

February 25, 201



